Himadri

Ref. No: HSCL / Stock-Ex/2018-19/109
Date: 11 January 2019
E-mail: blsharma@himadri.com

Ref : Listing Code: 500184 Ref: Listing Code: HSCL
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
Department of Corporate Services Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block-G
P.J. Towers, 25th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Dalal Street, Bandra (E)
Mumbai- 400 001 Mumbai- 400 051
Dear Sir,

Sub: Notice of NCLT Convened Meeting and Postal Ballot

Notice pursuant Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is hereby given that by order of
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, a separate meetings of Equity
Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd will be
held for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the
proposed scheme of amalgamation between Equal Commodeal Private Limited (“Transferor
Company”) and Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective
Shareholders and Creditors.

In pursuance of the said order and as directed therein the separate meetings of the Equity
Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company will be held as

under:
Sr Class of Meetings Date of Meetings Time (IST) | Place of Meeting
No.
1 Unsecured Creditors | Wednesday 10:30 AM | “Kala Kunj” 48,
2 Secured Creditors the 13" February, 2019. 11:30 AM Shakespeare Sarani,
3 Equity Shareholders 12:30 PM | Kolkata - 700017

Further pursuant to Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has also
provided the facility to vote through postal ballot which includes voting by electronic means for
seeking consent of its members in respect of the proposed scheme of Amalgamation.

A copy of the notice of the NCLT convened meeting of the Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors,
Unsecured Creditors of Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd and Postal Ballot Notice along with Postal
Ballot Form as sent to its’ members are enclosed herewith for taking on record by the exchange.

The Copy of the Notice along with Postal Ballot Form is also available at the website of the company
at www.himadri.com
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FORM NO.CAA3
[Pursuant to Section 230(5) and rule 8]
Company Application No. CA(CAA) No. 1008/KB/2018
BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLKATA BENCH Y

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULES FRAMED
THEREUNDER

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN EQUAL COMMODEAL
PRIVATE LIMITED AND HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED

NOTICE TO CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

To

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street
Mumbai-400001

Notice is hereby given in pursuance of sub-section (5) of section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, that as
directed by the Kolkata Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal by an order dated | January 2019 under
sub-section (1) of section 230 of the Act, a meeting of the equity shareholders, secured creditors (including
debenture holders) and unsecured creditors of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (Transferee Company) shall
be held on 13" February, 2019 to consider the Scheme of Amalgamation proposed to be made between Equal
Commodeal Private Limited {Transferor Company) and Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (Transferee

Company).
A copy of the notice, application along with relevant documents and scheme of the amalgamation is enclosed.

You are hereby informed that representations, if any, in connection with the proposed amalgamation may be
made to the Tribunal within thirty days from the date of this notice. Copy of the representation may
simultaneously be sent to the concerned company(ies). In case no representation is received within the stated
period of thirty days, it shall be presumed that you have no representation to make on the proposed scheme of
amalgamation.

For Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
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Director /Authorised Signatory &\
Dated this 7" day of January, 2019 eommoes

Place: Kolkata
Enclosures:

- Copy of notice under section 230(3)
- Copy of the application alongwith relevant documents including the Scheme of Amalgamation
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)

CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756
Regd. Office: 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8% Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata — 700 001
Corp. Office: 8, India Exchange Place, Ruby House, 2™ Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
Ph: 033 22309953, e-mail: investors@himadri.com
Website: www.himadri.com

NOTICE OF THE NCLT CONVENED MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF HIMADRI SPECIALITY
CHEMICAL LIMITED

(convened pursuant to the order dated 1%t January, 2019 passed by the National Company Law Tribunal,
Bench at Kolkata)

MEETING:

Day : | Wednesday

Date : | 13™ February, 2019

Time : 110.30 A.M.

Venue : | “Kala-Kunj Hall”, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata — 700017
INDEX:

Sl1. No. | Contents | Page No.

Notice of NCLT Convened Meeting of Unsecured Creditors of Himadri Speciality

1. 1-
Chemical Limited °
Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3), 232 of the Companies Act,
5 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 6— 01

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and Section 102 and 108 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Annexure 1 - Scheme of Amalgamation between Equal Commodeal Private
3. Limited, the Transferor Company with Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited,| 22 -40
the Transferee Company

Annexure 2 - Copy of Reports adopted by the Board of Directors of the Applicants

41 - 42
pursuant to the provisions of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

Annexure 3 - Copy of audited financial statements of Equal Commodeal Private
S. Limited for the financial year ending on 31 March, 2018 and copy of provisional | 43 - 69
balance sheet and profit and loss account for the period ended on 30" June, 2018.

Annexure 4 - Copy of audited financial statements of Himadri Speciality
6. Chemical Limited for the financial year ending 31t March, 2018 and copy of| 70 - 151
unaudited financial results for the period ended on 30% June, 2018.

Attendance Slip & Route Map of the venue of the meeting Loose leaf

8. Proxy Form Loose leaf
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FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and rule 6 and 7]

Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench

CA (CAA) No. 1008/KB/2018
In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 read with other relevant

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
AND

In the matter of:

Equal Commodeal Private Limited

(CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507)

a company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at 72/4,
Shambunath Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700025 (“Transferor
Company”)

AND

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

(CIN:L27106WB1987PLC042756) under the provisions of the
Companies Act 1956, and having its registered office at 23A,
Netaji Subhas Road 8% Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata-700001

(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders.

....Applicants

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED

To,

The Unsecured Creditor(s) of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (“Transferee Company”)

NOTICE is hereby given that by an order made on 1%t January, 2019 in the above mentioned
Company Application (the “Order”), the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at Kolkata
(“NCLT”) has directed that a meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company, be
convened and held at “Kala-Kunj”, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700017, on Wednesday, 13®
February, 2019 at 10.30 A.M. (“NCLT Convened Meeting”) for the purpose of considering, and
if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed amalgamation embodied
in the Scheme of Merger of Equal Commodeal Private Limited with Himadri Speciality Chemical
Limited (“Scheme”)



TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, a
meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company, will be held at “Kala-Kunj”,
48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-700017, on Wednesday, 13% February, 2019 at 10.30 A.M.,
at which place, day, date and time you are requested to attend. At the meeting, the following

resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to Section 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation)
Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules,
regulations, circulars and notifications issued thereunder (including any statutory modification
or re- enactment thereof) to the extent notified and applicable; enabling provisions in the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the sanction of the
National Company Law Tribunal, and subject to such other approvals of any statutory/regulatory
authorities, as may be required and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by the National Company Law Tribunal or by any regulatory or other
authorities while granting such consent, approvals and sanctions which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be
deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board
or any other person authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by
this Resolution), pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the proposed Scheme
of Merger of Equal Commodeal Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Himadri Speciality
Chemical Limited (“The Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders placed before
this meeting and initialed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification, be
and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of their powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or any
officer(s)/ authorized representative(s) of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions
and to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable in connection
with or incidental to giving effect to the purpose of the above resolution or to otherwise give effect
to the Scheme of Amalgamation, to make or accept such alterations or changes or modifications
in the Scheme of Amalgamation as may be advised by the regulatory authorities.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Unsecured Creditors entitled to attend and vote at the said
meeting may vote in person or by proxy, provided that a proxy in the prescribed form, duly
signed by you or your authorised signatory, is deposited at the registered office of the Transferee
Company at “23A Netaji Subhas Road, 8" Floor, Suite No 15, Kolkata- 700001”, not later than
48 hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the said meeting. The form of proxy

can be obtained free of cost from the registered office of the Transferee Company.

Copies of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230(3), 232 and 102
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as indicated in the Index, can be
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obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Transferee Company at 23A, Netaji Subhas
Road 8™ Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata - 700001 or at the office of its authorised representative
being S. Jaykishan, Chartered Accountants, Kankaria Estates, 6, Little Russel Street, 4% Floor,
Kolkata - 700071.

As per the NCLT Order, the quorum for the said meeting is two (2) unsecured creditors personally
present and in case the quorum is not present at the commencement of the meeting, then the
meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter the person present and voting shall be
deemed to constitute the quorum.

It is pertinent to note that Section 230(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, inter-alia, provides that,
unsecured creditors having outstanding debt of not less than 5% of the total outstanding debt
as per the audited financial statement for the year ended on 315t March, 2018 of the Transferor

Company, are only entitled to raise objections to the said Scheme of Amalgamation.

The NCLT has appointed Mr. Mohan Ram Goenka to be the Chairman of the said meeting including
any adjournment thereof.

The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid meeting, will be subject to the approval of the NCLT.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement, under Section 230(3), 232 and 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)

Rules, 2016, the Scheme and the other enclosures as indicated in the Index are enclosed.

Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Mohan Ram Goenka
Date: 27 January, 2019 Chairman appointed for the meeting

Notes of the NCLT Convened Meeting:

1. AN UNSECURED CREDITOR OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE NCLT CONVENED MEETING (THE“MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH
PROXY NEED NOT BE ANUNSECURED CREDITOR OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY.
THE PROXY FORM DULY COMPLETED SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
SCHEDULED TIME OF THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of unsecured creditors not exceeding fifty unsecured
creditors and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total value of amount
outstanding to unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company. An unsecured creditor
holding more than ten percent of the total value of the amount outstanding to the unsecured
creditors of the Transferee Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as

proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other unsecured creditor.
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10.

11.

All alterations made in the Proxy Form should be initialled.

Explanatory Statement for the proposed Resolution pursuant to Section 230(3), 232 and
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with applicable rules thereunder setting out material
facts forms part of this Notice. Also all the annexures as mentioned above in the index and

attached to this Notice forms part of this notice.

Only an unsecured creditor of the Transferee Company may attend and vote (either in person
or by proxy or by authorized representative of a body corporate under Sections 112 and 113
of the Companies Act, 2013) at the NCLT Convened Meeting. The Authorised Representative
of a body corporate which is a unsecured creditor of the Transferee Company may attend and
vote at the Meeting, provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors
under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 /Power of Attorney/ Letter of Authority or other
governing body of the body corporate is deposited at the registered office of the Transferee
Company not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the

meeting authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the NCLT Convened Meeting.

The unsecured Creditors are requested to hand over the enclosed Attendance Slip, duly

signed for admission to the meeting hall.

In terms of the directions contained in the NCLT’s Order, the quorum for the Meeting shall be

2 (Two) unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company, present in person.

The queries, if any, related to the Scheme should be sent to the Transferee Company in the
name of Mr. Bajrang Lal Sharma, Company Secretary at its registered office at least 7 (seven)

days before the meeting.

The documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for
inspection by the unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company at the registered office of
the Transferee Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays
between 10.00 A.M. to 01.00 p.m. upto the date of the meeting i.e. 13" February, 2019.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if the resolution mentioned in the Notice have been approved
at the Meeting by the majority of such unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company, voting

in person or by proxy as prescribed under section 230-232 read with the Rules thereunder.

Mr. N Gurumurthy, Partner of Maroti & Associates, Chartered Accountants, has been
appointed as the scrutinizer for scrutinizing the process of voting at the venue of the meeting

in a fair and transparent manner.

As directed by the NCLT, Kolkata Bench in its Order the Transferee Company shall serve the
notice as per the requirements of Section 230 of the Act along with all relevant documents to

all the statutory and regulatory authorities, as may be applicable.
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Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3), 232 and Section 102 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions

1.

A Scheme of Amalgamation between Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (Transferee
Company) and Equal Commodeal Private Limited (Transferor Company) and their respective
Shareholders, has been proposed and approved by the Board of Directors of the Applicant
Companies at its meeting held on 13" August, 2018 respectively. The other definitions
contained in the Scheme of Amalgamation between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company and their respective shareholders (herein after referred to as the “Scheme” or
“Scheme of Amalgamation”) will also apply to this statement under Sections 230(3), 232
and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Explanatory Statement”).

The Scheme of Amalgamation, if approved by the required number of Equity Shareholders

and the creditors, shall be operative from the Appointed Date.

Particulars of the Transferor Company

1.

The Transferor Company was incorporated on March 09, 2011 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 as an unlisted private company limited by shares. The Company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company. There has been no change in the name
of the Transferor Company since incorporation. The Corporate Identification Number of the
Transferor Company is US51909WB2011PTC160507. The Permanent Account Number of the
Transferor Company is AACCE6455E.

The Registered Office of Transferor Company is situated at 72 /4, Shambhunath Pandit Street,
Kolkata — 700026, West Bengal. There has been no change in the registered office address of
the Transferor Company in last five (5) years. The e-mail address of the Transferor Company

is itefilingindia l Q@gmail.com

The objects for which Transferor Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum

of Association. Some of the relevant objects of Transferor Company are, inter alia, as follows:

a. To carry on, *whether directly or through its subsidiary or joint venture companies, the
business of trader, buyers, sellers retails, suppliers, commission agents, broker merchants,
sub-agents, wholesaler’s retailer’s, indenting agents, stockists, distributors, dealers,
buying, selling, marketing net marketing, whole selling consignor, supplying distributor,
dealer of all types of readymade garments, lifestyle products, furnishings and to operate
retail stores and also act as C&F agents, broker, franchisee for all types of business including
readymade garments, forum and lifestyle products, homecare products and dealing in
herbs, herbal products and natural derivates’ for a enhancing mental power and physical

strength, Preferable electronics & electrical goods, consumer goods, household goods
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Industrial Goods, Engineering goods, Electrical and Electronics products, Food articles,
Sugar, Spices, Pulses, Agricultural products and its by products, non-conventional energy
products. Hardware and stores, Plant and machinery, stores, spare parts and accessories
commercials, natural and man-made fibre, clothes and fabrics, garments, synthetic and
polythene products, laminated cloth jute and jute goods, packing materials, paper and
paper products, plastics and plastic products, polythene and polythene products, Granules,
Petro-Chemicals and petroleum products, *Coke tar, tar by-products, any kind of by-
products based on Coal Tar distillation including Naphthalene, SNF, battery Cell, Carbon
Black and all types of advanced carbon materials, leather and leather products, Footwear
rubber and rubber products, Carpets, plantation crops i.e. tea, cotton coffee, tobacco,
vegetables and other eatables, milk and milk products, confectionaries, Ice-cream, dairy
products, spices, pickles, kirana food products, marine products, sea foods, paper, sugar
& molasses, medicines, drugs, pharmaceuticals, cosmetics goods, all kinds of cements,
steels, zinc &alloys, scraps, minerals & materials, ore, petroleum products, industrial and
other gases, alcohol, edible and non-edible oils & oil seeds, fats, soap, detergents, adhesive,
Paint & varnishes, dyes &chemical fertilizers, manures, drugs & pesticides, acids, wood &
wood Products, furnishing materials, building automobile parts & devices, electronic goods,
Computers, Computer software & hardware, watches, novelties, bullion, precious stones,

work of art, antiques, curious, jewelries. .

b. To carry on the business or businesses of a holding and investment company, and to buy,
underwrite and to invest in and acquire and hold shares, stocks, debentures, debenture
stock, bonds, obligation or securities of companies or partnership firms or body corporates
or any other entities whether in India or elsewhere either singly or jointly with any other
person(s), body corporate or partnership firm or any other entity carrying out or proposing

to carry out any activity whether in India or elsewhere in any manner.

c. Tolend and advance money and assets of all kinds or give credit on any terms or mode and
with or without security to any individual, firm, body corporate or any other entity (including
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing any holding company, subsidiary or
associate company of, or any other company whether or not associated in any way with,
the company ), to enter into guarantees, contracts of indemnity and suretyship of all kinds,
to receive money on deposits or loan upon any terms, and to secure or guarantee in any
manner and upon any terms the payment of any sum of money or the performance of any
obligation by any person, firm or company (including without prejudice to the generality
of the foregoing any holding company, subsidiary or associate company of, or any other

company associated in any way with, the company).

The object clause of the Transferor Company was last amended by passing a special resolution
at the EGM held on 29" May, 2014.



4. The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Transferor Company as
on 315t March, 2018 was as follows:

Authorised Share Capital 1,00,000
10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital, in cash 1,00,000
10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,000

5. Subsequent to 315t March 2018, there has not been any change in the Authorised, Issued or
Paid-up Share Capital of the Transferor Company.

Particulars of the Transferee Company

6. The Transferee Company was incorporated on July 28, 1987 as a private company limited
by shares under the name of Himadri Castings Private Limited under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. Thereafter its’ name was changed from Himadri Castings Private
Limited to Himadri Chemicals & Industries Private Limited on 20%™ November 1991 and
further it became a limited company with effect from 27" November 1991. The name of
the transferee company was further changed to Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited with
effect from July 27, 2016. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferee Company is
L27106WB1987PLC042756. The Permanent Account Number of the Transferee Company is
AAACH7475H. The shares of the Transferee Company are listed on National Stock Exchange
of India Ltd. and BSE Limited.

7. The Registered Office of the Transferee Company is situated at 23A, Netaji Subhas Road,
Floor 8, Suite No: 15, Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal. During the last five years and with
effect from 15 June 2015 the registered office of the Transferee Company changed from Ruby
House, 8 India Exchange Place, 22¢ Floor, Kolkata — 700 001 to 23A Netaji Subhas Bose Road,
8™ Floor, Suite No 15, Kolkata — 700 001, within the same city. The e-mail address of the
Transferee Company is blsharma@himadri.com,

8. The objects for which the Transferee Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum
of Association. Some of the relevant objects of the Transferee Company are as follows:

a. To carry on the business of Manufacturers and processors of dealers in, exporters and
importers of all grades, types, qualities, shapes, categories and description of alloy, tool and
special steels, Including alloy constructional steel In carbon, manganese, nickel, chromium,
nickel-chromium (NiCr), nickel-chromium molybdenum (Nicrmb), chromium molybdenum
corrosion resisting steels, stainless and heat resisting steels, free cutting steels, silicon
manganese steels, spring steels, carbon and alloy tool and die steels, high speed steels,
cold and hot working steels, amour steels, magnet steels, electrical steels, hot rolled and
cold rolled grunion oriented electrical steels, all types of alloying materials required for

manufacture of alloy, tool and special steels such as Ferro-silicon, Ferro-manganese, Ferro-
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vanadium, Ferro molybdenum, Ferro-tungsten, Ferrochrome, silicon-manganese, Ferro-
vanadium, Ferromolybdenum, Ferro-tungsten, ferrochrome, silicon-manganese, silicon-
calcium, nickel, copper, cobalt aluminum, baronatianium niobium, pig Iron, cast iron,
scrap Iron, wrought Iron, mild steel castings and steel forgings in all the categories of
steel described herein above, all types of refectory bricks and materials coke tar, and tar
byproducts, ferrous and non-ferrous metals and products thereof, Ingots, Slabs, billets,
sheets, sections angles, wires strips flats, rounds and as processor of metal, ferrous and
non-ferrous, Into castings, forgings, rolling, re-roiling, galvanizing, drawing, extruding
Including of finished or semi-finished goods. Agricultural equipment’s, Automobile parts,
Machine tools, other hand tools, jigs, fixtures, tine blades, tubes, pipes and to act as metal
workers machines, iron & steel worker, smiths, metallurgists & buyers and sellers of all

Items mentioned above and Hard wares and allied products.

b. To carry on the business of iron founders, Civil and mechanical engineers, consulting
engineers, project engineers, technical consultants, and manufacturers of agricultural,
industrial, and other machinery, and tool bits, machine tool-makers, brass founders metal
workers, boiler-maker, makers of locomotive and engines of every description, mill-Wright,
machinists, iron and steel converters, smiths, woodworkers, builders, painters, chemists,
metallurgists, electrical engineers, water supply engineers, gas makers, farmers, printers
carriers and to buy, sale, design, specify, manufacture, fabricate, expel, repair convert, alter,
let on hire and deal in machinery, implements, plants tool, tackles, instruments, rolling stock
and hardware of all kinds, general fittings, accessories and appliances of all descriptions
made from metal, alloy, glass or any other materials and any parts of such accessories or
fittings and generally to carry on business as merchants, importers and exporters and to
transact and carry on all kinds of agency business of the aforesaid products.

There has been no change in the object clause of the Transferee Company in the last 5 years.

9. The Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of Carbon
Materials & Chemicals.

10. The Transferee Company holds the entire paid up share capital of the Transferor Company.
As such, the Transferor Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company.

11. The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Transferee Company as

on 315t March, 2018 was as follows:

Authorised Share Capital 700,000,000
700,000,000 Equity Shares of Re.1 /- each 700,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital, in cash 418,407,867
418,407,867 Equity Shares of Re.1 /- each 418,407,867

Subsequent to 31t March 2018, there has not been any change in the Authorised, Issued or
Paid-up Share Capital of the Transferee Company.
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12. Salient features and Rationale for the Scheme

1. This Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee

Company and the consequent treatment of assets and liabilities of respective companies

in the manner provided for in the Scheme.

2. The Transferee Company as the parent would like to integrate and consolidate its

subsidiary. The circumstances that justify the proposed scheme and its main benefits

are inter-alia, summarised as under:

a.

The Transferee Company would be able to operate more effectively with a larger asset
base available resulting into better turnover and profits which if not merged, would
remain idle with the Transferor Company which is not able to carry on any business

effectively.

To achieve greater integration and greater financial strength and flexibility, to

maximise overall shareholder value.

To achieve cost savings from more focused operational efforts, rationalisation,
standardisation and simplification of business processes, productivity improvements

and rationalization of administrative expenses.

Some facilities such as manpower, office space and other infrastructure could be
better utilized by the Transferee Company and duplication of facilities could be
avoided resulting in economic, efficient and optimum use of facilities to the advantage
of the Transferee Company and achieve cost savings from more focussed operational

efforts, rationalisation, standardisation and simplification of business processes.

The merger will result in significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances required at present to be carried on by the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company.

The merger will result in economies of scale, reduction in overheads including
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, organisational efficiency and

optimal utilisation of resources.

AAT Global Limited, currently a step-down subsidiary of HSCL, will become direct
subsidiary, leading to improvement in corporate governance and control over the said

Company.

The banks, creditors and financial institutions, if any, are in no manner affected

adversely by the proposed merger as their security and asset cover will be maintained.

13. The merger of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, pursuant to and in

accordance with this Scheme, shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date.
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14. Definitions

In the Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions

shall have the following meaning:

()

(©

(e)

(8

(h)

(i)

0)
(k)

“Act” - shall mean (a) the Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time, for the
time being in force; and/ or (b) the Companies Act, 2013, as the case may be including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force; the terms

“Act” and “Section” shall be construed accordingly.

“Applicable Law” means the Act, and as appropriate, includes any statute, law, listing
agreement, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree, bye-law, clearance,
directive, guideline, policy, requirement, notifications and clarifications or other
Governmental instruction or any similar form of decision of, or determination by, or any
interpretation or administration having the force of law of any of the foregoing, by any
Governmental authority having jurisdiction over the matter in question, or mandatory

standards as may be applicable from time to time.

“Appointed Date” means the date from which this Scheme becomes operative, viz.,
April 1, 2018 or such other date as the NCLT or such other authority having powers to

sanction the Scheme under the Applicable law, may direct.

“Board of Directors” in relation to the Transferor Companyand/or the Transferee
Company, as the case may be, shall, unless it is repugnant to the context or otherwise,
include a Committee of Directors or any person authorized by the Board of Directors or
such Committee of Directors.

“Clause” means a clause in this Scheme.

“Closing Date/Effective Date” means the date or the dates on which the certified copy
of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies

by the Transferor and the Transferee Company, as may be applicable.

Reference in this Scheme of the date of ‘coming into effect of this Scheme’ or ‘this Scheme
becoming effective’ or ‘upon this Scheme becoming effective’ or ‘effectiveness of this

Scheme’ shall mean the Closing/Effective Date.

“Governmental Authority” means any applicable Central, State or local Government,
legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any
court, tribunal, board, bureau or instrumentality thereof or arbitration or arbitral body

having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

“NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal under the
Companies Act, 2013

“Part” means a part of this Scheme.

“Party” means a party to this Scheme and “Parties” shall be construed accordingly.
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“Scheme of Merger” or “This Scheme” or “The Scheme” or “Scheme” means this
scheme of merger, in its present form or with any modification(s) as approved or imposed

by the NCLT or any other authority as may be authorized for approval of the Scheme.

“Transferee Company” means Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited, a company
incorporated on 28% day of July 1987 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
having CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756 and having its registered office at 23A, Netaji
Subhas Road, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 001, West Bengal.

“Transferor Company” means Equal Commodeal Private Limited, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on March 9, 2011 having
CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507 in the State of West Bengal having its Registered Office
at 72/4, Shambhunath Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700026, West Bengal.

“Undertaking of Transferor Company” or “Undertaking” shall include (without

limitation) their entire business and:

(i) any and all their assets, whether movable or immovable, whether present or future,
whether tangible or intangible, all rights, title, interests, covenants, undertakings,
including continuing rights, title and interests in connection with the land and the
buildings thereon, whether leasehold or otherwise, plant and machinery, whether
leased or otherwise, together with all present and future liabilities including contingent

liabilities and debts appertaining thereto;

(ii) any and all investments (including shares and other securities), income by whatever

name called, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon;

(iii) any and all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, industrial and other licenses,
approvals, consents, exemptions, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits,
quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses, certificates, tenancies, trade names, trademarks,
service marks, copyrights, domain names, sales tax credits, income tax credits,
applications for trade names, trademarks, service marks, copyrights, privileges and
benefits of all contracts, agreements, applications and all other rights including lease
rights, licenses and registrations, powers and facilities of every kind and description

whatsoever, pertaining to the Transferor Company;

(iv) any and all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations, present or

future, whether secured or unsecured, of the Transferor Company;

(v) all contracts including but not restricted to leave & licence agreements, term sheets,
lease deeds, memorandum of understandings, business/asset purchase agreements,
memoranda of agreement, memoranda of agreed points, letters of agreed points,
arrangements, undertakings whether written or otherwise, lease rights, deeds, bonds,
other agreements, applications and instruments of whatsoever nature to which any of

the Transferor Company is a party and having effect immediately before the Effective
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(vi)

(vii)

Date, shall remain in full force and effect in favour of and/ or against the Transferee
Company and may be enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor

Company, the Transferee Company had been a party thereto;

any and all employees, who are on the pay roll of the Transferor Company, including
those engaged at their respective offices and branches, if any, at their current terms

and conditions;

any pending suit/appeal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature relating to the
Transferor Company, whether by or against any of the Transferor Company, shall
not abate, be discontinued or in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the
amalgamation of the Transferor Company or because of the provisions contained
in this Scheme, but the proceedings shall continue and any prosecution shall be
enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same
extent as they would or might have been continued, prosecuted and/or enforced by

or against the Transferor Company, if this Scheme had not been made;

(viii) all the tax liabilities under the applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/duties/

(%)

levies (“Tax Laws”) allocable or related to the business of the Transferor Company

shall be transferred to the Transferee Company; and

any refunds/ credits/ claims under the Tax Laws due to the Transferor Company
(including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular assessment
tax and service tax credits) shall also belong to and be availed of or received by the

Transferee Company.

since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special
reservations, holidays, incentives, concessions and other authorizations, shall stand
vested by the order of sanction of the NCLT or any other authority as may be authorized
for approval of the Scheme in the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall
file the relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory authorities who shall take

them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders of the sanctioning courts.

all necessary records, files, papers, computer programmes, websites, domain names,
manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists of present
and former customers, customer credit information, customer pricing information,
and other records, whether in physical form or electronic form in connection with or

relating to the Transferor Company;

(xii)any and all advance monies, earnest monies and/or security deposits, payment

against warrants or other entitlements, in connection with or relating to the Transferor

Company;



15.

16.

17.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing mentioned hereinabove, the term

4

“Undertaking of Transferor Company” shall include the entire business which is being
carried out under the name and style of the Transferor Company as the case may be, and
shall include the advantages of whatsoever nature, agreements, allotments, approvals,
arrangements, authorizations, benefits, capital work-in-progress, concessions, rights and
assets, industrial and intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever and licenses
in respect thereof, intangibles, investments, leasehold rights, liberties, patents, permits,
powers of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, privileges, provision funds, quota
rights, registration, reserves, and all properties, movable and immovable, real, corporeal or
incorporeal, wheresoever situated, right to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile,
connections, installations and other communication facilities and equipment’s, tenancy
rights, titles, trademarks, trade names, all other utilities held by Transferor Company or to
which Transferor Company is entitled to on the Appointed Date and cash and bank balances,
all earnest moneys and/or deposits including security deposits paid by Transferor Company
and all other interest wheresoever situated, belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession of or in the control of or vested in or granted in favor of or enjoyed by or arising to

Transferor Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon this Scheme becoming effective, and subject to
the provisions of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall, pursuant to Section 230 read
with section 233 of the Act and/or any other applicable provisions of the Act, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed
to have been and stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going
concern so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets, rights, title and

interests and authorities of the Transferee Company.

Corporate Approvals

The proposed Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company
at its meeting held on 13™ August, 2018. All the Directors present at the meeting voted in

favour of the Scheme. None of the directors attending the meeting voted against the Scheme.

The proposed Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company
at its meetings held on 13™ August, 2018. All the Directors present voted in favour of the
Scheme. None of the directors attending the meeting voted against the Scheme. Two directors
namely Mr. Suryakant Balkrishna Mainak and Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary did not attend
the meeting held on August 13, 2018.

Approvals and actions taken in relation to the Scheme

The Transferor Company will obtain such necessary approvals/sanctions/no objection(s)

from the regulatory or other governmental authorities, if so required.
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18. Effect of the Scheme

(1)

(i)

Key Managerial Personnel

The Scheme does not affect the Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferee Company.

There are no Key Managerial Personnel in the Transferor Company.

Directors

The Scheme does not affect the Directors of the Transferee Company or the Transferor
Company except as mentioned hereinafter. The Directors of the Transferee Company
shall continue to hold their position as Director on the Board of the Transferee Company.
The Directors of the Transferor Company shall cease to be Directors of the Transferor
Company, consequent to dissolution of the Transferor Company upon the Scheme

becoming effective.

(iii) Promoters and Non-Promoters

The Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Transferee Company. The entire
paid up share capital of the Transferor Company is held by the Transferee Company and
its nominee and the same shall stand cancelled on the Scheme becoming effective and
no shares will be issued by Transferee Company to Transferor Company. Further, Save
as aforesaid, the rights and interest of the Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders of

Companies involved in the Scheme will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme.

(iv) Depositors and Deposit Trustee

(v)

There are no depositors and Deposit Trustee in the Transferee Company or the Transferor

Company.

Creditors and Debenture holders and Debenture Trustee

Post sanction of the Merger the rights and interests of Secured Creditors and Unsecured
Creditors including the Debenture Holders and Debenture Trustee of the Transferee
Company or the secured and unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company will not be
prejudicially affected by the Scheme as no sacrifice or waiver is, at all called from them

nor their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

(vi) Employees: Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme:

The rights and interests of the employees, if any, of the Transferor Company will not
be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as such employees will become employees of
Transferee Company at the agreed terms and conditions without any break or interruption

in service.
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You are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully acquainted with the

provisions thereof. The aforesaid are only some of the salient extracts thereof.

19. Other matters

()

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

The accounting treatment as proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The certificate
issued by B S R & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants is open for inspection.

A report adopted by the directors of the Applicant Companies explaining effect of Scheme
on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter
shareholders laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special

valuation difficulties, if any is attached herewith to this Notice.

Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the creditors, either secured or unsecured
of the Transferor Company except to the extent that upon the effectiveness of Part II of
the Scheme, the creditors belonging to the Undertaking of the Transferor Company shall
become the creditors of the Transferee Company in the manner as provided in the Scheme.
No compromise is offered under the Scheme to any of the creditors of the Transferor
Company. The liability of the creditors of the Transferor Company, under the Scheme, is
neither being reduced nor being extinguished. The creditors of the Transferor Company
would in no way be affected by the present Scheme. The creditors of the Transferor

Company have given their written consents by way of affidavits to the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, on and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company undertakes
to engage all the Employees, if any, of the Transferor Company pertaining to the
Transferor Undertaking on the same terms and conditions on which they are engaged by
the Transferor Company without any interruption of service and in the manner provided
thereunder. In no way the rights of the Employees of the Transferor Company would be

affected by the Scheme.

Further, none of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act
and rules framed thereunder) of the Transferor Company and their respective relatives
(as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme
except to the extent of the equity shares held by them in the Transferor Company and/or
to the extent that the said Director(s) are common director(s) of the Transferor Company
or the Transferee Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the
Key Managerial Personnel has any material interest in the Scheme. None of the directors
are common to the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company involved in the
proposed Scheme of Amalgamation. Further, none of the directors or KMPs of the Transferor

Company or the Transferee Company are holding any shares in the Transferor Company
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or the Transferee Company, except that one of the Director of Transferee Company, Mr.
Bankey Lal Choudhary, holds 100 shares in Transferor Company as a nominee of the
holding company just to comply with the requirement of minimum number of members
and One of the Director of the Transferor Company Mr. Swapan Bhadra, holds 1000

shares in the Transferee Company.

(f) No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the
Transferor Company or the Transferee Company under Sections 210 to 229 of Chapter
XIV of the Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956. Further, no
proceedings are pending under the Act or under the corresponding provisions of the Act

of 1956 against the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company.

(g) To the knowledge of the Transfer or Company, no winding up proceedings have been filed

or are pending against it under the Act or the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956.

(h) As on 31t March, 2018, a total of Rs. 3107.51 lakhs was due to unsecured Creditors
respectively of the Transferor Company. As on the said date, the Transferor Company did

not have any Secured Creditors.

(i) As on 31%t March, 2018 an amount of Rs. 62,566.35 lakhs and Rs. 22983.92 lakhs was
due to Secured and Unsecured Creditors respectively of the Transferee Company. The
Transferee Company shall repay the Secured and Unsecured Creditors in normal course

of business.

() In as much as the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee
Company,the shares held by the Transferee Company in the share capital of the Transferor
Company will be cancelled under the Scheme and there will not be any issuance of shares
under the Scheme. As such, valuation report is not required under the provisions of the

SEBI Circulars read with other applicable provisions.

20. The details of the promoters of the Transferor Company are as under:

Sl
~ Promoters of Transferor Company
o
Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd 23A Netaji Subhas Road
1. (Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries | 8" Floor, Suite No 15
Limited) Kolkata- 700 001
5 Mr. Bankey Lal Choudhary 400, Block “G”, New Alipore
' (Nominee of Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd) Kolkata- 700 053
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21. The details of the promoters of the Transferee Company are as under:

Sl. No | Promoters of Transferee Company ‘ Address
1 Mr. Damodar Prasad Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata- 700 053
2 Mr. Shyam Sundar Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
3 Mr. Bankey Lal Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
4 Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
5 Mrs. Sushila Devi Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
6 Mrs. Saroj Devi Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
7 Mrs. Sheela Devi Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
8 Mrs. Kanta Devi Choudhary 400, Block —“G” New Alipore, Kolkata - 700 053
9 Himadri Dyes & Intermediates Ltd 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8% Floor, Kolkata- 700001
10 | Himadri Credit & Finance Limited 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700001
11 Himadri Coke and Petro Limited 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8% Floor, Kolkata- 700001
12 | Himadri Industries Limited 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8% Floor, Kolkata- 700001

22. The details of the shareholding of the present Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
of the Transferor Company and their respective shareholdings in Transferor and Transferee
Company are as follows:

Shareholding | Shareholding
S1. No | Name of director/KMP | Address in Transferor | in Transferee

Company Company

Directors

Chakchandul, Mahestala, South 24
1 Mr. Swapan Bhadra NIL 1000
Paraganas, Kolkata- 700140

20, P. C. Lahiri Sarani, PO - Sinthee
. Baranagar (M)

2 Mr. Gajendra Bansal NIL NIL
North 24 Paraganas,

Kolkata - 700050

Key Managerial Personnel

NIL NIL NIL NIL

The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company, however for
maintaining minimum number of member’s requirement, 100 Shares are held by Mr. Bankey
Lal Choudhary as nominee of the Company. One of the Director of the Transferor Company Mr.
Swapan Bhadra, holds 1000 shares in the Transferee Company.
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23. The details of the shareholding of the present Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the

Transferee Company and their respective shareholdings in Transferee and Transferor Company are as

follows:
Shareholding | Shareholding
Sl. No | Name of director/KMP | Address in Transferee | in Transferor
Company Company
Directors
100 (as
Mr. Bankey Lal 400, Block “G” New Alipore nominee of
1 14,84,280
Choudhary Kolkata- 700053 Transferee
Company)
Mr. Shyam Sundar 400, Block “G” New Alipore
2 32,34,280 NIL
Choudhary Kolkata- 700 053
Mr. Vijay Kumar 400, Block “G” New Alipore
3 32,66,640 NIL
Choudhary Kolkata- 700 053
A4/6, KMDA, PANCH SAYAR,
Mr. Sakti Kumar Baitalik Co-Operative Housing
4 . ) . NIL NIL
Banerjee Society, E-M Bypass, Highland Park,
Flat No. 6, Kolkata- 700 094
. Vill & Post: KAIKALA, PS- Haripal,
S Mr. Santimoy Dey . NIL NIL
Dist- Hooghly — 712405 (WB)
14/2, Old China Bazar Street,
Mr. Hanuman Mal
6 . 4% Floor, Room No; 401, Kolkata- NIL NIL
Choraria
700001
7 Mr. Hardip Singh Mann | F-108, Sector- 56, NOIDA- 20130, UP | NIL NIL
. Building 5B, F1/F2, Models Millenium
8 Smt Rita Bhattacharya ) NIL NIL
Vistas, Caranzalem, GOA- 403002
Ganges Garden, A-1& B-8, 3™ Floor,
Mr. Santosh Kumar . .
9 106, K C Singha Road, Shibpur, NIL NIL
Agrawala
Howrah- 711102
B-1503, Oberoi Woods Mohan, Gokhale
Mr. Suryakant .
10 . . Marg, Off Western Express Highway, NIL NIL
Balkrishna Mainak .
Goregaon (East), Mumbai- 400063
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. A houdhary- | 400, Block “G” Ali ,
L r. Anurag Choudhary- | 400, Block “G” New Alipore NIL NIL
CEO Kolkata- 700 053
Mr. Amit Choudhary- 400, Block “G” Ali ,
5 L./ mit C O},ld ary 00, Block “G” New Alipore NIL NIL
President, Projects Kolkata- 700 053
3 Mr. Tushar Choudhary | 400, Block “G” New Alipore, NIL NIL
" | President, Operations Kolkata- 700 053
4 Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Habitat Greens, 240 NSC Bose Road, NIL NIL
" | Agarwal- CFO Flat 1E , Kolkata — 700 040
Mr. Baj Lal Sh - | 117/4, Andul Road, Flat No 2A, Floor-2
5 r. Bajrang Lal Sharma /4, Andul Roa at No oor NIL NIL

Company Secretary

Howrah- 711103 (WB)
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Shareholding | Shareholding

S1. No | Name of director/ KMP in Transferee | in Transferor

Key Managerial Personnel

Company Company

6. |- President, Carbon Black | Raghunathpur, North 24 Parganas, West | NIL NIL

Dr. Soumen Chakraborty | Space Town, Block-4, Flat-F 5,

Division Bengal - 700 052

7. — Business Head,

Mr. Monojit Mukherjee 18, Kailash, 12 Earle Street,

PO - Kalighat, Kolkata - 700026 NIL NIL

Carbon Black Division

Mr. Somesh Satnalika

_ Vice President, Flat 19H, Tower 4, South City

Residency, 375, Prince Anwar Shah NIL NIL

Strategy & Business Road, Kolkata - 700 068
Development
Mr. Santanu Chatterjee | 20A Ballygunge Station Rd Uttaran
9. |- Senior Vice President, | Appartment, 2nd Floor, Flat No 3, NIL NIL

HR and Administration | Kolkata 700019 W.B

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Since the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company, none of the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferee Company hold any shares in the Transferor
Company except that one of the Director of Transferee Company, Mr. Bankey Lal Choudhary, holds
100 shares in Transferor Company as a nominee of the holding company just to comply with the

requirement of minimum number of members.

The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and no shares will
be issued by the Transferee Company. There will be no change in the paid up capital and shareholding

pattern of the Transferee Company post amalgamation.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and pursuant to Section 232(3) of the Companies Act 2013,
the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferor Company shall be deemed to be added to that of
the Transferee Company without any further act, instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee
Company. Provided however that pursuant to this Scheme only such amount of Authorised Capital of
the Transferor Company would be added to the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferee Company
as can be raised by the Transferee Company by utilising the fees paid by the Transferor Company on
its Authorised Share Capital which is available for set-off against any fees payable by the Transferee

Company for increase of Authorised Share Capital.

On the Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of Equity Shareholders of the Transferee
Company and Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company, the Applicant
Companies shall file a joint petition with the National Company Law Tribunal at Kolkata for sanction
of the Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Scheme is not prejudicial to the interest of the members of the Applicant Companies.

The following documents will be open for inspection by the unsecured Creditors of the Transferee
Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays between 10.00 A.M. to
01.00 P.M. upto 13t day of February, 2019 at its registered office;
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(@) Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Transferor and Transferee Company approving

the Scheme of Amalgamation.
(b) Copy ofletters issued to the Stock Exchanges and SEBI for forwarding the Scheme of Amalgamation.
() Scheme of Amalgamation.

(d) Papers and proceedings in CA (CAA) No. 1008/KB/2018 including Certified Copy of the Order
of the National Company Law Tribunal at Kolkata in the said Company Application directing the
convening and holding of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders and meetings of the Secured

Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company.
() Memorandum and Articles of Association of Transferee Company and the Transferor company.

(f) Audited financial statements of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company for the financial
year ended 31.03.2018.

(g) Provisional balance sheet and profit and loss account of the Transferor Company as on 30" June,
2018 and Un-audited financial results for the quarter ended 30®* June, 2018 of the Transferee

Company.

(h) Register of Directors’ shareholdings of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company.

Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Mohan Ram Goenka
Date: 27 January, 2019 Chairman appointed for the meeting

Registered Office:

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756

23A, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata700001

Email: blsharma@himadri.com

Website: www.himadri.com
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UNDER SECTION 239 -232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2613

BETWEEN

EQUAL COMMGODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED

(TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

(TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

- !Page
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1.1.

1.2,

PART I: PREAMBLE

This Scheme of Merger (hereinafter referred to as the "Scheme") is presented under sections
230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and such other provisions of law as may
be applicable and provides for the merger of Equal Commodeal Private Limited (“ECPL”)
hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company”with Himadri Speciality Chemical
Limited (“HSCL” or the “Transferee Company™).

ECPL (“Transferor Company™) is an unlisted Private Company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on March 09, 20I1 Thaving
CIN:U51909WB201 1PTC160507in the State of West Bengal having its Registered Office at
72/4, Shambhunath Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700026, West Bengal.

ECPL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) of HSCL. The main objects as its stated in its
memorandum are as follows:

a.To carry on *whether directly or through its subsidiary or joint venture
companies, the husiness of trader, buyvers, sellers retails, suppliers, commission
agents, broker merchants, sub-agents, wholesaler’s retailer’s, indenting agents,
stockists, distributors, dealers, buying, selling, marketing net marketing, whole selling
consignor, supplying distributor. dealer of all types of readymade garments, lifestyle
products, furnishings and to operate retail stores and also act as C&F agents, broker,
Jranchisee for oll types of business including readymade garments, forum and lifestyle
products, homecare products and dealing in herbs, herbal products and natural
derivates’ for a enhancing mental power and physical strength, Preferable electronics
& electrical goods, consumer goods, household goods Industrial Goods, Engineering
goods, Electrical and Electromics products, Food articles, Sugar, Spices, Pulses,
Agricultural products and its by products, non-conventional energy products.
Hardware and stores, Plant and muchinery, stores, spare parts ond accessories
commercials, natural and man-made fibre, clothes and fabrics, garments, synthetic and
polythene products, laminated cloth jute and jute goods, packing materials, paper and
paper products, plastics and plastic products, polythene and polithene products,
Granules, Petro-Chemicals and petroleum products, *Coke tor, tar by-products, any
kind of by-products based on Coal Tar distillation including Naphthalene, SNF,
battery Cell, Carbon Black and all types of advanced carbon materials, leather and
leather products, Footwear rubber and rubber products, Carpets, plantation craps ie,
lea, cotion coffee, tobacco, vegetables and other eatables, milk and milk products,
confectionaries, Ice-cream, dairy products, spices, pickles, kirana food products,
marine products, sea foods, paper, sugar & molasses, medicines, drugs,
pharmaceuticals, cosmetics goods, all kinds of cements, steels, zinc &alloyvs, scraps,
minerals & materials, ore, petroleum products, industrial and other gases, alcohal,
edible and non-edible oils & oil seeds, fats, soap, detergents, adhesive, Paint &
varnishes, dyves &chemical fertilizers, manures, drugs & pesticides, acids, wood &
wood Products, furnishing materials, building automobile parts & devices, electronic
goods, Computers, Computer software & hardware, watches, novelties, bullion,
precious stones, work of art, antigues, curious, jewelry.

b. To carry on the business or businesses of a holding and investment compeny, and to buy,
underwrite and to invest in and acquive and hold shares, stocks, debentures, debenture
stock, bonds, obligation or securities of companies or partnership firms or body corporates
or any other entities whether in India or elsewhere either singly ov jointly with any other
person(s), body corporate or puarinership firm or any other entity careving out or
proposing to carry out any activity whether in India or elsewhere in any manner.

¢. To lend and advance money and assets of all kinds or give credit on any terms or
mode and with or without security to any individual, firm, body corporate or any other
entity (including without prefudice to the generality of the foregoing any holding
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14.

1.5.

company, subsidiary or ussociate company of, or any other company whether or not
associated in any way with, the company ), to enter into guarantees, contracts of
indemnity and suretyship of all kinds, to receive money on deposits or loon upon any
terms, and to secyre or guaraniee in any manner and upon any terms the payment of
any sum of money or the performance of any obligation by any person, firm or company
tincluding without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing any holding company,
subsidiary or associate company of, or any other company associated in any way with,
the company).

HSCL is a public limited company listed with the stock exchanges, incorporated on July 28,
1987 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 Thaving CIN:
L27106WBI1987PLC042756 and having its registered office at 23A, Netaji Subhas Roead,
Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal.

HSCL. is a manufacturer of carbon chemical and #s by-produets since its inception. HSCL is
engaged in the distillation of Coal tar to manufacture Naphthalene, battery cell, carbon black
and all types of advanced carbon materials etc. The main objects to be pursued by the
Company on its incorporation as stated in the memorandum inter-alia are as follows:

a.  To carry on the business of Manufacturers and processors of dealers in, exporters and
importers of all grades, types, qualities, shapes, categories and description of alloy, tool
and special steels, Including alloy constructional steel In carbon, manganese, nickel,
chromium, nickel-chromium (NiCr), nickel-chromium molybderum (Nicrmb), chromium
molybdenum corrosion resisting steels, stainless and heat resisting steels, free cutting
steels, silicon manganese steels, spring steels, carbon and allay tool and die steels, high
speed steels, cold and hor working steels, amour steels, magnet sieels, electrical steels,
hot rolled and cold rolled grunion oriented electrical steels, all types of alloving
materials requived for manufacture of alloy, tool and special steels such as Ferro-silicon,
Ferro-manganese, Ferro-vanadium, Ferro molybdenum, Ferro-tungsien, Ferrochrome,
silicon-manganese, Ferro-vanadium, Ferromolybdenum, Ferro-tungsten, ferrochrome,
silicon-manganese, silicon-calcium, nickel, copper, cobalt aluminum, baronatianium
niobium, pig fron, cast ivon, scrap Iron, wrought Iron, mild steel castings and steel
Jorgings in all the categories of steel described herein above, all bypes of refectory bricks
and materials coke tar, and tar byproducts, ferrous and non-ferrous metals and products
thereaf, Ingots, Slabs, billels, sheets, sections angles, wires sirips flats, rounds and as
Pprocessor of meial, ferrous and non-ferrous, Into castings, forgings, rolling, re-roiling,
galvanizing, drawing, extruding Including of finished or  semi-finished goods.
Agricultural equipmemt’s, Automobile paris, Machine tools, other hand fools, jigs.
Jixtures, tine blades, tubes, pipes and to act as metal workers machines, iron & steel
worker, smiths, metallurgists & buyers and seliers of all Items mentioned above and Hard
wares and allied products.

b, To carry on the business of ivon founders, Civil and mechanical engincers, consulting
engineers, project engineers, technical consultants, and manufacturers of agriculturdl,
industrial, and other machinery, and tool bits, machine tool-makers, brass founders metal
workers, boiler-maker, makers of locomotive and engines of every description, mill-
Wright, machinisis, iron and steel converters, smiths, woodworkers, builders, painters,
chemists, metallurgists, elecirical engineers, water supply engineers, gas makers,
Jarmers, printers cavviers and to buy, sale, design, specify, manufacture, fabricate, expel,
repair convert, alter, let on hire and deal in machivery, implements, plants tool, tackles,
instruments, volling stock and hardware of all kinds, general fittings, accessories and
appliances of ail descriptions made from metal, alloy, glass or any other materials and
any paris of such accessories or fittings and generally to carvy on business as merchanty,
importers and exporters and to transact and carry on all kinds of agency business of the
aforesaid products,
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¢. To carry on the business as declers, owner’s promoters, underwriters, developers,
consultants, advisers, brokers, agents, lessors’ contractors, investors, financiers,
guaraniors and nominators in any real or personal state including lands, mines, business,
building, factories, mill, houses, cottages, shops, depots, warehouses, multistoried
complexes, flats, roof rights, nomination vights, machinery, plant, stock-in-trade, mineral
rights, concessions. Privileges, licenses, easement or interest in or with respect to any
property for which purpose 1o acquive and purchase, take on lease fenancy or in
exchange, hire or by other means obiained ownership and/or options over any freehold or
other property for the said estate or Iiterest thereof any rights, privileges or easements
over or in respect of any property, land or any building and to turn Into account, develop
the same and dispose of ov maintain the same and to build township, markets or other
buildings or convenience thereon and to equip and maintain the same or any part thereof
with all or any amenities or conveniences, drainage facility, electric, air-conditioning
telegraphic, telephonic, relevision installations and to provide for the conveniences
commonly provided in flats, suites and residential and business quarters, and to deal
with the same in any manner whatsoever, and to build, take on lease and/or rent,
purchase or acquire in any manner whatsoever and departments houses, flats, room,
Aoors, huts, shops, roof rights or other accommodation and to let, lease owl, assign
nominate or dispose of the same on installment basis, hire purchase basis or by outright
safe whether by private treaty or by auction in or any other mode of disposition all or any
integral part thereof and for the purpose to lend or advance money with or without
security and to arrange, negotiate or guaraniee loan and to lend money to and guaraniee
the performance of contracts and obligations by any person or company and to the
payment of interest thereon.

d. To carry on the business of rendering services arid development of software packages for
Industrial, Commercial, Public Ukility, Entertainment, Personal, Domestic, Training,
Education, Medical, Dejense and ail other purpose and 1o establish and run Data
Processing Centers, Computers, Hardware and Sofiware Centre, Multimedic, Computer-
graphic, Architectural designs, CAD/CAM and Geographical information System Cenire,
E-commerce centers, website design, cyber network and all such activities relating to
Information Technology (IT) that are normally offered by such center lo commercial,
industrial, business, public utilities, advertisements, artistic, cultural, medical and other
ypes to end users In India or any part of the world and to aci as producers, assemblers,
repairs, maintenance agents, Importers, Exporters, Trades, Buyers, Sellers, Commission
Agents, Stockiest, Hirers, Designers, Royalty holders, Contractors for design, services,
Public Distribution and dealers in all types of software, Hardware, Computer Products
and allied accessories and services commected therewith including websile designing
Information technology having developurent of Software packages and progranss,

e. To promote, generale acquire by purchase in bulk, develop disiribute and accumulate
Power by wind, solar, hydro, thermal atomic, gas, ocean energy geo thermal or any other
Sform af energy both conventional and non-conventional, and to produce transmit,
distribute, sell and supply power for captive consumption and / or for other uses and to
own, acquire and operate coal mines in India or abroad and fo consiruct, establish and
setting of power stations and power projects.

F To start forward and backward integration projects for manvfacturing any kind of by-
Products based on Coal tar and distillation including Naphthalene, battery cell, carbon
black and all types of advanced carbon materials.

This Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company and the consequent treatment of assets and liabilities of respective companies in the
manner provided for in the Scheme,
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1.7.  As on 31 March 2018, the entire issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Transferor
Company is held by the Transferee Company,

1.8.  The Transferee Company as the parent would like to integrate and consolidate its subsidiary.
The circumstances that justify the proposed scheme and its main benefits are inter-alia,
summarised as under:

1.8.1.

1.8.2.

1.8.3,

1.8.4,

1.3.5.

1.8.6.

1.8.7,

1.8.8.

The Transferee Company would be able to operate more effectively with a larger
assel base available resulting into better turnover and profits which if not merged,
would remain idle with the Transferor Company which is not able to carry on any
business effectively.

To achieve greater integration and greater financtal strength and flexibility, to
maximise overall shareholder value.

To achieve cost savings from more focused operational efforts, rationalization,
standardization and simplification of business processes, productivity improvements
and rationalization of administrative expenses,

Some facilities such as manpower, office space and other infrastructure could be
better utilized by the Transferee Company and duplication of facilities could be
avoided resulting in economic, efficient and optimum use of facilities to the
advantage of the Transferee Company and achieve cost savings from more focussed
operational efforts, rationalisation, standardisation and simplification of business
processes.

The merger will result in significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and
reguiatory compliances required at present to be carried on by the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

The merger will result in economies of scale, reduction in overheads including
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, organisaticnal efficiency and
optimal utilisation of resources.

AAT Global Limited, currently a step-down subsidiary of HSCL, will become direct
subsidiary, leading to hmprovement in corporate governance and control over the
said Company.

The banks, creditors and financial institutions, if any, are in no manner affected
adversely by the proposed merger as their security and asset cover will be
maintained.

1.9. The merger of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, pursuant to and in
accordance with this Scheme, shail take place with effect from the Appointed Date (as
defined herein below).

1.10. The Scheme is divided into the following parts:
(a) Partlis the Preamble;
(b) Part II, which contains the definitions;
(c) Part III, which deals with the share capital of the Transferece Company and the

Transferor Company;

{d) Part IV, which deals with the transfer and vesting of the underiakings of the

Transferor Company with the Transferee Company;

I 5| b é. g.e




2.1.

(e) Part V, which deals with accounting treatment of merger in the books of the
Transferee Company; .

() Part VI, which deals with the dissolution of the Transferor Companyand general
terms and conditiens that would be applicable to the Scheme,

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally
connected herewith,

PART II: DEFINITIONS
Definitions

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions

shall have the following meaning:

(@) “Act” - shall mean (a) the Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time, for
the time being in force; and/ or (b) the Companies Act, 2013, as the case may be
including any statutory medification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force; the terms “Act” and “Section” shall be construed accordingly.

(b) “Applicable Law” means the Act, and as appropriate, includes any statute, law,
listing agreement, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree, bye-law,
clearance, directive, guideline, policy, requirement, notifications and clarifications or
other Governmental instruction or any similar form of decision of, or determination
by, or any interpretation or administration having the force of law of any of the
foregoing, by any Governmental authority having jurisdiction over the matter in
question, or mandatory standards as may be applicable from time to time,

(c) “Appointed Date” means the date from which this Scheme becomes operative, viz.,,
April 1, 2018er such other date as the NCLT or such other authority having powers to
sanction the Scheme under the Applicabie law, may direct.

(d) “Board of Directors “in relation to the Transferor Companyand/or the Transferee
Company, as the case may be, shall, unless it is repugnant to the context or otherwise,
include a Committee of Directors or any person authorized by the Board of Directors
or such Committee of Directors.

{e) “Clause® means a clause in this Scheme.

() *Closing Date/Effective Date” means the date or the dates on which the certified
copy of the order of the NCLT sanctiening the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor and the Transferee Company, as may be applicable,

() Reference in this Scheme of the date of ‘coming into effect of this Scheme’ or ‘this
Scheme becoming effective’ or ‘upon this Scheme becoming effective’ or
‘effectiveness of this Scheme’ shall mean the Closing/Effective Date.

(h) “Governmental Authority” means any applicable Central, State or local
Government, legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or
commission or any court, tribunal, board, bureau or instrumentality {hercof or
arbitration or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

()] “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal under
the Companies Act, 2013

() “Part” means a part of this Scheme.
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“Party” means a party to this Schemeand “Parties” shall be construed accordingly.

“Scheme of Merger” or “This Scheme” or “The Scheme” or “Scheme”means this
scheme of merger, in its present form or with any modification(s) as approved or
imposed by the NCLT or any other authority as may be authorized for approval of the
Scheme.

“Transferee Company” means Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited, a company
incorporated on 28™ day of July 1987 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 having CIN: L27106WBI1987PLC042756 and having its registered office at
23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8" Floar, Kolkata- 700 001, West Bengal.

“Transferor Company” meansEqual Commodeal Private Limited,a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956on March 9, 2011
having CIN: US1909WB2011PTC160507 in the State of West Bengal having its
Registered Office at 72/4, Shambhunath Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700026, West
Bengal.

“Undertaking of Transferor Company”or “Undertaking “shall include (without
limitation) their entire business and:

(i) any and all their assets, whether movable or immovable, whether present or
future, whether tangible or intangible, all rights, title, interests, covenants,
undertakings, including continuing rights, title and interests in connection with
the land and the buildings thereon, whether leasehold or otherwise, plant and
machinery, whether leased or otherwise, together with all present and future
liabilities including contingent liabilities and debts appertaining thereto;

{ii) any and all investments (including shares and other securities), income by
whatever name called, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon;

(iii} any and all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, industrial and other licenses,
approvals, consents, exemptions, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits,
quotas, rights, entitlements, liconses, certificates, tenancies, trade names,
trademarks, service marks, copyrights, domain names, sales tax credits, income
tax credits, applications for trade names, trademarks, service marks, capyrights,
privileges and benefits of all contracts, agreements, applications and afl other
rights including lease rights, licenses and registrations, powers and facilities of
every kind and description whatsoever, pertaining to the Transferor Company;

(iv) any and all debts, labilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations, present
or future, whether secured or unsecured, of the Transferor Company;

(v} all contracts including but not restricted to leave & licence agreements, term
sheets, lease deeds, memorandum of understandings, business/asset purchase
agreements, memoranda of agreement, memoranda of agreed points, letters of
agreed points, arrangements, undertakings whether written or otherwise, lease
rights, deeds, bonds, other agreements, applications and instruments of
whatsoever nature to which any of the Transferor Company is a party and
having effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall remain in full force
and effect in favour of and/ or against the Transferee Company and may be
enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the
Transferee Company had been a party thereto;
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(vi) any and all employees, who are on the pay roll of the Transferor Company,
including those engaged at their respective offices and branches, if any, at their
current terms and conditions;

(vii) any pending suit/appeal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature relating o the
Transferor Company, whether by or against any of the Transferor Company,
shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way prejudicially affected by reason of
the amalgamation of the Transferor Company or because of the provisions
contained in this Scheme, but the proceedings shall continue and any
prosecution shall be enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as they would or might have been continued,
prosecuted and/or enforced by or against the Transferor Company, if this
Scheme had not been made;

(vii)all the tax liabilities under the applicable laws/ regulations dealing with
taxes/duties /levies (“Tax Laws™} allocable or related to the business of the
Transferor Company shali be transferred to the Transferee Company; and

(ix) any refunds/ credits/ claims under the Tax Laws due to the Transferor Company
(including but not limited to advance tax, self~assessment tax, regular
assessment tax and service tax credits) shall also belong to and be availed of or
received by the Transferee Company.

(x) since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special
reservations, holidays, incentives, concessions and other authorizations, shall
stand vested by the order of sanclion of the NCLT or any other authority as may
be authorized for approval of the Scheme in the Transferee Company, the
Trapsferee Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the record of the
statutory authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders
of the sanctioning courts,

(xi) all necessary records, files, papers, computer programmes, websites, domain
names, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials,
lists of present and former customers, customer credit information, customer
pricing information, and other records, whether in physical form or electronic
form in connection with or relating to the Transferor Company;

(xif) any and all advance monies, earnest monies and/or security deposits, payment
against warrants or other entitlements, in connection with or relating to the
Transteror Company;

Withoul prejudice to the generality of the foregoing mentioned hereinabove, the term
“Undertaking of Transferor Company” shall include the entire business which is
being carried out under the name and style of the Transferor Company as the case
may be, and shall include the advantages of whatsoever nature, agreements,
allotments, approvals, arrangements, authorizations, benefits, capital work-in-
progress, concessions, rights and assets, industrial and intellectual property rights of
any nature whatsoever and licenses in respect thereof, intangibles, investments,
leaschold rights, liberties, patents, permits, powers of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever, privileges, provision funds, quota rights, regisiration,
reserves, and all properlies, movable and immovable, real, corporeal or incorporeal,
wheresoever situated, right to use and avaii of telephones, telexes, facsimile,
connections, installations and other communication facilities and equipment’s,
tenancy rights, titles, trademarks, teade names, all other utilities held by Transferor
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2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

3.1

Company or to which Transferor Company is entitled to on the Appointed Date and
cash and bank balances, all eamest moneys and/or deposits including security
deposits paid by Transferor Company and all other interest wheresoever situated,
belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession of or in the control of or vested
in or granted in favor of or enjoyed by or arising to Transferor Company.

The expressions, which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning as prescribed
to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, by-laws, as the case may
be, including any stamtory modification or re-enactment thereof, from time to time.

Any statatory medification or amendment to the Act or Applicable Law to the Scheme shall
not have any effect unless retroactive application of such modification or amendment can he
established or is explicit in the Act itself.

For the purpose, of representing and sanctioning of the Scheme the applicable authority shali
be the NCLT, or such other authority as may have powers to sanction the Scheme under the
Applicable Law.

PART HI: SHARE CAPITAL
The Share Capital of the Transferee Companyas on March 31, 2018, is as under:

Authorized Share Capital 700,000,000
700,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1 /- each 700,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 418,407,867
418,407,867Equity Shares of Re.1 /- each 418,407,867

The Share Capital of the Transferor Company as on March 31, 2018, is as under;

Authorised Share Capital 1,00,000
. 10,060 Equity shares of Rs.10 /- each 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital, in cash 1,00,800
| 10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 /- each 1,00,000

Sinee Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the ‘Transferec Company, the
entire issued share capital of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company and/or
its nominees shall stand cancelied on the Scheme being effective on the Clasing Date,
however, with effect from the Appointed date.

PART IV: AMALGAMATION, TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING OF THE

4.1.

TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY
With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming eflective, the entire
business and the whole of the undertaking(s), properties and liabilities of the Transferor
Company, in terms of Section 230-232 and applicable provisions, if any, of the Companics
Act 2013, and pursuant to the orders of the NCLT, Kolkata or cther appropriate authority or
forum, if any, sanctioning the Scheme, without any further act, instrument, deed, matier or




4.2,

4.3,

thing, stand transferred and vested in and/ or deemed to be transferred to and vested in
Transferee Company as a going concern so as to become the undertaking(s), properties and
liabilities of Transferee Company.

With cffect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire
business and undertaking of Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and be vested in
Transferee Company without any further deed or act, together with all their properties, assets,
rights, bonefits and interest therein, subject to existing charges thereon in favour of banks and
financial institutions, as the case may be, in the following manner:

Transfer of Assets

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

()

With effect from the Appointed Date upon the Scheme becoming ceffective all
memberships, licenses, franchises, rights, privileges, permits, quotas, rights,
entitlements, allotments, approvals, consents, concessions, trade mark licenses
including application for registration of trade mark, patents, copyrights and their right
to use available to Transferor Company as on appointed date or any which may be
taken afler the appointed date but till the effective date, shall get transferred to
Transferce Company without any further instrument, deed or act or payment of any
further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the Appointed Date upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
Certificate of Registrations as available with Transferor Company as on Appointed
Date ot any which may be taken by Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but
till the Effective Date, shall get transferred to Transferee Company without any further
instrument, deed or act or payment of any further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the appointed date and upon the scheme becoming effective all the
assets of the Transferor Company as are movable in nature including, but not limited
to, stock of goods, raw materials available in the market/ depots/ Godowns/ factories,
sundry debtors investments, plants and equipments, outstanding loans and advances,
insurance claims, advance tax, Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) set-off rights, pre-paid
taxes, levies/ liabilities, CEBVAT/ VAT credits/ GST credits, if any, recoverable in
cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, with
Government, Semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers and
other persons or any other assets otherwise capable of transfer by physical delivery
would get transferred by physical delivery only and all other assets would get
transferred by endorsement and delivery by vesting and recordable pursuant to this
Scheme, shall stand vested in Transferee Company, and shall become the property and
an integral part of Transferee Company without any further instrument, deed or act or
payment of any further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
incorporeal properties of Transferor Company as on Appointed Date or any which may
be taken after the Appointed Date but till the Effective Date, shall get teansferred to
Transferce Company without any further instrument, deed or act or payment of any
further fee, charge or securitics.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
immovable properties including but not limited to land and buildings or any other
immovable properties of Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold, and any
documents of title, rights and easements in relation thereto shall stand transferred to

_ and be vested in Transferee Company, without any further instrument, deed or act or
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

payment of any further fee, charge or securities either by the Transferer Company or
Transferee Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date, Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise
all rights and privileges and be liable to pay ground rent, taxes and fulfill obligations,
in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation/substitution of
the title to the immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of
Transferee Company by the appropriate authoritics pursuant to the sanction of the
Scheme by the NCLT and the Scheme bevoming cffective in accordance with the
terms thereof.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of
whatsocver nature in relation to Transferor Company to which the Transferor
Company is the party or to the benefit of which Transferor Company may be eligible,
and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall
be in full force and effect against or in favor of Transferee Company and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor Company, Transferee
Company has been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses, including those relating to trademarks,
tenancies, patents, copyrights, privileges software, power, facilities of every kind and
description of whatsoever nature in relation to Transferor Company to which the
Transferor Company is are the party or to the benefit of which Transferor Company
may be eligible, and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the
Effective Date, shall be enforceable as fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor
Company, Transferee Company has been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, any
statutory licenses, no-objection certificates, permissions or approvals or coasents
required to carry on operations of Transferor Company or granted to Transferor
Company shall stand vested in or transferred to Transferee Company without further
act or deed, and shall be appropriately iransferred or assigned by the statutory
authorities concerned therewith in favour of Transferee Company upon the vesting of
Transferor Company business and undertakings pursuant to this scheme. The benefit
of all statutory and regulatory permissions, licenses, approvals, and consents, including
the statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents required to carry on the
operations of Transferor Company shall vest in and become available to Transferee
Company pursuant to this scheme.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
motor vehicles of any description whatsoever of Transferor Company shali stand
transferred to and be vested in the Transferee Company, and the appropriate
Governmental and Registration Authorities shall substitute the name of Transferee
Company in place of Transferor Company, without any further instcument, deed or act
or any further payment of fee, charge or securities.

4.4. Transfer of Liabilities

(1)

With -effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations, secured or unsecured,
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance sheet
of Transferor Company, shall be deemed to be the debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obtigations of Transferee Company.
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(it}

(i)

{iv)

v

Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions contained herein, all loans raised
after the Appointed Date but till the Effective Date and liabilities incurred by
Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but tilf the Effective Date for their
operations shall be deemed to be of Transferee Company.

The transfer and vesting of the entire business and undertaking of Transferor Company
as aforesaid, shall be subject to the existing securities, charges and mortgages, if any,
subsisting, over or in respect of the property and assets or nay part thereof of
Transferor Company as the case may be.

Provided that the securities, charges and mortgages (if any subsisting) over and in
respect of the part thereof, of Transferee Company shall continue with respect to such
assets or part thereof and this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge such securities,
charges or mortgages to the end and infent that such securities, charge and mortgage
shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the other asseis of Transferor
Company vested in Transferee Company pursuant to the scheme. Provided always that
this scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility
created by Transferor Company which shall vest in Transferee Company by virtue of
the amalgamation of Transferor Company with Transferee Company and Transferee
Company shall not be obliged to ¢reate any further or additional security there for afier
the amalgamation has become operative,

Transferee Company will, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise,
execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any party to any
contract or arrangements in relation to Transferor Company to which Transferor
Company is parties, in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. Fransferee
Company shall, wnder the provisions of this Schome, be doemad o bo aithotized v
execute any such writings on behalf of Transferor Company and to carry out or
perform all such formalities or compliances referred 10 above on part of ‘Fransferor

Company.

Loans or other obligations, if any, due either between Transferee Company and
Transferor Company shall stand discharged and there shall be no liability in that
behalf, In so far as any securities, debentures or notes issued by the Transferor
Company and held by the Transferee Company and vice versa are concerned, the same
shall, unless sold or transferred by holder of such securities, at any time prior to the
Effective Date, stand cancelled and shall have no further effect.

4.5. Legal Proceedings

@

With effect from the Appointed Date, Transferee Company shall bear the burden and
the benefits of any legal or other proceedings initiated by or against Transferor
Company. Provided however, all legal, administrative and other proceedings of
whatsoever nature by or against Transferor Company pending in any court or before
any authority, judicial, quasi-judicial or administrative, any adjudicating authority
and/or arising after the Appointed date and relating to Transferor Company or its
respective property, assets, liabilitics, duties and obligations shall be continued and/or
enforced until the Effective Date by eor against Transferor Company; and from the
Effective Date, shall be continued and enforced by or against Transferee Company in
the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and

enforced by or against Transferor Company.
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4.6.

(it} If any suit, appeal or other proceedings of whatever nature by or against Transferor
Company be pending, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way be
prejudicially affected by reason of the transfer of the Transferor Company’s business
and undertakings or of anything contaired in this scheme but the proceedings may be
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against Transferee Company in the same
manner and 1o the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted
and enforced by or against Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

Employee Matters

On occurrence of the Effective Date, all persons that were employed by Transferor Company
immediately before such date shafl become employees of Transferee Company with the
benefit of continuity of service on same terms and conditions as were applicable to such
employees of Transteror Company immediately priot to such transfer and without any break
or interruption of service. Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by
agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by Transferor Company with any union/employee
thereof. With regard to Provident fund, Gratuity fund, Superannuation fund or any other fund
or obligation created or existing for the benefit of such employees of Transferor Company
upon occurrence of the Effective Date, Transferee Company shall stand substituted for
Transferor Company shall stand substituted for Transferor Company, for all purposes
whatsoever relating to the obligation to make coniributions to the said funds in accordance
with the provisions of such schemes or funds in the respective trust deeds or other documents.
The existing Provident fund, Gratuity fond, Superannuation fund or obligations, if any,
created by Transferor Company for their employees shall be continued for the benefit of such
employees on the same terms and conditions. With effect from the effective date, Transferee
Company will make the necessary contributions for such transferred employees of Transferor
Company and deposit the same in Provident fund, Gratuity fund, Superannvation fund or
obligations, where applicable. It is the aim and intent of the scheme that all rights, duties,
powers and obligations of Transfercr Company in relation to such schiciues o funds shall
become those of Transferee Comnpany.

Taxation and Other Matters

(i) With effect from the Appointed Date, all the profits or income accruing or arising to
Transferor Company, and all expenditure or losses arising or incurred by Transferor
Cempany shall, for all purposes, be treated (including all taxes, if any, paid or accruing
in respect of any profits and income) and be deemed to be and acerue as the profits or
income or as the case may be, expenditure or losses {including taxes) of Transferee
Company. Moreover, Transferee Company shall be entitled to revise ifs statutory
returns relating to indirect taxes like sales tax/ service tax/ excise, etc. and to claim
refund/ credits/ and/ or sef off all amounts under the relevant laws towards the
transactions entered into by Transferee Company and Transferor Company which may
occur between the Appointed Date and the Effective Date. The rights to make such
revisions in the sales tax returns and to ciaim refunds/ credits are expressly reserved in
favor of Transferee Company,

(ii)  Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company shall be entitled, wherever necessary and pursvant to the provisions of this
Scheme, to file or revise their tinancial statements, tax returns, tax deduction at source
certificates, tax deduction al source returns, and other statutory returns, and shall have
the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits, tax credits, credit for Minimum
Alternate Tax, carry forward of losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deductions, tax
holiday benefits, deductions or any other credits and/ or set off of all amounts paid by
the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company under the relevant laws refating
to Income Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Central Sales Tax, Goods and Service
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4.8.

(i)

(iv)

&)

(vi)

Tax or any other tax, as may be required consequent to the implementation of the
Scheme.

Fransferee Company shall be entitled to revise its all Statutory returns relating to
Direct taxes like Income Tax and Wealth Tax and to claim refunds/ advance tax credits
and/ or set off the tax liabilities of Transferor Company under the relevant laws and its
righls to make such revisions in the statutory retums and to claim refunds, advances
tax credits and/ or set off the tax liabilities is expressly granted.

It is expressly clarified that with effect from the Appointed Date, all taxes payable by
Transferor Company including all or any refunds of the claims/ TDS Certificates shall
be treated as the tax liability or refunds, advance tax credits and/ or set off the tax
liabilities is expressly granted.

From the Effective Date and till such time as the name of the Transferee Company
would get entered as the account holder in respect of all the bank accounts and demat
accounts of Transferor Company in the relevant bank’s/ DP’s books and records, the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the bank/ demat accounts of
Transferer Company in their existing names.

Since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special
reservations, incentives, concessions and other authorizations of Transferor Company
shall stand transferred by the order of the NCLT to Transferee Company, Transferee
Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory authorities
who shall take them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders of the sanctioning NCLT.

Conduct of Business:

PRl
iy

Wikh eifesi o i Appoltied Daie and ilil ihe scheme come into effect:

{a) Transferor Company shall be deemed to carry on all their businesses and
activities and stand possessed of their properties and assets for and on account of
and in trust for Transferee Company; and all the profits accruing to Transferor
Company and all taxes thereon or gains or losses arising or incurred by them
shali, for all purposes, be treated as and deemed to be the profits or losses, as the
case may be, of Transferee Company.

{b} Transferor Company shall carry on their businesses with reasonable diligence
and in the same manner as they had been doing hitherto, and Transferor
Company shall not alter or substantially expaad their businesses except with the
oceurrence of Transferee Company.

{c) Transferor Company shall not, without the written occurrence of Transferee
Company, alienate charge or encumber any of their properties except in the
ordinary course of business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligations
undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the scheme by the Board of
Directors of Transferce Company, as the case may be.

{d) Transferor Company shall not vary or later, except in the ordinary course of
business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligations undertaken prior to the date
of acceptance of the scheme by the Board of Directors of Transferee Company
the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, nor shall it
conciude settlement with any union or its employees except with the written
oceurrence of Transferee Company.
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(i)

(i)

(e} With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations
of Transferor Company as on the close of business on the ate preceding the
Appeinted Date, whether or not provided in their books and all liabilities which
arise or accrue on or after the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be the debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of Transferee Company.

Upen the scheme coming into effect, Transferee Company shall commence and carry
on and shall be authorized to carry on the businesses carried on by the Transferor

Company.

For all purpose of giving effect 1o the vesting order passed under Section 2320f the
Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules thercunder in respect of this Scheme by
the NCLT, Transferee Company shall, at any time pursuant to the orders on this
Scheme be entitled to get the record of the change in the legal rights upon the vesting
of the Transferor Company’s businesses and undertakings in accordance with the
provisions af Section 230-2320f the Companies Act, 2013. Transferee Company shall
be authorized to execute any pleading; applications, forms, etc. as are required to
remove any difficulties and carry out any formalities or compliance as are necessary
for the implemeniation of this scheme,

4.9, Creditors

¢)

(i)

The Scheme does not involve any compromise or composition with the creditors of
the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company and the rights of the creditors of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are not be affected in any
maner.

The charge and/or security of the secured creditors of the Transferor Company and
the Tiaisforee Compairy shall ienmin waflovied by idns Scheine

PART V: CONSIDERATION & ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

5.1. Consideration

D

(i)

Upon the scheme coming into effect, all equity shares of the Transferor Company held
by the Transferee Company (either directly or through neminees) shalk stand canceiled
without any further application, act or deed. It is clarified that no new shares shall be
issued, or payment made in cash whatsoever by the Transferee Company in lieu of
shares of the Transferor Company.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the shares or the share certificates of the
Transferor Company in reiation to the shares held by the Transferee Company, as the
case may be shall, without any further application, act, instrizment or deed, be deemed
to have been automatically cancelled and be of no effect without any necessity of them
being surrendered.

5.2. Increase in Anthorized Share Capital and Amendment to the Memorandum of the
Transferee Company

()

Upon the scheme becoming cffective, the Authorized share capital of the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to be added to the Authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company without any further act, deed or procedure, formalities or
payment of any stamp duty and registration fees. The face value of equity shares shall
remain same as of the Transferee Company after increase of the Authorized Capital.




(i1}

(iii)

Upon coming into effect of the scheme, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association
of the Transferee Company shall without any further act, deed or instrument shail
stand amended to give effect to the relevant provisions of this Scheme and no further
resolution(s) under sections 13, 14, 61, 64 of the Companies Aet, 2013 or any other
applicable provisions of the Act, would be required to be separately passed and
accordingly Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company
be substituted as:

“The Authorized Share capital of the company is Rs.70,01,00,000/-(Rupees Seventy
Croves One lakh ) divided into 70,01,00,000 (Seventy Croves One lakh ) Equity
shares of Re I/~ each with the right, privileges and attaching theveto as are provided
by the Articles of the Company for the time being with power to increase or reduce
the Capital in accordance with Company’s regulation and the legisiative provisions

Jor the time being in force in this beholf and with power 10 divide the shares in the

capital for the time being into equity shares capital and preference share capital, and
fo attach thereto respectively, and preferential, qualified or special right, privileges
or conditions as may be determined by, or in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the regulations of the company and to vary or modify or
abrogate and such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may for the time
being be provided by the regulations of the company.”

On approval of the Scheme by the members of Transferee Company, it shall be
deemed that the said members have also accorded all relevant consents under
Sections 13, 14, 61 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as may
be applicable for the purpose of amendment of the Memorandum of Association of
the Transferee Company as above. It is clarified that there will be o need to pass a
separate shareholders’ resolution as required under Sec 13, 14 and 61 of the Act for
amendment of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferce Company,

5.3, Accounting Treatment

(i}

(i)

(i)

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any other clause in the
Scheme, the Transferee Company shall give effect to the amalgamation in its books
of accounts in accordance with Ind AS 103 Business Combinations and other
accounting principles prescribed under the accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) and on the date determined in accordance with Ind AS.

Upon the Scheme coming inte effect, all the assets and labilities of the Transferor
Company shall be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and shall be
recorded at their respective book values. No adjustment shall be made to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities as reflected in the books of Transferor Company on
the Appointed Date, to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilities
including any new deferred tax assets or liabilities. All reserves of the Transferor
Company are deemed to be carried forward and shall be recorded in the books of the
Transferor Company as on the appointed Date. The carrying amount of the Transferee
Company of its investment in its shares of the Transferor Company, which shall stand
cancefled in terms of this scheme, and the aggregate face value of such shares shall,
subject to other provisions contained herein, be adjusted and reflected in the Capital
Reserves of Transferee Company.

To the exfent there are inter-corporate loans or balances between the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come
to an cnd and corresponding effect shall be given in the bocks of accounts and
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records of the Transferee-Company for the reduction of any assets or liabilities, as the
case may be.

(iv)  In so far as any securities, debentures or notes issued by the Transferor Company, and
held by the Transferee Company and vice versa are concerned the same shall, unless
sold or transferred by the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as the
case may be, al any time prior to the effective date, stand cancelled as on the effective
date, and shall have no effect and the Transferor Company or the Transferee
Company, as the case may be, shall have no further obligation outstanding in that
behalf, '

(v) In case of any differences in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company, the accounting policies, as the case may be, directed by the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company will prevail and the difference till the
Appointed Date will be quantified and adjusted in the Reserves to ensure that the
financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the financial position on the
basis of consistent accounting policy,

(vi) Upon the scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the Transferee Company, as on
the Appointed Date shall be reconstructed with the terms of the Scheme,

5.4, Saving of Concluded Transactions

3.5,

6.1.

The transfer of properties and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or against
Transferor Company as envisaged in above shall not affect any transactions or proceedings
already concluded by Transferee Company on or before the Appointed Date and after the
Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferor Company accept
and adopts all acts, deeds and thongs done and executed by Transferee Company in respect
therciv as done and execuied by Transferee Company in respect thereto as done and execuied on
behalf of itself. The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of share capital of
the Transferor Company shall be adjusted in reserves.

Dissolution of Transferor Company

On cccurrence of the Effective Date, Transferor Company shali without any further act or deed,
shall stand dissolved without winding up.

PART VI: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Application to NCLT

(i) Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall jointly, with all reasonable
dispatch, make application to the NCLT, Kolkata, under Section 230-232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act read with the applicable provisions of the Companies
{Compromise, Arrangement and Amajgammation) Rules, 2016, for sanctioning the
Scheme with such modifications as may be approved by the NCLT.

(i) It is hereby clarified that submissions of the Scheme to the Tribunal and to any
authorities for their respective approvals is without prejudice to alf rights, interest,
titles and defenses that Transferor Company and Transferce Company has or may
have under or pursvant to all applicable laws.
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6.2. Listing Agreement and SEBI Compliances

)

(i)

Since the Transferee Company is a listed company, this Scheme is subject to the
compliances of all the requirements under the Listing Regulations and all statutory
directives of the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEB1) in so far as they relate to
sanction and implementation of the scheme.

SEBI vide Notification No. SEBVLAD/NRO/GN/2016-17/029 dated 15™ February
2017 has amended the Listing Regulations and relaxed the requirement of obtaining
prior approval or no objection/ observation letter of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI in
casc of merger of wholly owned subsidiary with its holding company. The draft
schemes shall be fited with the Stock Exchange for disclosure purpose in compliance
with the above notification.

6.3. Conditionality of Scheme
The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

(i)

{ii)

(iii)

(iv)

89

The approval and agrecment of the Scheme by the requisite majorities of Equity
Sharehelders and the Creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, as may be directed by the NCLT, Kolkata Bench on the applications made
for directions under Section 230 of the said Act for calling meeting and necessary
reselutions being passed under the said Act;

The sanction of the NCLT under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable pravisions
of the said Act in favour of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

In view of the SEBI Notification No. SEBVLAD/NRO/GN/2016-17/029 dated
15.02.2017 and in terms of Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10.03.2017,
drafts scheme of Amalgamation of Wholly owned subsidiaries with their parent
company shalt be filled with the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of disclosures and
Stock Exchanges shall disseminate the scheme documents on their website. No
further compliance shall be required for Scheme of Amalgamation of a Wholly
owned subsidiary with its parent company. The Transferee Company shall comply
with the requirement of the above mentioned SEBI Naetification/Circular.

The confirmation order sanciioning this Scheme being filed with the Registrar of
Companies having jurisdiction;

All other sanctions and approvals, as may be required by law, in respect of this
Scheme being obtained.

6.4, Medification or Amendment of the Scheme and Revocation of the Scheme

(i)

(i)

The Scheme shall be subject to such modifications as the NCLT while sanctioning the
same may direct and which the Board of Transferor Company and Transferee
Company may conseni and agree to; .

The Transferor Company (by its Board of Directors) and the Transferee Company (by

its Board of Directors) cither by themselves or through a Committee appointed by
them in this behalf, may in their full and absolute discretion, make and/or assent to
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(iii)

(iv)

any alteration, or modification to this Scheme, including but not limited to those
which the NCLT and/or any other authority may deem fit approve or propose;

Transferor Company and Transferce Company shall be at liberty to withdraw from
this Scheme in case any condition or alteration imposed by the NCLT or any other
authority is not on terms acceptable to them.

In the event of any of the said sanctions/ approvals/ conditions referred herein above
not being obtained and/ or complied with and/ or satisfied and/ or this Scheme not
being sanctioned by the NCLT and/ or order or orders not being passed as aforesaid
and/ or the Scheme failing to be made effective, this Scheme shall stand revoked,
cancelled and be of no effect and in that event, no rights and liabilities whatsoever
shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company or their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other
person save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto and
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, tiability or obligation which has arisen or
accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out
in accordance with the applicable law and in such case, each company shall bear its
own costs unless otherwise mutually agreed. Further, the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to revoke, cancel
and declare the scheme to be of no effect if such boards are of the view that the
coming into effect of the Scheme in terms of the provisions of this Scheme or filing
of the drawn-up orders with any authority could have adverse implication on all/ any
of the companies.

6.5. Residual Provision

W

(if)

6.6, Costs

Without prejudice to the provisions contained in this Scheme, with effect from the
Appointed Date, ail inter-party transactions between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company shali be considered as tntra-party transactions for all purposes

On the approval of the Scheme by the members of Transferee and Transferor
Company pursuant to Section 230 of the Act, it shall be deemed that the said
members have also accorded all relevant consents under various provisions of the Act
to the extent the same may be considered applicable in respect of various actions
required to be undertaken by the Transferee Company for implementation of this
Scheme.

All costs, charges, fees, taxes, including duties {including the stamp duty), if any applicable in
relation to this Scheme, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise
agreed) arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing the terms and conditions or
provisions of this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be borne and paid by the
Transferee Company. All such costs, charges, fees, taxes, stamp duties including duties
(excluding the stamp duty, if any, paid on this scheme which shall be pro rata added to the value
of the immovable properties), levies and all othe enses, shall be debited to the Profit and

Loss Account of the Transferee Company.
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED

72/4, SHAMBHU NATH PANDIT STREET, KOLKATA - 700025
CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED ON
THE EFFECT OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE
LIMITED WITH HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
HIMADRI CHEMICALS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS ("SCHEME") ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL, PROMOTER AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN
PARTICULAR THE SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

1. Background:

1.1. The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Equal Commodeal Private Limited ('Transferor Company")
with Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited ("Transferce Company") and their respective shareholders
("Scheme ") was approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at its meeting held on 13
August 2018. In accordance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companics Act, 2013, the
Directors of the Transferor Company are required to adopt a report explaining the effect of the Scheme on each
class of shareholders, key managerial personnel (KMPs), promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the
Transferor Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio. The said report adopted by the Directors
of the Transferor Company in their meeting held on 13 August 2018 is required to be circulated along with
notice convening meeting of the shareholders and/or creditors, as the case may be.

1.2. Having regard to the aforesaid provisions, this report is adopted by the Board in order to comply with the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013,

1.3. The Scheme, duly initialed by Mr. Swapan Bhadra, the Director of the Transferor Company for the
purpose of identification, was considered by the Board of Directors for the purpose of issue of this report.

2. Effect of the Scheme on cach class of sharcholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non
promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special
valuation difficulties:

The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and therefore no shares
will be issued by the Transferee Company, pursuant to the Scheme and hence Scheme of Amalgamation does
not provide for any share exchange ratio and as no valuation is involved, there exist no special valuation
difficulties. Further, the Scheme of Amalgamation has been proposed to consolidate and effectively manage
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company in a single entity, which will provide several benefits
including synergy, economics of scale, attain efficiencies and cost competitiveness. Thus, there will be no
adverse effect of the said Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of shareholders) of the Transferor
Company. The directors and KMPs of the Transferor Company will cease to be the directors and KMPs of the
Transferor Company after its dissolution pursuant to the Scheme and the KMPs will be absorbed by the
Transferee Company with effect from the effective date of the Scheme without having any adverse effect on
them as per the provisions set out in the Scheme.

By order of the Board
For Equalfamm Prve éd“g(
Place: Kolkata Swapan B‘Rmt“'
Date: 13.08.2018 = DIN: [01365650]



Himadri

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS HIMADRI CHEMICALS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED) ON THE EFFECT
OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED WITH
HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
("SCHEME") ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL,
PROMOTER AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE
SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

1. Background:

1.1. The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Equal Commodeal Private Limited ('Transferor Company")
with Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited ("Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders
("Scheme ") was approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at its meeting held on 13t
August, 2018. In accordance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors of the Transferee Company are required to adopt a report explaining the effect of the Scheme on
each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel (KMPs), promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the
Transferee Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio. The said report adopted by the Directors
of the Transferee Company in their meeting held on 13% August, 2018 is required to be circulated along with
notice convening meeting of the shareholders and/or creditors and/or debentureholders, as the case may be.

1.2. Having regard to the aforesaid provisions, this report is adopted by the Board in order to comply with the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

1.3. The Scheme, duly initialed by the Mr. B. L. Sharma, Company Secretary of the Transferee Company for
the purpose of identification, was considered by the Board of Directors for the purpose of issue of this report.

2. Effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and
nonpromoter sharcholders laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special
valuation difficulties:

The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and therefore no shares
will be issued by the Transferee Company, pursuant to the Scheme and hence Scheme of Amalgamation does
not provide for any share exchange ratio and as no valuation is involved, there exist no special valuation
difficulties. Further, the Scheme of Amalgamation has been proposed to consolidate and effectively manage
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company in a single entity, which will provide several benefits
including synergy, economies of scale, attain efficiencies and cost competitiveness. Thus, there will be no
adverse effect of the said Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of shareholders), Key Managerial
Personnel, Promoter and Non-Promoter Shareholders of the Transferee Company.

By order of the Board
For Himadri S[%IECI lit C,hsemlcgﬁ&rlﬂmi calLtd

imadri Speci
ey 2T Yo
Managing Director
Elice: Kplicitel Bankey Lal Choudhary. 00173792
Date: 13™ August, 2018 DIN: [00173732]

Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited) CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756
Regd. Office: 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8th Floor, Kolkata — 700 001, India
Corp. Office: 8, India Exchange Place, 2nd Floor, Kolkata — 700 001, India
Tel: 91-33-2230-9953, 22304363, Fax: 91-33-2230-8051, Website: www. himadri.com
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S A PD & ASSOCIATES v

6th Floor, Room No. 8A, Kolkala - 700 046
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Phone : 4003 5801

E-mail : sapd.associales2014 @gmall.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Equal Commodeal Private Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31* March 2018, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements").

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance Inéluding other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted cur audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Ind’AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. :




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its
financial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”; and

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;
iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S AP D & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 327271E
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Partner VAN &l
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Date: The _24™day of __ M2y ,2018
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Annexure A -to the Independent Auditor's Report
The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the
Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:
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vi.

vil.

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of immovable property, as disclosed in note 5 to the Ind AS financial
statements.

As explained to us, investment property has been physically verified by the management at
regular intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its investment property.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

The nature of business of the Company does not require it to have any inventory. Hence, the
requirement of paragraph 3 (ii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act. Hence, the requirement of paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or guarantees or securities to any party except to its
wholly owned subsidiary, AAT Global Limited, Hongkong. Accordingly, section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Hence, the requirement of the
paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under section 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company’s nature of business does not require it to maintain Cost Records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the recards of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales tax, service tax,
Goods and Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with
the appropriate authorities.




According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts
payable as on 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax or
sales tax or service tax or Goods and Service Tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value
added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. Based on our examination of the documents and recards and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any
bank, government or financial institutions.

ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit.

xl. The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year under

report. Hence paragraph 3 (xi} of the Order is not applicable.

xil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Hence
paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.




Xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For 5 AP D & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 327271E-~=—_
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Partner AN A

Membership No. 309761
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Equal Commodeal Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2018, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
' ial controls system over financial reporting.
g m Y p I:4
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSAPD & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 327271E
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Partner \ £J)
Membership No. 3097&1\_%?,»

Date: The 24™ day of Mﬁai A ,2018
Place: Kolkata




EQUAL CO .LTD
COMPUTATION OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

BUSINESS INCOME Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Profit & Loss Account (33,92,736)
{33,92,735)
Add: Items inadmissible
Foreign Exchange Loss Added back (Capital Item) 85,26,318
Less:
Gain on Sale of Investment in MF to be treated separately (85,177)
BUSINESS INCOME 50,48,405
Less : B/F Loss Adjusted (43,19,710)
7,28,695
CAPITAL GAINS
Short term capital gain 94,742
GROSS TOTAL INCOME 8,23,437

LESS: Deduction under Chapter VI A -

NET TOTAL INCOME 8,23,437
Less: Unabsorbed Depreciation -
TAXABLE INCOME 8,23,437
TAXABLE INCOME R/OFF 8,23,440
TAX PAYABLE {A) 2,12,036

TAX COMPUTATION U/S 115JB

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Profit & Loss Account. (33,92,736)

Add : 1/5 th of item added inretained earning 38,38,439
BOOK PROFIT 4,45,703
TAX PAYABLE (B) 84,929
TAX Payable- A or B, whichever Is higher 2,12,036

Note:

B/F Business Loss

AY 2014-15 38,187 29-11-2014

AY 2015-16 20,61,758 30-11-2015

AY 2016-17 13,16,102 30-11-2016

AY 2017-18 9,03,663

43,19,710

Less : Adjusted with AY 2018-19 (43,19,710) £UALLOMMODFAL BVT. LTBY

EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTBY
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD

CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
{Ambunt in Rs.)
r Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
[1.ASSETS
1) Non-Current assets
(a) Investment Property 5 2,45,66,268 -
(b) Financial assets
{i) Investments 6 52,44,64,034 52,44,64,034
(ii) Loans 7 55,66,29,201 34,72,50,598
(c) Other Non Current Assets
(i) Capital Advances 81,050 -
1,10,57,40,553 B7,17,14,632
2) Current assets
{a) Financial assets
(i) Investments 3 1,13,904 12,58,908
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 43,83,144 2,58,613
(b) Other Current Assets
{I) Other Receivables 39,849 -
45,36,857 15,17,521
Total Assets 1,11,02,77,451 87,32,32,153
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
|Equity
(a) Equity share capital 9 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Other equity 10 79,41,12,788 79,77,17,560
79,42,12,788 79,78,17,560
Liabilitles
(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 30,47,25,464 6,25,84,294
|(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 12 1,04,38,560 1,23,80,698
(b) Other current liabilities 13 6,88,603 4,49,601
(c) Provision for Income Tax 2,12,036 -
1,13,39,199 1,28,30,299
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,11,02,77,451 87,32,32,153
Slgnificant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For SAP D & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number : 327271E-.

detta g

Astha Gupta

Partner SWAPAN BHADRA
Membership No. 309761 Director
Place : Kolkata DIN :01365650

Dated : The 251+“day of May, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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GAJENDRA BANSAL

Director

DIN :01999542




605
AND L D 31 MA 2018
(Amount in Rs.)
Note Year ended Year ended
Porliosars No. | 31stmarch, 2018 315t March, 2017
L Revenue from Operations - Interest Income 2,48,88,147 1,63,02,187
Il. Other Income 14 85,177 18,908
lii, Total Income (I + 1) 2,49,73,324 _1,63,21,095
V. Expenses
Finance costs 15 1,96,88,523 1,69,69,539
Other expenses 16 86,77,537 1,74,01,112
Total expenses 2,83,66,060 3,43,70,651
V. Profit / (Loss) before tax (Il - IV) (33,92,736) (1,80,49,556)
VI. Tax expense
Current tax 2,12,036 -
VI, Profit / (Loss) for the year (V - Vi) {36,04,772) {1,80,49,556)|
Vill. Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
{ii} Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B. (i) items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
{ii) Income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - =
Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of taxes - -
IX. Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) far the year (VIl + Vill) (36,04,772) (1,80,49,556)
X. Earnings per share (of Rs.10/- each): 17
Basic (360.48) {1,804.96)
Diluted (360.48) (1,804.96)
Significant Accounting Policles 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For S AP D & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number :

dsta 4. K’

Astha Gupta
Partner |\
Membership No. 309761 .
Place : Kolkata
Dated : The 2

day of May, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Scred (520 ,&yymﬁ Aomrd

SWAPAN BHADRA GAJENDRA BANSAL
Director Director
DIN :01365650 DIN :01999542



E

CIN:

MMODEAL PVT. LTD
19 B2011

TATEMENT OF

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL {Amount in Rs.}
Eqguky shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid- Numbers amount

up

At 1April 2016 10,000 1,00,000
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2017 10,000 1,00,000
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 10,000 1,00,000
b. OTHER EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {A in Rs.)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Equity Component of
Financial Instrument Ratalned Eamnings Toeel
As at 1 April 2016 - 1,57,67,116 1,57,67,116
|profit /(Loss) for the year - (1,80,49,556) (1,80,49,556)
Other Comprehensive Income - = "
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year - (22,82,440) (22,82,440}
Reclissification of debentures from financial liability to equity
1cful! to modification in terms of conversion 80,00,00,000 e
Balance as at 31 March 2017 80,00,00,000 {22,82,440) 79,77,17,560
For the year ended 31 March 2018 {Amount In Rs.)
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Equity Component of
Financlal Instrument Ratained Eamnings i

Balance as at 1 April 2017 80,00,00,000 {22,82,440) 79,77,17 560
Profit /(Loss) for the year - (36,04,772) {36,04,772)
Other Comprehensive Income - - "
Total Comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the year 80,00,00,000 (58,87,212) 79,41,12,788
Reclassification of debentures from financial liability to equity ) }

due to modification in terms of conversion i
Balance as at 31 March 2018 80,00,00,000 (58,87,212) 79,41,12,788

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For SA P D & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accnuntants

Hsha G,

Astha Gupta
Partner

Place : Kolkata ¥ -‘.‘ G
Dated : m}.‘-{'“ay of May, zo:.t
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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SWAPﬁN BHADRA

DIN .01355650

Director
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD

CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(A tInRs.)
Year Ended Year Ended
_ 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (33,92,736) {1,80,49,556)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) before tax to net cash generated
from operating activities:
Fair value changes In mutual funds (7,548) (18,690)
Profit on sale of investments (77,629) (218)
(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 85,26,318 1,71,64,583
Finance Costs 1,96,88,523 1,69,69,539
2,81,29,664 3,41,15,214
Changes In operaling assets and Habilities 2,47,36,928 1,60,65,658
Loans (21,80,26,697) (1,63,02,187)
Other financial liabilities 2,400 6,55,788
Other current liabilities 2,39,002 41,969
Other Current Assets (39,849) -
(21,78,25,144) (1,56,04,430)
Cash generated from operations (19,30,88,216) 4,61,228
Income taxes paid, net - | =
Net cash generated from operating actlvities (15,30,88,216) 4,61,228
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments to acquire financial assets - mutual funds (1,50,00,000) (13,00,000)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets - mutual fund 1,62,30,181 60,000
Payments to acquire Investment Property (2,45,66,268)
Net cash flows used in investing activities {2,33,36,088) {12,40,C00)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 24,21,41,170 1,54,44,757
Interest paid (2,15,92,335) {1,69,69,539)
Net cash flows used in financing activitles 22,05,48,835 (15,24,782)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year 41,24,532 (23,03,554)
(A+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,58,613 25,62,167
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 43,83,144 2,58,613

The accompanying notes form an integrol part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For SA P D & ASSOCIATES For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number : 327,

heha G

< yoo Mﬁ-f?ﬂ( ;a.fltzﬂé‘j &M‘J

Astha Gupta SWAPAN BHADRA GAJENDRA BANSAL
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 309761 DIN :01365650 DIN :01999542

Place : Kolkata 4, Ny
Dated : The 34 " day of May, 2018
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LYD
CIN: US1909WB2011PTC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Company Overview
Equal Commadeal Private Limited (“the Company”) Is a wholly d subsidiary of Himadri Spediality Chemical Ltd. (Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals
& Industries Limited) and operates as a Special Purpose Vehicle for making Investments and/ or acquiring shares in cther companies to expand the
business of the holding company globally.

The Company Is a pri company domiciled and headquartered in India. It was Incorporated on 9th March, 2011. The Company also has a wholly-owned
subsidiary in the name of AAT Global Uimited, Incorporated In Hong Kong.

The address of registered office is 72/4 Shambhu Nath Pandit Street, Kolkata-700026.
2. Basls of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Campliance
These financial statements are prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instr which are ed at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act’) (to the extent notified). The
Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Ace g Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indlan
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Effective April 1,2016,the Company has adopted all the ind AS standards and adoptions was carrled out In accordance with Ind AS 101-First time adoptian
of Indian Accounting Standards with April 1,2015 as the transition date . The transition was carried out from Indlan Accounting Principles generally
accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous
GAAP.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly Issued accounting standard Is Initially adopted or a revision to an existing

b) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are f d in Indian Rupees (‘Rs') which is Company’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the Company Is also In
Indian Rupees ['Rs’).

¢) Use of jJudgments and estimates
The preparation of the financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and appropriate assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabllities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financlal statements and the reported of and exp during the year, Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying pti are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Appropriate changes In estimates are made as the management becomes aware
of ch in girc es SUrT g the (= in esti are reflected in the financial statements in the perlod In which changes are

made and, If material, their effects are disclosed in the notes m the financial statements,

3. Significant accounting policles
A Current versus non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule il to

the Act.

Assets

An asset Is classified as current when It satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It Is expected to be realised in, or Is Intended for sale or consumption In, the Company’s | op g cycle;
b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

) it s exy i to be realised within 12 hs after the reporting date; or

d}itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a llabliity for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets indlude current portion of non-current financial assets,
All other assets are dassifled as non-current.

Uabilitles
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following oriteria:
a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s | operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c} it Is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the llability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result In its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities,
All other liabllities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating Cycle
For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and Habllities, the Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months.
This is based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

EQueL commopesy pyr, LTy £QU L CO “*'BDEJ'\'- ‘-m'
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[EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT, LTD
CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Foreign Currency
Forelgn currency transactions
Forelgn currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount, the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

Menetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated into Rs at the closing exchange rates on that
date. Non-monetary items, which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a forelgn currency, are reparted using the exchange rate on the
date of transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or conversion of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised as income or as expense in the year In which

they arise.

All fareign currency differences are generally recognized in the t of profit or boss, except for non y ltems di i In forelgn currency
and measured based on historical cost, as the\! are not transiated.

Netl in a foreign op

Net i In a foreign operation includes y items payable or ble to a foreign operation, like long-term recelvables or loans, for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseable future.

Exchange differences aris.ing an a monetary Item that forms part of a reporting entity’s net in a foreign operation shall be recognlsed In profit
or loss In the sep of the reporting entity.

C Financlal instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finandal liability or equity Instrument of another entity.

I Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus, in the case of finandal assets not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade ivables are Initlally d at fon price. Transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of finandial assets and financial Nabilities, that are not at falr value through profit or loss, are added to the
fair value on initial recogs Regular way purchase and sale of finandal assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, finandial assets are dassified in three categories:
* Financial assets at ised cost

= Minanclal assets at Tal walue thiough other compreliensive income (FVTOCH

= Finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financlal assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR), if both the following conditions are met:

3) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows. And

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest {SPP1) on the principal amaunt
outstanding.

The EIR amertisation Is included in finance income In the profit or loss.

Financlal assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets are measured at the FVTOC! if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The objective of the business model Is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b} The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount cutstanding (SPPI).

Financial assets Included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initlally as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL Is a residual category for financial assets. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOC), is dassified as at FVTPL Finandal assets included this category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit
and loss,

Investment In subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

{a) the Company has transferred substantially all me risks and rewards of the asset, or

{b) the Company has neither ferred nor d sub ially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has i into a pass-through t, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When It has neither ferred nor i b nll of the risks and rewards of

the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the r.mm of the Company's continuing
Involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated ihbihty The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis

that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has,reﬁﬂrlsx - "‘0 N T LTB:
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD
CIN: US1909WB2011PTC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss alk es using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing p is iatan t equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets,

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition In which case those are measured at life time ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date to the that is required to be rec i Is recognized as an impall galn or loss in profit or lass.

M. Financial Hability
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial llabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the finandal liabilities except
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subseq ent, finandal liablilities are classified in following categories:
* Financial llabllities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
* Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Finantial liabilitles through FVTPL
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and finandial liabilities designated upon Inital recognition
as at falr value through profit or loss.
Gains or losses on such instruments are recognised in the profit or loss.
Financlal llabilities at amortised cost
Interest-bearing loans and & g5 are subsequently 1 at amortised cost using the EIR method. Galns and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. For trade and other payables maturing within one vear from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the shart maturity of these instruments,
Derecognition
A finandal liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability Is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llabllity, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts Is recognised in the stat t of profit or loss.

ll. Embedded derivatives
An embedded derlvative is a component of a hybrid (combined) | that also Indludes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of
the cash flows of the combined Instrument vary in a way similar to a falone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows
that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, finandial Instrument price, commadity price,
forelgn exchange rate, Index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit Index, or other variable, provided In the case of a non-finandal varlable that the
variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Embadded dar

are ace d for as separate derivative and recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit or

loss.

Iv. Offsetting of financlal Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there Is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabllities simultaneously.

V. Reclassification of financlal assets
The Company determines dassification of financlal assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification Is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOC! and financlal assets or liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTFL For
financial assets which are debt Instruments, a redlassification is made only if there is a change In the business model for managing those assets. Changes to

the business model are expected to be very infreg The g determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform
an activity that Is significant to its operati If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification propectively from the
reclassification date which Is the first day of the | liately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate

any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

D Share Capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deductlon from equity,
net of any tax effects.

E Provisions
A provision Is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a p t obligation that can be esti d reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
market of the time value of money and the risks specific ta the liabllity. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

The ized as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,

taking Into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT, LTD
CIN: US1509WB2011PTC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F Revenue
Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Dividend income Is recognised when the right to receive pay is established, which Is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

For all finandal Instruments measures at amortised cost, interest income Is recorded using effective Interest rate (EIR), which s the rate that excatly
discounts the esti d future cash pay or recelpts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter perlod, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset. interest income Is included in other income In the statement of profit and loss.

G Employes Benefits
No provision Is made for Gratulty and Leave Encashment as there are no employees in the company during the year.

H Income tax
fax exp of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that It relates to a business combination, or Items recognized directly In equity or In OC1,

I Current tax
Current tax Is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxabl Income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. In case of tax payable as Mini Alt Tax ('MAT') under the
pmﬂﬂur\sufmemrn&m!ﬂ.1951.'IhtMmhblemdertheﬂdlnrﬁpectofMATpa!dhtmmhdumMunh'whenandtolhemnt
there Is convindng evid that the Company will pay normal income tax during the perlod for which the MAT credit can be carrled forward for set-off
against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesald
convincing evidence no longer exists.

Il Deferred tax
DeferredhxIsmoolnhedhnzspeunlImwawclﬁemoubemmmummdmwlahluﬂesfwhanmlmporﬂumnnd
the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base). Deferred tax is not recognized for:

* temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or llabllities in a transaction that s not a business combination and that affects neither

accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

-mp«wdlifemncesm!mdmhwstmenulnMﬁiﬂumﬁumtﬂutmecumpamrlsablemmnwmumcfﬂnmamldtha
porary differ and it Is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

* taxable temporary differences artsing on the initial recognition of goodwill.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for i tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profits will be available agalnst whith they can be utilized The ramrying amnunt of deferred Income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilized.

Unrecognised deferrad tax assets are r d at each reporting date and gnised to the extent it has become probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used.

I:Iafemhmmtalassetsandthillﬂuitememuiatthemratesthala‘eexpeaedwq»whmeperiodwhmlheassetisreaﬂuilnrmelllblmll
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The(:ompanvuﬁsersdzfmedkmmmmmmdhblues,melthasaIqalyenfumuﬂeﬂ;tnmnﬁntmamaulrstmnahumundmzy
relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

| Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds, B fing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or tion of those tangibk mmmid\mmﬁwtﬂeumwﬂdperlodnfumnoptre:dvfurthelrlntendeduuwe

capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense at the effective interest rate and Indude exchange differences arising from forelgn
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to Interest costs. Where there Is an unrealised exchange loss which Is treated
as an ad] to and subseq y there Is a realised or unrealised gain in respect of the settiement or translation of the same borrawing, the
gain to the extent of the loss previously recognised as an adjustment Is recognised s an adjustment to interest,

1 Eamings per Share
Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the ighted average
of shares out ling during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

K Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash and cash-on-deposit with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid Investments with a remaining maturity at
the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

L Cash flow statement i,
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, fphe.pericd is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating @1“ |t ey afd item of income or expenses associated with Investing or financing cash

fiows. The cash flows from operating, investing and fiflafe tWnpany are segregated. €112 COMMODEAWPVT. LT
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD
CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual Interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

A financial instrument Is an equity Instrument rather than a finandal liability, If, and only If, both conditions (a) and (b) below are met.
(a) The Instrument indudes no contractual obligation:
(1) to deliver cash or ancther financial asset to another entity; or
(ii) to exchange financlal assets or finandial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Issuer.
(b) If the instrument will or may be settled in the issuer’s own equity instruments, it is:
(1) a non-derivative that includes no contractual obligation for the Issuer to deliver a variable number of its own equity Instruments; or
{il) a derivative that will be settled only by the issuer exchanging a fixed of cash or ther fi ial asset for a fixed number of its own equity
Instruments.

4 Determination of fair values
A ber of the Company's acc g policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both finandal and non-financial assets and
labilities.

The Company has established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The team regularly reviews significant unobservable
Inputs and valuation adjustments.

Depending on the inputs used for determining fair value, finandial instruments valued at fair value has been categorized into a three-level hierarchy as
presented below:

» Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or llabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (e, as prices) or indirectly
{i.e. derlved from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability falls Into different level of hierarchy, then the falr value measurement Is categorized in
its entirety in the same level of fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recogni fers bety levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred,
For the purpase of fair value disclosures, the Company has d ined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characterstics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD
CIN: US1509WB2011PYC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Amount in Rs.)
31 mMarch 2018 31 March 2017

Note 5 - Investment Property

FreehoM Land

Carry 8t the of the year = 5
Additions 2,45,66,268 -
Disposals f =
Depreciation and Impalrment loss = -
Carryir§ amount at the end of the year 2,45,66,268 -

Note 6 - Investments
Mon-cufrent investments:

Trade lavestments - unquoted
Investrsents in subsidiarles - carvled at
cost
in Equity
7,07,83,580 (31 March 2017: 7,07,83,680, 1 April 2016: 52,44,64,034 52,44,64,034
7,07,83,580) equity shares of AAT Global Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary {face value - 1 HKS, fully pald-up)

Total non-current investments 52,44,64,034 52,44,64,034

Current investmants:

Investments in Mutual funds- quoted-
casried at falr value through profit or loss

39.129 (31 March 2017: 463.159)unlts UTI-Floating Rate Fund - 1,13,904 12,58,908
Direct- Growth
Total current investments 1,13,904 12,58,908
Total Investments 524577938 5257,22942
Aggregate book value of quoted Investments 1,13,904 12,58,908
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,13,904 12,58,908
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 52,44,64,034 52,44,64,034
Investments carried at cost 52,44,64,034 52,44,64,034
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss 1,13,904 12,58,908
Note 7 - Loans
{Unsecured, considered good)
Non-Current

Loan to subsidiary- AAT Global Ltd, Hongkong 55,66,29,201 34,72,50,598

§5,66,20,201 ___ 34,72,50,598

Note B - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1,62,301 1,76,801

Balances with Banks
= In Current Accounts 42,20,843 81,812
43,83,144 258,613

Note 9 - Share Copital

Authorised
10,000 (31 March 2017 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,10 1,00,£
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
10,000 {31 March 2017 10,000} Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
. Reconclliation of shares outstanding at the beglnnlng and at the end of the reporting year:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each lssued and fully paid
—— [ 3103-2018 | 31-03-2017 |
| No. of Shares] Amount No. of Shares Amount]
At the commencemant of the year 10,000 1,00,000 10,000 1,00,000
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 10,000 1,00,000 10,000 1,00.000
Rights, pi and r hed to equity shares:

ml:ompmyImunhrune:louchhumulundwuequlwﬂumhwlu-par\mluednslof-ud;.&chholderafeqnlrvshumIsemlﬂeﬁmmamemmamlnMIzﬂamﬁ
liquidation of the Company, the holder of the oquity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after it of all prefe |
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PYT, LTD
CiN: US1509WB2011PTC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)
As at 31-03-2018 As at 31-03-2017
Mo. of Shares held | %X holding Inthat | No. of Shares | % holding In that
£lass of shares held clazs of shares |
10,000 100 10,000 100
The entie share capital s held by the holding company - Himadri Specialty Chemical Ltd. (Farmesly known as Himadri Ch s & Ind: Imited)
Note 30 - Other Equity
Below A the other components of other equity: i In Rs.)
Movement during Mavement during
Companents 1 April 2017 St yist 31 March 2018 1 April 2016 e yar 31 March 2017
Equity :::Fww Financial Instrument - Fully Convertible 80, 200 ) 80,00, R 00,000 8,
Retained Earnings [22,82,440) (36,04,772) {58,87,212) 1,57,67,116 {1,80,49,556) (22,82,440)
79,77,17,560 136,04,772) 7941,12,788 1,51,67,116 78,19,50,444 79,77,17,560
a. Equity Comp of Financial - Fully Convertible Debentures
The Company, on 31st March, 2014, had Issued B0O 1.50% Optionally C: ble Det ("0CDs") of face value of Rs 10,00,000 each to Himadri Speciality Chemicals Ltd,
aggregating to As 800,000,000 by way of private pl: The said det were, at the option of the debenture holder redeemable at par, In part or In full, anytime on or after

12 months from the date of allotment or convertible into equity shares at the end of 10 years fram the date of allotment st a price squal to Net Asset Value as per the last audited
Balance Sheet of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the terms of the existing OCDs were i and dingly, by way of approval of the board of di passed at the held on
31st March 2017, the above OCDs now stand a3 Fully Convertible Debentures (FCDs) Into equity shares, at par, of full value of Rs 800,000,000, at the end of the maturity, with option
with the FCD holder to cpt for an early conversion at any time during the tenure of the FCD. The coupon payments of 1.5% p.a. compounded quartarly were also revised to be paid at
thedi of the Issuer

As per Ind AS 82, a non-derivative contract will qualify for equity classification only when it passes 'the fixed test' wherein thera is no l obligation to deliver cash or ancther
financial asset to another entity and also no contractual obligation for the Issuer to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments.

In the instant case, the Fully Convertible Debentures are classified as an equity instrument as the Instrument passes the "fixed test”, There Is no contractual obilgation to deliver cash or
mnother financisl asset 1o another entity and the instrument Is settled In issuer's own equity t, wh itis a non that Includes a obligation Tor the
issusr to deliver a fixed number of its own equity Instruments,

b. Retalned earnings
It comprises of accumulated profit/ loss of the Ce Ison of following;
~ (5. 3,604, /7.4) 31 March J01/: (Ks 18,049,555)] was on account of (loss) profit during the year,

Note 11 - Borrowings
(Unsecured)

Non - current borrowings
Other Loans and acvances

- from a relatad party 30,47,25,464 €,25,84,294

30,47,25,464 6.25,84,254

Other Loans and Advances

Other Loans and Advances from a related party - Himadri Specialty Chemical Ltd.- carries an interest rate of 9% p.a, compounded quartarly, payable on demand and the principal

smount is repayable after the axpiry of three years from the date of disbursement . During the year sn supplement sgreement was entered Into whereby the principal amount Is
ble by 2023, For hedule, refer Note 23 below.

Note 12 - Other financial labilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 60,25,081 79,268,893
Other Payables 44,13,479 44,51,808
0 ,23,80,698

Note 13 - Other current Habllites

Statutory Dues 6,88,603 4,49,601
6,288,603 4,43,501

Note 14 - Other income

Profit on sale of current Investments - Mutual funds 77.629 218
Gain on Inyestments carried at falr value through profit or loss 7,548 18,690
85,177 18,908
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT, LTD
CIN: US1509WB2011PTC160507
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)
Nota 1% -finance costs

Interas® panse 1,96,88,523 1,69,69,539
1,96,88.523 1,69,69.538

Note 16 - Dther expanses

Profession fees 38,275 1,19,114
Rates ord taxes 15,350 24,286
Paymen't 2 the auditor as

- o anidior (Includes Nil {31 March 2017: Rs.23,000) for earlier years) 47,200 92,000

- for <enification services 47,200 -
Bank chafges 1,740 a73
Interest o Tds payment 453 156
Loss on Toreign exchange fluctuation {net) 85,256,318 1,74,64,583

86,772,537 17401112
Note 17 - tarnings per share
For the year ended 31 March

Profit/ {Lois) attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic and diluted) 2018 2007
Profit/ (Lox) aftes Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders {Rs.) (36,04,772) {1,80,43,556)
Welghted rverage number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted)
Weighted sverage number of equity shares 10,000 10,000
Earnings/ fLoss) per equlty share of Rs. 10 each
Basic (360.48) (1,804.95)
Diluted (360.48) {1,804.98)

Note 18 - Contingont |iabilities and commitmants

c Liak t provided for are Rs. NIL (PY Nil}

Note 19 - Duw to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Thera ara no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2018, This Information as

required to ba disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medi p Develop Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identfied on the basis of
& Inbla with the C y

Note 20

Additlanal Inf Hon o the p of Schedule Il to the C Act, 2013 are as under:

{l) Thara s ne inventory during the year in the Company,
(i1} Othar Information

(#) €.1.F. Value of Imports Rs. NIL
() Expenditure in Foreign Currency Rs. NIL
(¢} Esrnings in Foreign Currency
- Interest on koan to subsidiary Rs. 24,888,147
Hote 21 - Related Party Transactions
List of related partles:
Particulars Relatad Partles Comtry of Hoklingsssat
31 march 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Viokdig Company L e chios L Pariiel bnwim Indie . . .
B AAT Global Ltd. HongKong 100% 100% 100%
Shandong Dawn Himadr Chemical Industry Ltd, China 949% 94% 94%
~ ' I OUT TS
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD
CIN: US1909WB2011PTCI60507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.}

Ust of k'Y nanagement personnel

KMP of £he Reporting Entlty

Swapan Bhurda Non-Executive Director

Gajendr® Bansal Non-Executive Director

KMP of Patant of the Reporting Entity

Mr. Bankey Lal Choudhary Managing Director

Mr. shys™ Sundar Choudhary Whole-time Director

Mr. Vijay Kumer Choudhary ‘Whale-time Director

Mr. AnuragChoudhary Chief Executive Officer
lled by Kty Manegerial F or thelr rel

Himadri Credit & Finance Limited
Himadri Coke & Petro Limited
Himadrl Industries Limited

Sri Agro Himgher Uimited
Himadrl e-Carbon Lim|ted

Tramsactions carried out with related partles refarred to in above are as under:
Yaar Ended Year Ended

Nature of transactions

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Othar Loans and sdvances (taken)
Himadri Speclalty Chemical Ltd, 24,21,41,170 1,54,44,757
Other Loans and advances (given)
AAT Global td 19,30,57,500 -
Intarest reczived
AAT Global itd 2,48,88,147 1,63,02,187
Interast pald
Himadrl Specialty Chemical Ltd, 1,96,88,523 1,69,69,539
Balances recaivable/payable from / to refated partles are o5 under:
Nature of trinsactions As at Asot

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Fully Convertible Debentures
Himadri Spacisity Chemical Ltd. 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000
Himadri Speclalty Chemical Lid. - 54,00,000
Other loans and advances
Himadri Speciaity Chemical Ltd. 30,47,25,464 625,848,194
Interest Accrued on loans and advances
Himadrl Speciaity Chemical Ltd. 60,25,081 25,268,893
Other Payables
AAT Glabal Ltd 43,27,079 43,67,805
Unsecured Loans glven
AAT Global Ltd 55,66,29,201 34,72,50,598
Investmant held
AAT Global Ltd 52,44,64,034 52,44,64,034

Terms and conditions of transaciions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms cquivalent to those that prevall in arm's length o ding bala at the year-and are unsecured and
settiement ocours Inmnuq:tlorﬁm“mrtibhdabanmmmhi:hshaﬂhecmmdlmmwlhnnm The C: y has not ded any Imp of bles relating to
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment Is undertaken each fi | year through ining the financlal position of the related party and the market In which the related
party operates.
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[EQUAL COMMODEAL PV, LTD
CIN: US1909WB2011PTC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)
Note 22 -Segment Reporting

Ind AS 208 establishes stondards for the way thet public b report Inf about ting seg and related disch about products and services,
geographic areas, and major customers, The Company Is 8 wholly cwned subsidiary of Himadr Specialty Chemical Ltd, [Formerly known as Himadrl Chemicals & industries Umited) and
operates us a Special Purpose Vehicls for making Investments and/ or acquiring shares In other companies to expand the business of the helding company globally. Based on the
"mansgenent approach” as defined In Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates tha Company's perft and based on an enalysis of
wvarious perh Indi by and P The C theref: tes in a single r ing segi

The revefus from transactions arlses from a single customer, AAT Global Ltd, which accounts for 100% of the total revenue of the Company for each of the bwo years ended March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2017

Note 23 - Financial instruments

Financial isk management

Ovarview

The Company's activitios expose |t to a variety of financlal risks, Including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary risk fecus is to
potential idverse etfects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the h of each and
the concentration of risk from the top few The Ce 's risk g and policles and processes are established to Identify and analyze the risks faced by

the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and cumpliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policles and processes are
reviewed tegularly to reflect changes in market condl and the Company's activiti

This note f abaut the C: s to each of the above risks, the G s policies and for and risk, and the
Company’s management of capital,
Cradit risk
Credit risk Is the risk of fi | less to the Company if a cust o party to & fi falls to meet its | obll and arises princlpally from
ding vables, cash and cash equival foreign exch and other financlal | Credit risk Is mansged through crecit approvals, establishing credit
limits and by Iy the credi hi of to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of bush The C an
s p that rep Is of i losses in respect of trade and other recelvables and investments.

Cash and cash equivalents and other k
Credit risk on Cash and cash I’ I carried ot smortised cost and deposit with banks and financial Institution Is limited as the C Invests In di with banks

and financial Institution with high credit ratings assigned by credit agencies.

Uguidity risk
Uquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting tha okiigatk d with Its fi | linbilities that are settled by defivering cash or anuther financial
asset. The Company’s approach ta managing liquidity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when dus, under bath normal and
d conditions, without ing ble losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,
The Company sims to maintain the level of ts cash and eash equivalents In excess of d cash outflows on fi bl The C: ¥ alse the level of expected
cash inflows on trade and other her with expected cash cutflows on trade and other payables,
M profile of C s financial Babllities includi Interest based on | undi pay s at 31 March 2018:
Co d cash flows
Less than 1 year 1-2 years Z-3 years 3-5 years »5 years Total
Loans snd borrowings B - - 30,47,25,464 - 30,47,25,464
Other financiel llnbilltas 1,04,38,560 - - - - 1,04,38,560
Maturity profile of Company’s financial |labil i d Interest payments based on contr, | undi i ts as it 31 March 2017:
Contractual cash flows
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 35 years »5 years Total
Loans and borrowings - - » 6,25,84,294 - 6,25,84,254
Other financial liabilities 1,23,80,698 - - - - 1,23,80,658
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other market changes that affect market risk-sensitiva instruments, Markat risk Is
attributable to sll market risk- itive financial ding foreign ¥ ivables and payables and loans and b 4. The C s d to market risk
primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, Interest rate risk and the market value of its Investments.
Cusrancy risk
The C: Vs in HKD d ] lons give rise to exchange rate fluctuation risk.
The following table analyzes foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2018:
HED
Loans ghven (including Interest) 6,93,18,705
Other Financial Labilites 5,09,068
Net Pasition 6,88,00,637
The following table analyzes fareign currency risk as of 31 March 2017:
HKD
Loans given (including Interest) 4,28,17,583
Cther Financial Liabilites 5,00,068
Net Position 4,23,08,518
EQUaL ¢g EQUAL gOMMODEAL PYT. g1
M
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PYT, LTD
CIN: US1909WB2011PTC160507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Re.)
Sensitivity mnalysls
A strengthaning (weakening) of the HKD against Rs st March 31 would have affected the of fi Instruments d In a foreign currency and Increased
(decreasec) equity and prefit or loss by the amounts shown below. This snalysis ks based on foreign hange rate that the ¢ y Idered 1o be
possible Btthe end of the reporting period. The analysis that all other variables, In p Interest rates, remain constant and ignores any Impact of forecast sales and
purchases.
Analysis Tor the year ended 31 March 2018
Equity Profit or
hen ‘Weak St Weakenin
HKD (106 movement) 68,80,964 (68,80,964) 68,80,964 (68,80,954)
Analysis forthe year endod 31 March 2017
Equity Profit or {loss)
Stren| Weaken|, ‘Waeakenl
HKD {10% movement) 42,30,851 (42,30,851) 42,30,51 (42,30,851)
Interast rale risk
Interest rate risk primarlly arise from floating rate loans.
Profile
At the end of the reporting period the Interest rate profile of the Company’s Interast-bearing financlal Instruments was as follows:
As at 31 March
2017
Fixed rate bstruments
Financial Habifities - Borrowings 30,47, 64 2 204
3047, 6,25.84,294

Varlable rate instruments
Financlal assats- Loans given (including interest) 66,29,201 72,

556639301 347250538

Fair value stnsitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Compeny does not account for any fiwed rate financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore a change in Interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit
o loss.

Cash flow sansitivity analysis for varlable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points In interest rates at tha end of the reporting period would have Increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shawn below, This analysls

that all other In lar foreign ¥ rates, remain constant,

For 31 March 2018 Profit or (loss) Equity

100 bps Increase 100 bps dacreass 100 bps Increase 100 bps decrease
Variable rate Instruments 55,66,292 (55,66,292) 55,66,292 |55,66,292)
For 31 March 2017 Profit or (loss) Equity

100 bps incraasa 100 bps decraase 100 bps Increase 100 bps decrease
Vartable rate instruments 34,72,506 (34,72,506) 34,72,505 (34,72,508)
Capital management
The Board"s policy Is to malntaln a strong capital base 5o 85 to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of
total equity. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well s the level of dividends to ordi ¥ sharehaold,

The Company monitors capital using an adjusted net debt to equity ratio, which Is adjusted net debt divided by squity. For this purpase, adjusted net debt Is defined as total ljabiiites
(which Inciudes Interest bearing loans and borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents, Equity indludes equity share capital and reserves that are managud as capital.

As at 31 March
2018 2017
Debt 30,47,25,484 6,25.84,294
Less: Cash and bank balances 83,144 61
Nel debt 30,03,42,320 6,23,25,681
Equity 79,42,12,788 79,78,17,560
Net debt to Equity ratio EL Y %

Accounting classifications and fale values
Falr valuos vz carrylng amounts

The falr values of fi | assats and liabilitles, together with the carrying smaunts shown in the statement of financial position of 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Ised cost Financlal assots/labilities at falr  Financial assets/Nabilities ot foir valve  Total carrying Falr value
value through profit or loss Uwough OCI amount

Designated Mandatory Equity Mandatory

upon initial Instruments

recognition designated upon

Initial recognition

FAnancial Assats
Cash and cash equivalents 43,83,144 - - - - 43,83,144 43,683,144
Investment 52,44,64,034 - 1,13,904 8 * 52,45,77,938 5245,77,938
Loans 55,66,28,201 55,66,29,201 55,66,29,201
Financial Liabimties
Barrowings 30,47,25464 - - 50,47,25 464 30,47,25,454
Other financia| Jabilities 1,04,38,560 - - 1,04,38,560 1,04,38 560

EQUAL COMMODEAL pyT. LTHY
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT, LTD
CIN: US1S09WB2011PTCIG0507
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)
The falr values of fi assets and Habiflth sgether with the carrylng amounts shown in the statement of financlal position, of 31 March 2017 are as follows
Amartised cost Financial assets/liabllitles at fair  Financial assets/liabilities at fair value  Total carrying Fair value
wvalue through profit or loss through OC1 amount
Dasignated Mandatory Equity Mandatory
upon Initial Instruments
recognition designated upon
Initial recogaition
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,58,613 . - - - 2,58,613 2,58,613
Investment 52,44,64,024 - 12,58,908 52,57,22,942 52,57,22,942
Loans 34,72,50,598 - - = - 34,72,50,598 34,72,50,598
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 6,25,84,294 - - - 6,25,84,294 6,25,84,294
Cther financial liabilities 1,23,80,698 - - - - 1,23,80,698 1,23,80,698
Falr value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by the levels In the fair value hierarchy, The different levels have been defined as follows.

* Leved 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilites,

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, elther directly (1.e. as prices) or indirectly {I.e. derived from prices).
* Level 3: Inputs for the asset or llability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For 31 March 2018 Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Investment in mutual funds 1,135,904 - - 1,12,904
Total assets 1,13,904 - - 113,904
Total Uabllities % 3 - =
For 31 March 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Investment In mutval funds 12.58.908 - - 12,58,908
Total assets 12,58,908 - - 12,58,908
Total Habilities - - - -

In terms of cur report of even date attached

For 5 A P D & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants :

Firm's Registration Number : 3.

it 12500 |
o (o) kst Mppeid ]

Partner 3\ / SWAPAN BHADRA GAIENDRA BANSAL
Membership No. 309761 AN T Director Director
Place : Kolkats R b DIN 101365650 DIN :01999542

unu:myf{;yumy. 2018
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EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD

CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507

PROVISIONAL BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 30th June, 2018 31st March, 2018
I. ASSETS
1) Non-Current assets
(a) Investment Property 311,00,050 245,66,268
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5244,64,034 5244,64,034
(i) Loans 5977,73,627 5566,29,201
(c) Other Non Current Assets
(i) Capital Advances 1,00,899 81,050
11534,38,610 11057,40,553
2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investments 1,15,796 1,13,904
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 19,50,572 43,83,144
(b) Other Current Assets
(i) Income Tax Payments 2,16,300 -
(ii) Other Receivables - 39,849
22,82,668 45,36,897
Total Assets 11557,21,279 11102,77,451
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Other equity 8279,38,244 7941,12,788
8280,38,244 7942,12,788
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 3097,15,337 3047,25,464
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 170,01,188 104,38,560
(b) Other current liabilities 7,01,465 6,88,603
(c) Provision for Income Tax 2,65,045 2,12,036
179,67,698 113,39,199
Total Equity and Liabilities 11557,21,279 11102,77,451

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
SWAPAN BHADRA
Director
DIN :01365650

Sd/-

GAJENDRA BANSAL

Director
DIN :01999542




EQUAL COMMODEAL PVT. LTD

CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507

PROVISIONAL STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

Quarter ended
30th June, 2018

Year ended
31st March, 2018

I. Revenue from Operations - Interest Income
1. Other Income

Ill. Total Income (I +11)

IV. Expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses

Total expenses

V. Profit / (Loss) before tax (lll - 1V)

VI. Tax expense
Current tax
VII. Profit / (Loss) for the year (V - VI)

VIII. Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of taxes

IX. Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (VII + VIII)
X. Earnings per share (of Rs.10/- each):

Basic
Diluted

85,64,634 248,88,147
323,32,240 85,177
408,96,874 249,73,324

70,14,649 196,88,523

3,760 86,77,537

70,18,409 283,66,060

338,78,465 (33,92,736)
53,009 2,12,036
338,25,456 (36,04,772)
338,25,456 (36,04,772)
3,382.55 (360.48)
3,382.55 (360.48)
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
SWAPAN BHADRA
Director
DIN :01365650

Sd/-
GAJENDRA BANSAL
Director
DIN :01999542



Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
{Formerly known as Himadri Chemical & Industries Limited)

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2018
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BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Godre] Waterside, Unit No. 603 Telephone: + 91 33 4035 4200
&th Floor, Tower 1, Flot Mo, 5, Block - DP Fax: + 81 33 4035 4285
Sector V. Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700091

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(tormerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalene Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone [nd AS financial statements of Himadri Speciality
Chemical Limited (formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited) (“the Company™)
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (herein after referred to as -“standalone Ind AS financial
statements™}.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalonc Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind
AS) prescribed undffr Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do 50,

Reglztera? Dffice-
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone [nd AS financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(13) of the Act. I'hose Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance
aboul whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements arc free from material misstaternent.

An audit involves perforining procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone [nd AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone [nd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or crror. In making those risk
assessiments, the auditor considers inlernal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness ol the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone

[nd AS financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on Lthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material
uncertainty cxisls related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty cxists. we are
required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements or, iF such disclosures are inadequale, (o maodify the opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the audilor’s report. However, future

events or condirions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone [nd AS financial statements.



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143¢[1) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”
a statemeni on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section [43(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive
Income}). the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3}
March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to cur separate Report in *Annexure B™; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer note 8, 16, 24 and 35(a) to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements;
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

ii  The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foresecable losses, on long-teem contracts including derivative

contracts - Refer note 21 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

iii There has been no delay in transferring amounts. required to be translerred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company: and

iv. The disclosures in the standalone [nd AS financial statements regarding holdings as
well as dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30
December 2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial year
cnded 31 March 2018, However amounts as appearing in the audited standalone Ind
AS financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017 have been disclosed.

For BSR & Co. LLP
\\g;:{?arre;'ed Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 10T248W/W-100022

Jayanta Mukhopaghyay
Partrer

“mbership No. 055757

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29 May 2018
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BSR&Co. LLP

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited- 31 March 2018

{1y {(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which

(©)

(i1)

(iti)

(iv)

(v}

(vi)

all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its fixed assets. In accordance with this programme, certain items of fixed
assets have been physically verified during the year and ne material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in note 4
to the standalone [nd AS financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The inventory, except stock lying with third parties and goods in transit, have been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervais during the vear. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. For stock lying with third parties as at the vear
end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods in transit, subsequent
goods receipts have been verified. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iit) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

[ our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions
of Sectian {85 are not applicable to the Company. The Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act with respect to investments made. loans given and
guarantee provided. The Company has not provided any security under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act.

in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the boeks of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act, in respect of the products manufactured by the Company and are of the
opinion thar prima facic, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether Lthey are accurate or complete,
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BSR&Co LLP

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Annexure A to the [adependent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited- 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(vii} (a) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(b)

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Ensurance, [ncome-
tax, Sales tax, Value added tax, Goods and service tax, Service tax, Duty of customs. Duty of
excise, Cess and any other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authotities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Emiployees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Value added
tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Cess and any other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018, for 2 period of more than six
months from the date they became payable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of [ncome Tax,
Sales Tax, Value added tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service tax, Duty of customs and Duty
of excise which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute, except as mentioned below:

FName of the | Nature Total Total amount Period to Forum where
statute of the amount paid under which the dispute is
dues under protest amount pending
dispute {Rs in Lakhs) relates
{Rs in Lakhs) ]
Central Sales | Central 840.59 63.39 2003 t0 2013 | Appeilate and
Tax Act, 1956 Sales Revision Board
tax
30.45 7.61 2005-2006 Sales Tax
Appellate
\ Tribunal
1,733.58 85.03 2013-2015 Additional
Commissioner N
(.89 0.42 2G10-2011 Deputy
Commissioner
i West Bengal Value 36.85 - 2008-2009 West Bengal
Value Added added Taxation
Tax Act, 2003 tax Tribunal
1,404.22 - 2005-2006 to | Appellate and
2007-2008, Revision Board
2009-2019 to
2010-2011
257.91 - 20052006 Senior joint
Commissioner -
Special Cell
41.28 19.36 2013-2014 Additional
Coemmissioner
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited- 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Mame of the ] Natore Total Fotal amount Period to Forum where
statute i of the amount paid under which the dispute is
i duoes under protest amouent pending
: dispute (Rs in Lakhs) relates
| i (Rsin Lakhs)
| Chhattisgarh | Value 2.30 1.48 2000-2011 Deputy
" Value Added Added Commissioner
Sales Tax Tax i
_ Act, 2003 o
The Central Duty of 2,061.27 - 2011t 2016 Hon'ble high
Excise Act, Excisc Court of Calcutia
1944 ] .
437.16 0.37 2006 to 2008, | Custom Excise
22102016 | and Service Tax
Appellate
_____ Tribunal
! 353.54 247 2004 to 2007, | Commissioner
? 2001102017 | {Appeals) of
o Central Excise
The Custom Custom | 491.76 37.72 2000-2001, ¢ Custom Ixcise
Act, 1962 duty ! 201122016 and Service Tax
Appellate
- Tribunal
Finance Act, Service 41.00 - 2010-2014 Custom Fxcise
1994 tax and Service Tax
: Appellate
o Tribunal
67.92 4,97 2010-2016 Commissioner of |
; U N I _ Central Excise
: Chhattisgarh bEntry 463.71 248.38 2012-2017 | Hoo'ble lligh
Entry Tax tax " Court of
Act, 1976 Judicature
i Chhatisgarh at
I ] Bilaspur
The West Enlry 2.147.44 - 2012-2013. Honble High
Bengal Tax ax. |1 2095-2017 Court of Calcutta
on entry of 2.710.45 - 2013-14 o West Bengal

i Goods into
Local Arcas,
CAct, 2012

2014-15

Taxation
Tribunal
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Anditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited- 31 Maech 2018 (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

{xi)

{xii}

(xiii)

{xiv)

{xv]

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us., the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution, banks,
government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and cxpianations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company. during the year the Company has not raised any money by way
ol initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Term loans raised
were applied during the year for the purpose for which it was obtained.

According ro the [nformation and explanations given (o us. no fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid and provided for managerial remuncration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly. the provisions of paragraph 3(xii} of the Order are not
applicahle to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and bascd on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear. Accordingly.
the provisions af paragraph 3(xiv) ol the Order are not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company. the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaclions with
dircetors or persons connected with thent in respect of which provisions of Section 192 of the
Act are applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv)} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(78)



BSR&Co LLP

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS tinancial
statements of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited- 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(Xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not required (o be
registered under Section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Acl. 1934, Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartercd Accountants
Firm’s Registration&ﬂﬂ] 01248W/W-100022

Jayanta

hopadhyay
Place: Kolkata ; FPartner
Date: 29 May 2018 Membership No. 055757
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
{Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Himadri Speciality
Chemical Limited (formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industrics Limited) (**the Company™) as ol
31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Tnd AS financial statements of the Company
tor the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential componcents ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(TCAL. These responsibilitics inctude the design, implersentation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating cifectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the sateguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with relerence to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal tinanciat controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Moancial statements was established and
mairdained and il such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to tinancial stalements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of internal linancial controls with reference to tinancial statements included vbtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating ctfectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgement. including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standatone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion oni the Company’s internal tinancial controls system with reference 1o financial statements,
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report {(Continued)
(Referred to in our report of even date)

Meaning ol Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference 10 financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company: and

(3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaterments
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
tinancial controls with reference to fnancial statements to future periods arc subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statcments may bacome inadequate because of changes
in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respecls, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermai
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the [CAL

ForBS R& Co. LILP
Chartered Acoowntants
.
Firm's Registration NO. TO 248 W/W-100022

Jayanta opadhyay
Partiner

tmbership No, 0533757

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29 May 201§
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HIMADRR! SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITEDR
TFormeily known as T Clhemicals & Taalustrics Limitsly
Standalone Halance Sheet ay at 31 3arch 2018
Ampunt in Rupevs Lakhs

N 1 March 201% 31 March 2017
ARNETE _— PPN Selhiutiiu
{1} Nun-current assqts
{a) Property, plam and cguiptacl 4 T09,680.58 L10,297.3R
th) Capital work-in-progross 5 1.768.01 53645
(<] Inlangibls sssels i 136,74 .
() Finanzia: asse1s
i1 Enveslments 7 35324415 14, F5R.38
{if) Trace reveivakles o TR, 7Y TUEY
tiny Laans 11 4,71R.7% 24845
Civh Oher Brancial assels 12 3.04 671
() Dwferred 1aa assels 33 15,462,590 7.855.02
(T} Mon-eurrest lax assels (g 13 4B6.68
(ga Crher non- gurrent asesls 14 530703
Ferlal Non-corrett assets 173,795,407 142,176,635

(2} Current assvls
{8} Inveatories 15 51079 39,207.4%
k) ¥raaaciol azsets

(i} laveyiments ? B 2508
[ de ecevables ® 26,9%A,68 256100
(5] Cash and cash oy iy L7LE.04 113272
(1] Lank balzeces other than (i) above Rl 14307 2,406,06
(v} Loans o 268,23 1858
{vi) Orher finanz:al asscts 12 1240 1062740
(o) Olner eurrent sssels 6 14,226.76 U381
Total Current assets 8296457 75,253.43
TOTAL ASSETS 67046 2730
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Knuily
(&) gty share capital 17 4, B4 U8 ERLERL
(B Cther cquity [k 141,448.47 13,025,118
Total Fqguity 145,632.55 LU7,869.70
Liahidities

{1} Non-current liabillties

1) Finanzial liakilitics
[} Hetrowsings 14 23,11%.1%
L} Derivalives 2 LA
i) her linangial liabitics iz 2577
{b) Provisicns 2a 25522
{6 Troformed tax Ligs {nel) k) 2517078
Total Mon-curvent Hablhitics 48,187.56 48764 34
{2] Carrent linhitities
fu} Fizuncial 1 s
i) 3orrowings 19 I 411.53 33 NN
(i) Trade nayables n 11,K24.21 IR Y
(i) s ivaives 21 185,81 450440
i) CHher Grancial laliies 7 TH59.55 3086 TR
Loy Qe currend lialudilies 3 5. T5T3 3,147.4%
{1 Provisums 24 a2 1514
() Cierent ta liabilities (rety 23 459 3w 0l
Tutal Current liubi &1 4T 35 GlLRSG. 5%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21743044
SlpwIfcant accouniing policies 3
T Gecolnpying roes farm an imbepr? part oFthe staulivvas lmmcil slalements
\,‘:,]"Cr mur zepni afeven dete altnehed
et
Fo: BSR & Co LLP For canet e heluddfeif she Fonwed ef Lwveciory oof
heeicied Sovanesang Tlmad i Specialliy Chemical Lindted
aedsteation Munther, 1O 280002 N LTI B AT 2 750

- Banhey Lal Choudhary Shyain Supdur Clinwdharn
Shancaigs Dinector Fveontove firecior

LI Qo172 1208, 00

ioE £ : ;
Bt 1.

Pariter

Tlemhersiup Nix

Kamlesh Kinar Agps Sharana

- B )
{haed Danensiicd Clapng Sech vl v
Tlaze Knikata Place: Kulkita
Dule, 29 Mlay 2018 Laate: 2% Moy 201#



HIMADRI SPECIALLITY CHEMICAL LIMITEDR
[Formeriy known 3 Himadri Chemicels & lodustrics Limited)
Standalone Statemenst of Profit and Loss far the vear ended 31 March 2018

Amuount in Ruprey Lakhs

" Yeur ended ¥ ewr endle:d
Nt 31 March 2618 3t March 201/
1. Bevenue from operutions pail 10315230 147,125.42
1. Olher ingume n T76.73 TEYRT
{LL Tutal ipcome (1 + 11) 202,9258.03 14791529
I¥. Expenses
Cosl of materials consumes:d 28 133,249,400 BE052 .80
Changes in inventorics of linished goods and work-in-progress i3 {ITL.63) G45.87
Fogise ny 5,034.56 14.708.21
Fployvee benefits expense Hr 4,663.10 158539
Vibance costy 31 104298 504745
irepreciztion and amortization expanse q4and 6 314142 3.097.36
Cher sxpenscs i 14,976,710
Total expenses POTAI65T
¥, Profit before tax (30-1V) 35,542,540 12340 13
VI Tax expenses 33
Cument fax 7,609,838 2,644.43
Dielured mx 3715146 1,574.31
V1L Profit for the year (¥-¥I) 2425746 #1107

VI Other comprehensive income {net of fax)
A, ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently te profif or loss

(1) Remeasurements of defined benefit Babilivy! (assel) {13.58) {1:.6%
{b) Equity instruanents through other comprehensive inceme  not change in fair value 13,794.02 3,509.67
Net other comprehensive inconte not to be reclassified subsequently o profit or loss 13,780.44 5.AB7.0%

B. items that witl be reclassified subscquently to grofit or foss

(1) Effective portion of painsf{lesses) on hedging instrumenls in cash flow hedges 3,8%2.61 165,36
() [:ETI‘E:t'.ve rostion of pains{losses an hedging instruments in cash {low hedies (3,774.56) R
reclazsitied w profit and Ioss
Net other eomprehensive income to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 108,05 168,36
Other comprehensive incame for the vear, net of tax 13,858.49 5.666.34
o T N ive inconie : : 17
X, Toal comprehensive income fue e year (VI1HYI) 38,145.95 13,783.71
X. Earpings per eijuity share 14
Tie: o vepuity shace Re | each {revious year Be 1 2och)]
- Basic S84 P o
- Dilueed 580 |4
)
Significant accounting policies 3

The secempanying noles Form anantegral part of the standalone financio: statements.

As per oar report of even date attached

YFor RS R & Co. L1 Far aned an Frefalt of e Hocrd o Threcdars of
(‘;fl‘i'rmz_m’ Aveauatanis Himadri Speciality Chemieal Limited
Eirm's Registration Number. 100 245 W%, 160022 L0 12T I W L SR TH L2 56

L
- - P e s IR -
Jayantn i\luﬁhap/:\-dh Bankey Lal Choudhary Shyam Sundar Choudbar
f"armer/"’ Murtcgings Do Sleeentied Srechar
{_,/@_lmﬁgcrship Mo, 05575 N 00173792 DI G0 TRYI2
- P : ‘\‘
1. ’ - |
Kamlesin Kumar Agarwal Bajrang [.al Sharma
owp Fancrned )i LRy Secreiary
Bloce: Kalkata Mace: Kolkata
[rate: 29 May 201§ Tane: 2% May 2058
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Formerly known as Hiadr Chemicals & Indusiries Linsited]
Standulone Stutemeal of Cash Fiows for the year ended 31 Murch 2018

Amaouni kn Rupers Lukhs

Yrar ended Yoar ended
31 March 2038 3 Marck 2017
A, Cush flows (ria operating sctivitics

el profit before tax 35,592,584 12.340.13
Adjustnents for!

Prepreciatien and aronctisation expense 3,141.42 3,007 34

Share based payments 103.79 25.40

Fiuanue vusty 104298 #,047.45

[nterest mecme (29871} [360.69)

Unwinding of di on secusity deposits st others (227.2T) [166.63}

Crain of fair vatuation of investments theough profit or loss (0.63) (63, 50)

[Dividend wcome on equily sty woerls [D.U%) (0.22)

Cruaraniee fee (1.26) [I6.76)

Cram on sals of curtent invesiments {mutaal finds) [11.35) [2%.57)

Foreign exchange fnetuation {nety THLI2 LETIED

et gain an sale of property, planl and equaipment - o lawzi)

e 052309 1234519

Operating cash flows before working capltuf changes 4, E16.44 24 GRS 32
Working capital adjostments:

[lnerease) in wmventories (131274} (75T

[Invrease) m trade receivables {5,405.93) [1,593.90)

[Tnerease in Gnaneial and olher assets {770.51) (THLGR}

Trriase! (decrease) in trade payabl (3,111.35) By

Increase! {decrease) in Sinancial, other fabiliices and provisions {1,721.75) 1,850 7

{13,571.58} {18608

Cash genersted from operathng wetivities 3158401 2282450
Income tax pad (net) 1.922.68) (2.338.44)
Nt cash rom operating setivitios {A) 24,662.23 0,486 06

H. Cash Mfowy from investing activities
Acquisition of preperty, plant and equipments 15205.17) (1.053.4%

Proceeds fisn sale of propety, piant and equipments - 44.61
imierest ineome reoedved 372,508 33429
Dhividends received .04 &2z
Guatantee fee reveived 125.2% .50
Loan ¢ a subsidiury (2A2L41) {5444y
Proceeds from sale af imvestmenis 5,237.05 ZRO2. 6t
Purchase of mvesiments 16,200.00} -
! ) redeenption in xed deposite with banks {having 1.034.63 (TRi.2T
matutity ¢f moze than § months)
Met ensh provided! (used) En Investing activities (B ’ 16, 053.03) [
. Cayh flaws [rom financing aclivitics
Regayment of nun comvertible debentures {10,600.90) .
Procesds lrm nan-current bomewings 13,122.63 RRIER{
Repayment of BOn-cUErer I0Mrow.ngs (15,223.53) (1074 el
Inerense? {decrease] in current borowings 1,959.35 (540 K9}
Interest paid (6,460,457 (16,255,115
Net proceeds! (omilow) on settlement of dorivative comracts [FLT.54) {49699
Dividend paid {including dividend disiribution tax ) (503591 {251.79)
et cash provided by! {used in} Ananging setivities {C)
el inerrased (deercase) in cash and cash cquivalenis (A+B8+C) 5%6.06
Tash and cash equivalents a1 1 Apil i3 IRR
{refer noe Y 1o the -1 Jalune Baaneiol )]
Erffect of exchange race fluciuations en cash held m foreipn cutrency (EEFC aceounts) 1074 w4d)
Cash amel cash equivalents al 31 March 171804

{reler note 9 i the Slandalone Goengial statements)

5 P e
fm s DR s.\.L;
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IUMADRI SPECTALITY CHEMICAL LiMITED
{Farmerly known as Himadri Chemicals & [ndustrics Limited)

Stundalang Statement of Cush Flows for the vear ended I1 March 2018 (Canlinued)

Amoust in Rupees Lakhs

MNotes:

1. Stapdaione Statement ol (Tash Flows has been prepared under the indiect method 45 set ot in Ind AS 7 specified under Sestion 133 of the Companies Act, 207 5.

.

3. Change ity Lianility arising [rom Ananving aclivilies

2. Acquisition of propeity, plant and equipment includes eovemerrs of copital work - in-progress (including capital advances wnd ira5ility Tor rapital goeds) during the yeua.

Foreign exchange Falr ¥alue

1 Aprll 2017 Cash Mivw {net) 31 March 2018

movensenl Changes
Borewing (inclading current maturities ol long-term debt} - Non Current 41,543.32 {12,100.90) 45,46 6202 29.592.90
Gomowing - Currecl 13 BRE O 105935 94 34 - 16,422.51
As per our repott uf even dase attached
“ForB8.R & Co. LLP For and on behaff of e Board of Dwectaes of
Charternd Aciowmtans Himadri Speclality Chemical Limlted
Finn's Bepistration Nuinber. 101245 W - 100022 CIN LITIOSWR 1987042750
P P P
P G R (AN 3
Bankey L4l Choudhary Shyum Sundar {houdbary
Pavrtner Managing Thregtor Frocwtive Dhrecior
teimbershi o DTN 00173792 THN: 073732 .
L =, ; o N
- Lo \ - ',/
; kf"’lff‘; i E N i AR

Place: Kolkata
The; 290 May 20148

“ Kanlsh Kumar Agarnal

o ]
Bapfing Lal Sharma

Chiof Fimcrreial (Mfloer Clermpsany Secretory

Plave: Koelkata
Date; 29 May 2 1E
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAIL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industties Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2018

1. Reporting entity

Ilimadri Speciality Chemica) Limited (formerly known as Ilimadri Chemicals & Industrics Limited ‘(the
Company’} is a public company domiciled and headquartered in India, having its registered office simatedat 234,
N. 8 Road, Kolkata and corporate office situated at 8, India Exchange Place, 2™ floor, Kolkata -700 001, The
Company was incorporated on 28 July 1987 and its shares arc listed on Nutiona! Stock Exchange (NSE} and
Bombay Swck Exchange (BSE). The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of carbon materials
and chemicals. The Company has operations in India and caters to both domestic and international markets. The
Company also has a wholly-owned subsidiary in India in the name of Equal Commodeal Private Limited, a step
down wholly-owned subsidiary in the name of AAT Global Limited, incorporated in Heng Kong and another sicp
down subsidizry with 4% shareholding in the name of Shandong Dawn Himadri Chernical Industry Limiicd,
incorporated in China.

2. Basis of preparation of Standalone financial statements

(a) Statement of compliance

These Standalone financial statements arc prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 Companics Act,
2013 (*Aet’y and other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Fxchange Board
of India (*SEBT’), as applicable.

The Stundalone financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on 29 May 2018,

The details of the Company’s accounting policics are included in note 3.

{b) Functional and presentation currency

These Standalone financial staternents arc presented in Indian Rupees (Rs), which is also the Company’s
fimetional currcucy. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

(¢} Basis of measurement

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except
for the following items:

(i) Derivative [inancial instruments measured at fair value;

{11y Certain financial assets and financial Habilitics measured at fair value;

(i1} Assets held for sale-measured atl the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sefl;
(iv}  Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation, and

(v}  Share-based payments

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
{ransaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining the fair
value ol un asset or a liability, the Company takes into accouni the characteristics of the asset or Hability if market
participants would take those characieristics into account when pricing the assct or lability at the measurement
date. :

b
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industrics Limited)
Notes to the Standakone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Cantinucd)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's Standalone financial stalements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of revenues, cxpenscs, assets and labilitics, and the
accompanying notes and disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about these assumptions and cstimatcs could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
Judgemeuts and the use of assumplions in these Stundalone financial statcrments have been disclosed below,
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates,
Appropriate changes in eslimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. The changes in the estimates arc reflecicd in the Standalone financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their cffects are disclosed in the notes to the Standalonc
finaneial stalements,

Critical accounting estimates and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions
(i}  Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The Company uses jts technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economie life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically
and revised, if appropriate. [n casc of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the
remaining usetul life of the assets. Sec note 3 (d) and 4 for details.

(i)  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair vajues of financial assets and financial liabitities recorded in the bhalance sheet cannot be
measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair valuce is measured using certain valuation
techniques, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
Is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing (air values. Judgoments include
considerations of inputs such ag volatitity risk, credit risk and volatility. See note 3 (v) and 42 for details,

(iify Defined benefit plan

‘The cost of the defined benefit plan inchedes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual devcloprnents in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
invoived fu the valuation and ils leng-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting dale. See nole 3(g) and 38 for details.

(iv} Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with erployees using Black Scholes Merton
maede] to determipe the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair valne for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which ix
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility ard
dividend yield and making assumnptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair
value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 3(g}(i) and 39.
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(Fonmnerly known as Himadri Chemicals & fndustrics Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(v) Recognition of current tax and deferved tax

Current taxcs are recognised at tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and the amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. See noie 3(n) and 332 for details.

(vi) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The certain key assumptions about the likelthood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is
towards known contractual obligation, litigation cascs and pending assessments In respect of taxes, duties
and other levies in respect of which management beligves that there are present obligations and the
settlement of such obligations are expected 1o result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for. Se¢
note 24, 35(a} and 43 for details.

{e) Measurement of fair values

A nuruber of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurernent of fair values, for
financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Company has an cstablished control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The management has averall responsibility for oversecing all significant fair vaive measurements and it regularly
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used fo measure fair values, then the valuation team assegses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including
the level in the fair value hierazchy in which the vahiations should be classificd.

Fair values arc categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: gquoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than guoted priccs included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3: inputs Tor the asset or liability that arc not based on observable market data (unobservahle inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a lisbility fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is cateporised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant o the entire measurcment.

The Company recognises fransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the cnd of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is inclnded in note 43.
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

3. Significant accounting policies

(a) Current Vs. non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in: the Schedule TiI to the Act,

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(fy  itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle;

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

{iii) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(iv} it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at
least 12 months after the ceporting date.

Current assets include current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A Hability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i} itisexpected to be scttled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(i) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iii) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditionaj right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issuc of equity instruiments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilitics include current portion of non-current financial liabilities,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and Labilities are classified 2s non-current assets and liabilitics.

Operating cyclé

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has ascertained its

normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of business and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents,

(b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forcign currencies are transiated into the respective functional cutrency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
{Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 20618 (Continued)

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair valug in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the ransaction.

Exchange differcnces are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they anise, except:
- exchange differsnces on qualifying cash flow hgdges to the extent that the hedges are effective;

- exchange differcnces on long term foreign currency monetary items accounted for in aceordance with
exemption availed by the Company under Ind AS 101,

{¢) Financial ingtruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade Receivables and debt securitics issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Trade receivables are initially measured at transaction price.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FYTPL), transaction costs that are direct]y attributable to its acquisition or issue of
the financial asset.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at;
- amortised cost; or
- fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FYOCI—- Equity Investment; or

fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recogaition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business mode! for managing financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following condilions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

(a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contracmal cash
flows; and

{b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to eash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding. ’

The effective interest rate (ETR) amottisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. This category generally applies fo long-term deposits and long-term trade receivables.
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
{(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Coatinued)

Financial assets at FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
glect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVQCI-equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Financial asscts are measured at the FVQCT if both of the following conditions are met;

(a) The cbjective of the business model is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows vepresent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements arc recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets which are not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may imevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirerents to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOC] as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI} .

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recagnition. ‘Interese’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractua} terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
containg a contractuzl term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition, Tn making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or titning of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension featyces; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract, Additionally, for 2 financial asset acquired at 2 significant discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for carly termination) is treated as conststent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. ’
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Financial asvels: Subsequent measurement cond gains and losses

—

Financial assets ' These assets are subscquently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses,
at FVTPI, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit
{ and Loss.

Financial asscts | These assets are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the EIR. The
at amortised . amortised cost is redueed by impairment losscs, if any. Interest income, foreign

cost cxchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition 1s recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Equity These assets arc subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends arc recognised as

luvestments  at | income in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a

FVOCI recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are

recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to Statcment of Profit and Loss. i

[nvestments in subsidiary is carried at cost in standalone financial statements.
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurcment and gains and losses
Financial [{abilities are classificd as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL,

Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as al FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it
is designated as such on inilial recognition. Financial liabilitics at FVTPL are measurcd at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relutionships as defined by Ind AS 109. See note 3(civ) for financial
liabilities designated as hedging instruments.

Separated cmbedded derivatives are also classified as held [or trading unless they are desipnated as
elfective hedging instruments, Gains or losses on such instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost

Other financial liabilitics are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methud Interes:
expensc and foreign exchange gains and losses are recopnised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any pam
or loss on derccognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Interest bearing loans and borrewings are subsequently measured at amoriised 2ost using the EIR method.
Gaings and losses are recognised in Stalemncnt of Profit and Loss when the lisbilitics are derccognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process, For trade and other payables maturing within one year from
the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments. :
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(iv)

v

Financial guarantee liability

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment lo be made
to reimburse the holder for 2 loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 10 make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, Financial guarantee contracis are recognised initially as
a hability ar fair value net off transaction cosis that are dircetly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the Hability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset:

- when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or

- ittransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substamtially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and docs not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derccognises a financial liability when its contraciual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or cxpire. The Company also derccognises a financial Yiability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows under the modificd terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial Hability
based on the modificd terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability exiinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsctting

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount prescated in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to scttle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and scttle the liability simultancousty,

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts, interest
rate swaps, cross currency swap and oplion contracts to hedge its foreign cuerency and interest rate risk
exposutes, Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounied for separatcly if the
host contract is not a financial assct and certain criteria arc met.

Derivalives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured
at {air value, and changes therein are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as
fnancial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial hahilities when the fair value is negative.

The Company desigpates certain derivatives as hedging instrutents to hedge the varlability in cash {lows
associated with highly prabable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates.



Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
{Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Al inception of designated hedging relalionships, the Company docurmnents the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic relationship belween
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged
item and hedging instrument are expected to offsct each other.

Cash flow hedges

The Company uses lorward contracts, eross currency swaps and interest rates swaps to hedge its exposure
to foreign currency risk in forecast trangactions and firm commiiments.

These derivative contracts which quahify as cash flow hedges are recorded in accordance with the
recognition and measuremcent principles set outin the lnd AS 109 " Financial fnstruments; Recognition and
Measurement” 1ssucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The use of hedge instruments is
govemed by the Company's policics approved by the Board of Directors. The Company does not use these
contracts for trading or speculalive purposes.

When a derivative is designated as 4 cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes i the
fair valuc of the derivative is recognised in OCland accumulated in the other cquily under *effective partion
of cash flow hedges’. The effective porlion of changes in the fair value of the derivative thal is recognised
in OCI is limiled to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present valuc
basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial itern such
as Inventory, the amount accumulated in other cquity is included directly in the initial cost of the
non-financial item when it is recognised. For all other ledged forecast transactions, the amount
accumnulated in other equity is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged expected future cash flows affect Statement of Profit and Loss.

If & hedge no Jonger meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, cApires, 15
tertninated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting
for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in other equity remains there
until, for a hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a non-financial item, it is inctuded in the
non-financial item’s cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period or periods as the hedged expecied future cash tlows affect
Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the hedged future cash flows/ forecasted transactions are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts
that have been accumulated in other equity arc immediately reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivatives that are not designated as hedge

The Company enters intu certain detivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Such contracts are accounted for at Jair value through Statement of Profit and Toss.
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
{Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Indusiries Limited)
Notes fo the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018 (Continued})

(vi} Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid {combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a
way similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or al! of the cash flows that
otherwise would be required by the contract to be modificd according 1o a specified interest rate, tinancial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit
index, or other variable, provided in the case of 4 non-financial variable that the variable is not specitic to
a party to the contract,

Embedcded derivative arc accounted for as separate derivative and recorded at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Property, plant and cquipment

0]

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impaitment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxcs, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributabic
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its inlended usc and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the iter and restoring the site on which it is located.

Borrewing costs directly attributabie to the acquisition or construction of those qualifying properly, plant
and equipment, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are
capitalised.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different uscful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate components of property, plant and equipment.

A fixed asset is eliminated from the {ipancial statements ot disposal or when no further benefit is expected
from its use and disposal.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an ilem of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss. Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital work-in-
progress, Asscts retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the fower of their net book value
and net realisable value and shown under *Other current assets’,

b
Foreign currency cxchange differences on loans used for purchases of properly, plant and cquipment prior
to 1 April 2016, are continucd to be capitalised as per policy stated in note 3 {b) above.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent cxpenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
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Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Wotes to the Standalene financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(iti) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is caiculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the written down value method for property, plant and
equipment situated at Liluah Unit - T (Howrah), Vapi and Vizag, and on Property, Plant and equipments
situated at other locations are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at the rates
and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule II of the Act. The rates of depreciation as prescribed in
Part C of Schedule 1T of the Act are considered as the mipimum rates.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives
unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain owtership by the end of the lease term. Freehold
land is not depreciated.

Leascheld land (includes development cost} is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of
respective lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
valucs are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusied as appropriate.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current period are as follows:

{Asset Management estimate of useful Usefui life as per
life (in years) Schedule 11 (in years)
Buitdings 10-60 30
{ant and equipment 5-60 §-40
Office equipment 5-25 : 5
Vehicles §-10 6-10
‘urniture and fixtures 10 8-10

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if appropriate. Based on technical cvaluation report obtained from an independent valucr, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets. Estimates in respect of Plant and equipment and Building were revised w.e.f 1
April 2016,

Depreciation on additions {disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset
is ready for use {disposed off/ discard).

{e) Intangible Assets
(i} Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets includes computer software which are acquired by the Company and are initially measured
at cost, Such intangible assets arc subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accomulated impairment loss. .
Revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged as an expense through the normal heads of
account in the year in which the same is mcurred, Capital expenditure incurred on equipment and facilitics

that arc acquired for rescarch and development activities is capitalised and is depreciated according to the
policy followed by the Company. :

o — e Ty
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(ii} Subsequent expenditure

Subscquent expenditure is capilalised onby if it {s probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure witl flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Amortisation

Amortisation in respect to ali the infangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful fives of
assets based on the evaluation. The useful life of such intangible assets for Computer software is 5 years

() Impairment

&)

{ii)

Impairment of financial instruments: financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at F¥TPL, are asscssed for indicators of impairment at the cnd of cach
reporting peried. A financial assct is *credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit Joss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade teccivable with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For alf other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured unless there has been a sipnificant increase in credit risk from
initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses
{or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required
to be recognised is Tecognised as an impairment gain or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplificd approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial [nstruments for recognition of impairment loss afiowance. The application of simplified
approach docs not require the Company 1o track changes in credit risk, The Company calculates the
expeeted credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss
expericnce.

When determining whether the eredit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and suppottable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
agsessment and including subsequent information.

[mpairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax asscts, are reviewed at cach
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of lmpairment. if any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do nut generate independent eash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating unils (CGUs). Fach CGUJ represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash
inflows that arc largely independent of the cash inflows of other asscts or CGlJs.

W
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The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individua! asset) is the higher of its valug in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in usc is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markei assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets {e.g. corporate office for providing support to varivus CGUs) do not
generate imdependent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs,

An impairment loss is recognised if the cartying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment logses are recognised in the Statement of Profivand fLoss.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of 8 CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrving amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the olher assets of the CGU {ar
group of CGUs} on a pro rata basis,

An impairment loss in respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recogaised in prior
peripds, the Company revicws at cach reporting date whether there i3 any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used {o determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amouni that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amertisation, if no impajrment loss bad been recognised.

{g) Employee benefits

—

H

{ii)

Short-term employee benefiis

Short-term employee benefit obligations are mcasured on an undiscounted basis and are expenscd as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount cxpected to be paid e.g., under short-
terin cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employec, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably,

Share- based payment traasactions

The Company recogniscs compensaljon expense relating to share-based payments in Statement of Profit
and Loss using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share Based Payment.

The grant date fair value of equity settled sharc-based payment awards granted to employees {s recognised
as an employee expense, with a corresponding increasc in equity, over the period that the employecs
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate
of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions arc expected to
be met, such thal the amount ultimately recognised as an expensc is based on the number of awards that do
meet the telated service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting daie. For share-based payment
awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured 10
reflect such conditions and there i3 ne true-up for differcnces botween expected and actual outcomes.
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(iii} Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions inte a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obhigation to pay further amounts,
The Company makes specified monthly contributions (a) employee provident fund to Government
administercd provident fund scheme, and {b) superannuation scheme for eligible employees to Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LICI), which are defined contribution plans. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employec benefit expense in Statement of Profil and

Loss in the periods during which the related services are rendercd by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future

payments is available.
(iv} Defined benefit plans

A defined benelit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plun. The Company’s nel obligation in respect
of defined bencfit plans is calculated by cstimating the amount of futurce benefit that employces have camed
in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan asscts.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in & polential asset for the Company, the
recognised assel is hmiled to the present value of cconomic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (*the asset ceiling’). In order 1o
calculate the present value of economic benelits, consideration is given {o any minimum funding
requirements. The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plan

immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remcasurements of the net defined benetit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets {excluding interest) and the effect of the assct ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (assct) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability {asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (assct) during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised

in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of « plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or toss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in Stalement of Profir and Loss. The Company recognises gaing and losses on the

setilement of a defined benefit plan when the settiement ocenrs,

The contributions are deposited with the Life Insurance Corporation of Indis based on information received
by the Company. When the benefits of a plan arc improved, the portion of the increased benefit related to
past service by employees is recognised in Statement of Pralit and Loss on a slraight-hnc basis over the

average period until the benefits become vested.
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(v} Compensated abscices

As per policy of the Company, employees can carry forward unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in next service period or receive cash compensation. Since the compensated absences fall due
wholly within twelve manths after the end of ihe period in which the employees render the telated service
and are also expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit
is classificd as a current employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated
absences in the year in which the employce renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
abligation is measured at actuals at the year end as per the policy of the Company. The expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences is determined by the management at cach balance sheet date measured
based on the amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the balance sheet date. Non-aceunulating compensated absences are recognised in the period in which
the abscnees oceur.

(h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

®

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an eutflow of ceonomic benefits will be required to setile the
obligation.

Provisions arc determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (represcnting the best estimate of the
expenditure required fo settie the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
matket assessments of the time value of moncy and the risks specific 1o the liability.

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided
for.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best cstimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the cnd of the reporting peried, (aking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

Inveniories

Inventaries which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores and sparcs
arc measured at the Jlower of cost and net realisable vatue,

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out {FIFO) formula, and includes expendilure incurred in
acquining the inventorics, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present
lovation and condition. Excise duty liability is included in the valuation of closing inventory of ihe finished goods.

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed
production gverhieads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished
products.
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Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written
down below cost exccpt in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished
products will exceed their net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, fess the cstimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Assessment of net realisable value is made at cach subscquent reporting date. When the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an
increase in net realisable value because of changed ¢conomic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is
reversed.

Revenue-~ Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activitics js measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and quantity discounts and exclusive of Sales tax and Value
added 1ax (VAT) and Goods and Service Tax {(GST) xand is inclusive of excise duty. This inter alia involves
discounting of the consideration duc to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms. Revenue
is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferved to the buyer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible retumm of poods can be cstimated reliably, there is
ne continuing effective control over, or managerial involvement with, the poods, and the amount of revenue can
he measured reliably,

The timing of transfers of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of sale. Export incentives
(duty drawback) are recognised on accrual basis apainst goods exporled.

Farning from sale of power is accounted for on tariff rates agreed with respective Electricity Board and are net of
discounts for prompt payment of bills.

(k) Government Grants

Government granis are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other operaling revenue on a sysiematic
bagis over the periods in which the Company recognises the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate,

Government grants (hat are receivable towards capital investments under Staie Incentive Scheme are recognised
in the Statemenl of Profit and Loss in the period in which they become reccivable.

Government grants arc not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is trealed as a government grant, measured a3
the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates
and 15 being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The loan is subsequemtly measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial habilities.
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(1} Recognrition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company's right to
receive payiment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the cffective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate” is the
rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash payments or reccipts through the expected life of the financial
mstrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; ot
the amortised cost of the financial liability.

Is calculating interest income and expense, the cffective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subscquent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective inferest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then
the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

{m) Leascs
()  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
Atinception of an arrangement, il is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.

The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 1o use the assct or assets, even if thal right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement,

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangemont that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
clements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance leasc thal it is impracticable
to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying assct. The liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost
on the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate.

(ii)  Assets held under leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantiatly ail the risks and rewards
of ownership arc classified as finance leases. The leascd assels are measured initially at an amount equal
to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the assets arc accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to similar
owned assets.

Assets held under leases that do not transter to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership (i.e. operating leases) are nol reeognised in the Company’s Balance Sheet, Pasments made under
operaling leases arc recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a siraight-line basis over the term of
the lcase unless the payments to the lessor are structured W inercase in line with general inflation.

L lrf‘é:f s . - '\ . e -_'_ ’ e f;
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(iii) Lcase payments

Payments made under operating leascs are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments arc structured to increase m line with

cxpected general inllation 10 compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Leasc incentives received are recognised as an imtegral part of the total lease cxpense over the term of the

lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term

50 as to producc a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Liability.

{n) Income tax

Income tax expense compriscs of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is tecognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relales to a business combination, or items recognised

directly in eguity or in OCIL

(i} Current tax

Current lax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respeet of previous years. The amount of current tax
refleets the best estimate of the lax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and 1ax laws) enacted or substantively enacted

by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitics arc offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended Lo realise the asset and settle the Liability on a net basis or

simuliancously.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes {tax
base). Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax eredits. Defemed tax

is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or labilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the

transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiarics, associates and joint arrangements (o the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the lemporary differences and

it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable {uture; and
- taxable wemporary differences arising on the initial recognition of poodwill.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that il is probablc that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therelore, in case of a history of recent losscs, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax

asset can be realised.

Deferred tax asscts —unrecopnised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised’
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be

rcalised.

Deferred tax is measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assct is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been cnacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to tecover or seftle the carrying amount of itg asscts and

liahilities,

Deferred tax assets and Labilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assels, and they relate to income taxes levied by the samc tax authority on the same taxablc
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to setile current tax liabilitics and assets on a nol basis or

their 1ax assets and liabilities will be realised simultancously.

In case of tax payabte as Minimum Alternative Tax (*MAT’) under the provisions of the Tncome-tax Act,
1961, the credit avaifable under the Act in respect of MAT paid is rccopnised as an asset only when and te
the extent therc is convineing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period {or
which the MAT ercdit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal (ax liability. MAT credit
recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the exient the aforesaid

convineing evidence no longer exists.

{0) Barrowing costs

Borrewing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial peried of time 1o get ready for their intended usc are capitalised as part of the cost

of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there iy
a realised or unrealised gain in Tespect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent

of the loss previously recogniscd as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment o interest,

{p} Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly altributable to the issue of ordinary shares arc

recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects,
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(q) Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends atc recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Board of Direciors of the Company,

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash-on-deposit with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid
mvestments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are rcadily
convertibie to known amounts of cash to be cash cquivalents,

(s} Cash flow statement

Cash flows ar¢ reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or futurc operating cash reccipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
invesling and financing activities of the Company ate segregated.

(t) Farnings per share

Basic earnings per sharc is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried attributable to equity
sharcholders by the weighted average namber of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpoesc of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the cffects
of atl dilutive potential equity shares.

(u) Operating segment

Am operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may carn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and cxpenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regulacly by the Chief Operating 1Jecision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about
resources to be allocaied to the segments and assess their performance. The Company has curtently two reportable
segmems viz, Carbon materials and chemicals and Power,

(v) Determination of fair values

b
Fuir values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
Where applicable, further informaution about the assumptions made in determining 1air values is disclosed in the
netes specific 1o that asset or bBability.

(iy Separable embedded derivative
The fair value of the separable embedded derivative is measured using the Black-Scholes Merton valuation

maodel. Measurement inputs inelude share price on measurcment date, expected term ol the instrument, risk
free rate (based on povernimeni bond}, expected volatility.
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(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets arc initially measured at fair value. 1f the financial asset is not subsequently
accounted for at fair valuc through profit or loss, then the initial measurement includes directly attributable

transaction costs, These are measured at amortised cost or st FVTPL or at FVOCL

Investments in cquity instruments are measured at FVOCT and adjusted net assets method has been used

for fair valuations of investment in unquoted securitics.

(iii) Trade and other receivables

The fair values of irade and other receivables are estimated at the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date. Shorl-term receivables with no stated
intercst rate arc measured at the eriginal invoice amount if the cffect of discounting is immaterial. Fair
value 18 determined at initial recognition and, for disclosure purposes, at cach annual reporting date.

(iv) Derivative financial liabilities

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps,
cross cumrency swap to hedge its forcign currency risks, interest rate risks, Such derivative financial
instruments are iniliaily recognised at fair value on the date on which » derivative contract is entered into

and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

(v)  Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Other non-derivative financial liabilitics are measured at fair value, at initial recognition and for disclosure
purposes, at cach annual reporting date. Fair value is caleulated based on the present value of future
principal and intercst cash flows, discounted at the market rale of interest at the measurement date. For

finance leascs the marked rate of interest is determined with reforence to similar lease agrecments.

{vi) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employec stack options is measured using the Black-Schules Merton valuation model.
Measurement inputs includc share price on grant date, cxercise price of the instrument, expected volatility,
expected life of the instrument (based on historical experience), expected dividends, and the risk free

interest rate (based on government bonds).
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3A. Recent accounting pronouncements- Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 has notificd the following new and amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied
as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018:

(iy Revenue from contracts with customers- Ind AS 115

Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for cntities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers, Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS
18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes cffective.

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise rcvenue to depict the transfor of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract{s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Tnd AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services undetlying the particular performance obligation is transfecred to
the customer,

The standard permits two possible methods of trausition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial
application (Cumulative catch - up approach). The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018,

The Company will adopt the standard on 1 April 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method
and accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended 31 March 2018 will not be retrospeciively
adjusted, The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.

(i) Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign curcency transactions and advance consideration

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explaing that the date of the transaction, for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment agsat
or deferred income lability. Tf there are multiple payinents or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is
cstablished for each payment or rceeipt. The Company is ¢valuating the impact of this amendment on its
financial statements,
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HIMADRISPECIALITY CUEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly knewo as Himadrl Chemicals & Industriey Limited)
Notes to the $Stapdzlone financizl statements for (he year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued}
Ampunt in Rupees Lakhs

4. Preperly, plant and egquipment
See accqunting policies in note Hd) end (1}

Reconciliation of garrying amount

Frechold Leasehold Buildings Plant and Furniture Vehicles Olfice Tatat
Land 1.and __equipment and littings eguipment

st ar decaied enst
(Grass carrylng amount)
elance a | Aprl 2016 KBRS 0445 72204 135.053,13 TI6 3343 155600 4931053
Additions 6988 9.8 L4458 THRREZE 072 {5 ¥ i0d 44 3,306.50
Epaposasd discard [1.65) - - - - [5.39) - (9.24)
Effeer of movemenl in foreigm exehangs - - - 15.36 - - - 1536
Tales
Belance al 31 March 2017 346715 J34.16 ER R s 137953717 736,88 893,65 166644 152.6.797
Balance at 1 Apedl 2817 3.667.15 3300 137172 13795377 Ti6 8% BR36S 1,660.44 152,617.77
Aulditions 40.00 - 202,56 1.286.56 21558 80.29 100,74 143603
[hspozals! dseard - - - - - - - -
E[Tect of movement in foreign exchangn: - - - %446 - - - KR .46
rdley
Balunce at 31 March 2018 3,107.15 3.6 T.574.28 140,028, 79 T6L.T6 Y7394 1.7T6L.18 155,142,240
Accumuluted depreciativn and
amortisalion
Bzlance at | Aprit 2016 - - | AA2.3% 3500389 A15.06 535.84 1.426.70 39,73 g
Drepreciation’ amortisation for the yewr - 13.35 19701 268442 115 8470 6,22 3097 s
Adjusteents! disposals - - - - - 13.83) - [1ES
Balance at 31 Mareh 2007 . 13,75 143348 37 6R%.32 486.31 G14.69 1,472,927 42,320.39
Balance ar | Apri] 2017 - 13.75 1,039.40 AT.6R8.32 486.31 619,69 1.472.92 4232003%
Deprecisticn? ataartisetion for the year . 13.75 198.63 2,74%.33 6850 T2.26 3582 114028
Adjustments! dispagals - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2018 - 27.50 2,238.43 40,437 65 554.81 491,95 151174 45.461.6%
Carvying amounts (neth
A3 Mureh 20107 ERCE N 3204t 5,131.32 10026545 25057 27380 18752 11029758
At 31 Murch 2018 1,707.15 306.66 5,336.2% 99,59L.14 207.95 281.9% 143,44 100,680.58

Notes:
fad As at 31 Masch 2018, Broperty, plunt and equipment with camying amount of Rs 106,036.35 lakhs (31 March 2007 Ry 16042343 lakbs) ane subieot e finst charge o
secire bomowanys (eler nate 195

b Closing geass varrying amount nelides Research and development assets (Buitding, #lant and auipment, Fumiture and fitings and Gffice equipmenty of Rs 144601
lakhs {31 Mz (H7: Ky 1.254.17 lakhs) and Net Biock of Rs 916.29 Jakhs (31 March 2007: Rs 81595 lakhs). Additions for the Research anel develupment assais duriig
the year 2007-2% 15 Ry 191,89 lakhs.

(e} Luring the previous year ended 37 Murch 2017, on the basis of teeninical repert abrained from ue sxlependent valuer, the snaragemnent had reassess
of Plant and equipment e [3L.]ldln_[,\ wath effieet from L Apnl 2016, As a resudt, the depreciation chage fur (e previows year ended 31 Mareh 2017 was lowcr by Jts 2
lakhs and prafit belore lax for the previous year ended 31 March 2017 was higher 'y Rs 283993 lukhs.

o S
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HIMADR] SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
[Formetly known as Hemadn Cherricals & Industrics Linited)

Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Cuntinued)

Amount in Rupecs Lakhs

5. Lapital work-in-progress

See accounting pulicy it note 3(dy

A the boginring of the year
Addilary during the year
Capitalisedl during the vear
Althe end of the year

Capital work-ln-progress includes:

Expenditurn ineurred during construction period on sulstamial expansion § rew
manufaciriag facdisy ol the Company, giver below:

At the beginning of ske year
Adéitions durieg the vear,
Ernplewee benetits expense
Power and fuel
Kates and 1axes
Repairs
Rent
Miscellanegus expenses (inclides consultarcy charges, inspeeiion charges, 1esing

chirges, ole.)

Tess: Capitalised dusing the year
At the end of the year

0. [otangible assets

Sev acceunting palicics in note ey and (0

tion of carrying amount

Cost or decrned cost
(Gross earrving amount)
Balaner az | April 206
Additions

Misposals!’ Thacard
Balance at 3t SWareh 2317

UDnsposals’ Discard
Balapce at 31 March 2018

Accamulated amortisation
Balaace at 1 Apdl 2016
Amartisation fer the vear
Adpisimentss 1disposals
Balanete at 31 March 2017
Dalanve al | Aprid 2057
Amprlisation for the vear
Adjusimentsd Dispasals
Balance at 31 March 2018
Carryipg amounts {netj
A5 March 2017

At 31 March 2018

* Capitalized o 31 March 3018

(111)

31 March 2008 3| March 2007
FI6.45 173270
1,175.96 137699
{2,444.4m (3.172.24)
1,768.01 936,45

31 March 2018

31 Macch 2017

1746 198 8«

48,50 [BRT
- L&t

S0.00 TED
- 1415
- 13

108,39 5253

204,87 K435
- 25083

2405 17.46

(Eomputar Total
Soltware

23627 2

236.27 136,27
n13 Loz
.13 0.13

236,14

. L PP
k i

o



HIMADRI SPECIALITY CNEMICAL LIMUTED
fFomesly known as Elisadr) © larmpealy & Indusiries Linsied)
Nodes te the Standulene financlal statements for the year ended 31 Mareh IS (Continued)

Amunn in Rupees [akhs

7. lovestments
See acegunting polices i nune 3030 - (i, (v aed 0D

A Manecurreot Tivesioents

N March3ol |} MasaZoiT
Livestiswents in subsidiarics carried ot cost
Faqulty instruments
10000 (31 Macch 617 10,0000 eyuivy saares of Eyua) Commouval Mfrivate | ituteil, 0 wholly-owned su' 140 S
Vg vadue - R 13 each, faliy pord-ap) ‘ :
Dichentures or bunild
S04 {21 March 501 £ BOGY 1.50% Fully O, thle Deberivicy in Equa; O Sl Private Lirmited, 3 whotly-awnat sobsidinny :
- . nne Ge
{face value - e §.00H,000 ench, fully paid-ug) 8.000.00 &
Bold  RGDLOD
Equity insiominents carvled al fair value (hrongh ather comprehensive invome (FYO4CT)
Quated
LT TIAPCT va sy shares o1 L Credin & Fanance b R
334,900 (3| Maieh 2 T T34 9001 iy shares of Himade: Crefin & Finaoce Linited £700.0% |15 07
ifmee value - Rg 10 sach)
B,000 (31 March 2017: %,000) weaity shares of Traorchem Linated 160 |30

{fwe volur - B 10 each)

5.712.69
Linguoled
T2O000 (37 Marels 2007 T20000) equity stize wf [Rmadn Dyes & irermed e [imied
. : 12,100.64
(faze vajue - Bs LG cach)
17,000 (3] Marc: 2007 ]7.000] ceuity shates of | limadet o-Caorhon Lameted 152 T
[foze value - R
493,300 (11 March .LH T 403 3007 eguizy shates of Himado Indasries Lirdnad wa19.07 3100 16
(face value - Bs 16 qash) —— .
T fussear o4
finvernitient secarilies {nyguoted) carcied at amarilsed cost
Kianr Yikas Patzi Drepesitod with sales ax authorites) A nn?
Total 3532403 16455 18
Aparzgate baek value of queied mvestments 576" 139787
Aggregate markat value of quuted nveomenss 5, 79260 [
Agaregate valoe of unuetl investments 2953134 14.540.5]

L Vi

The Carpiny. on 31 Marsl 201, invested i 8300 1 50% Optivoe ]y Convesuhle Gobentuzs |00 18" R 1,000 80U garghoof Lyual Commodeal Privite Lic cAating Lo
Ps 8,000 Iakhs by way of private placemenr, The said debertures were. nl Se optiun of the dehenture Bolder rodvermaise ar par, in gast or 12 Bl anyiams an ur afler 12 months Jres
allatment er convertible Ihares at the end of 10 yours fron: tie date of alluiment uf o prise gopsl s Net Assel Yaloe as per the fnst andited Bolance Sheet of Bqert Commndi:l Pm ol

Liertiad.

7. the serms of the existing OCDs were anended and acvan
ikl Drebentures (FCD) ity suity 53 a pe:
e Leaure of the FCD, The conpan pavmments of §8%

gy, Ty way o approval of the buasil of directors. passed ai the
av ol Bs & 000 Jakie, o1 Lhe end ol The maturity, wich cption w
p a. eomponnded quarlerly were des0 Eevisad to be paid disic

G alcve (0D stund as
v Ay time dunng

Marcn 2017,
ta opt fur an early convertisn o
the s curnpaby.

surilily ;¢
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHENMICAL LIMITED
{Furmeely koows as Flimadn Chemicals & Industrics [imited)
Notes tw the balane financial Tar the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continwed)

Amount jn Rupees Lakhs

B Carresd investinents
3t March 2018 31 Macch 2117

Mutual funds (quoted) carried &t fRir value thraugh profil or loss

Nil {3} March 2017: 157,180} nnitz of 177 Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Barecl Plan - Growth - I5.08
- 23 18
. AL

Apgregnte buak value uf quoted invesiments - 276

Agaregate markel value of quned ivestments - 2508

Investmemts it funds snounting Le Rs 8§ (31 March 2017: Rs 2508 lukiw) arce pledged with baks against varivus credit fag))iics svailed hy the Company.
Tnfortunion shes: the Company's caposure to fan value measuromest, crodit nnd marker eisk and are included in aue 42 aid saoe 43
T, Equity shares designated at Fafr value though uther comprebensive income {FVOC)

Asar | Apm 20148, the Company designated the imvestmends shown below as equaty instruments at ¥ VO becawse these cquity instroments sepresent myvestments thal tae Company intends to
hoid for long-tertt for Strabegic purpose;.

Dividend income

Fair value . Falr value Dividend income Fair value
as af recagnived as at recopnised during a3 Af
during
31 March 2008 IMT-18 3 Maren 2057 21617 35 March M6
bryeeslment in ACC Limited - [T - 0.22 17.50
Investment in Himadn Credit & Finance Limited 5,7540.09 - E.T96.07 - 496.99
Imvestracnt in New [delhi Television Limied - - - - 1.49
Investment in Trazschemn Limited .60 - 181 140
Iovestment an Eleadn Dyes & Insermediates Limicd 12,100.68 - 3.755.52 - 14378
Investment i kg dri ¢-Cavbon Limited 1.52 - 1.56 . 56
Irvvestrnent in Himdri Bydostees Limited 3.419.07 - 310238 - 1.210.07
27,321,968 0% $,657.31 0.22 3.306.85
Equily shan¢e of ACC Limited and bew Delni Teiovision Limised were sold for Ra Nil (31 March 2017: Bs 19.31 lakhs].
E. Trade reerivables
3L Rlarch 2018 35 March 2017
Serored
~ Cusidered guod BES.25 i
Unseeured
~ Considered good 26,902.72 2L00S AL
- Considered donbtful 417.0% 417 1M
27,319.23 2EANT A
Less: Loss for allowances
- Provisiam fuc doubtful debts EIRAG 417401
26, M&- 23,065 54
Wun-guzyetit TIETY R
Lurremt 16,588.08 21 5nl0nn
2T THIAT 21 380 85

[} For 1ecervables secored dgainst bormoaings, refer nute 19.

(b Nem-cament teade coeeivahles incide s ameunt of Rs 798,79 lakhs (31 March 2017 Bs 798 7% lakhs) due et a cuslomer whack: s coggently undee arbitration, Based on tae menits ol the
cas, the ranapement belivves that (e osteame of the saad proceedings wouid be in favour of the Compimy,

&) Mo trade or cther recesvables are dne from ditectors or othes officess of the Company either sevezally or jomty with any other person. Mor any rade o other roeceiviboes are due from s or
privite companies tespietively in which any disector is a partos, o direetor of a member.

{d} tnformation about the Coripany's ekposure 10 eredil snd corrency risks, and loss allownssces pefuted 10 trade secebvables are disclwsed i nohe 43

ERE i T g R e ..
L - e Fal AT S ™ \‘} Lo : =
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HIMALRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED

[Fermuesly known as [ fmadei Chenueals & Jad

o5 Lirnizad]

Motes to the Stundaione foanchal statements fore the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Amount in Rupees Lakhy

9. Cash and cash vyuivalents
S aceosunting pehicy i sete 3]
3 AMlarel 2008 3 March 2017
Cagh on hand 1544 13.29
Esalazces with hanks
-lme E8e.52 450 1%
-0 TRAO2 54230
Ties op e ¥ meathe) Ho.gd HEXE P
1,714.04 303271
19, Beok baianved gther than ash and cash equivalenty
31 March 2018 3t Mucch 2007
Lk doposits due Lo mabs ¢ aftee 3 mosis of cognal mizturitoes bet wattun 12 s, of the reporling dule 1,401,03 243667
Lixen Uegomts held s cratgn moncy 0.7 o
Faurmarked bulanzes with baaks For wipaid dividend acrounts .17 02
143107 Lole L
Detalts of balance sith banks an depasit accounfs
3 March 2018 Macch 2017
[lepesits thie 1o mntare within 1 months of the eqpartisg dae Sacluded uedze Cosh arsd cash eguiviients' (refsr e 9) 801 196 83
Diepesics dar to mature 2fles 3 euecls of orsganal reasurities tod within 12 manths uf s repontang date sncioded ander 'Crher bank Salazee! (sefe L4010 ne
note 19 T N
Thepesits dide to matyye atter 12 months of thee ceparting dane ineluced under 'Other Soaoewt sssets - non-cnen’ [efar mole 2 195 San
TLgHAY 2399 47
Bark deposits Rs 1,8544.03 lakhs (3% Maych 2017 R 2,549.47 akis) have been pialged sdth the Saaks 2gainst voreus credit Gt availsd by the Company.
11, Laans
(Linsvenra conrideeed gond)
31 Margh MER i1 .\-‘l_:m:}'.E'Jf'.‘
Non-garrent
Seeuriny and oter deposits TEdLIM [
Lap b ciopleyees .o
To related party = whilly owned subsldtary
Luan pivea te Lgoal Comenoceal Privace Limited (refer nole <) 3.047.25 G150
4,715.29 140095
Current
Secutiny and gther dephits 150,35 ind G4
Loan ta vmployues 11458 114 58
264.23 11856
o 986,51 241k 2]
12, Other Financial asscis
31 aarch MES 31 Murch 201
Mon-carreat
Fanx deposits due Lo mature afls -2 tgaths of the eperting date 209 SR
Intercst accruzd on fixed depesits AL :
304
Current
Tir pacties ather than felated purtics
Iietest neerued on fxed depusitg 35.94
T urpmee ¢laim ropeivable 126,13
Income wax refurdable 1150
Expiet inzentive ceceivable n.42
CROwIS DO s refcivahle 55704
Cther recarvables Loy
“To related particy
Lneres i i Fyual Commiedzal Priva Ad i e A0
nerest Leceivable from a subsidiary  Fuyual Commniedeal Private Limited (refer note 025 24 19
Vhauazter fee tezeivable fom a subsidiary - AAT Gluhal Liaited L% *E
Liwl.2h




IIMADRI SPECIALLITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerty known as Himadri Chenucals & Indusiries Lamitady

Mote to Ihe Standalone financial

for the year ended 31 Mareh 200E (Continued)

Ameunt in Rupees Lakhs

13.

-

Non-current tax assels (net)

Aulvance wome 128
[rel wf previgion for income tax Bs L,370.43 lakhs (31 Macch 2017: Ry 4,725,55 Takhs}|

. Other nan-currciit assety

finsecured, considerec guod}

Capital advances

Advances other than capital advanues
- Lieposit againss domands in dispute
Ditzer advances

- Prepard expeases

Juventories
(Vabved f e fower of cost and met realiiohle wilue)

Nee accolnting poliey in note 3(5)

Baw maternls [muiiding fiowds-uvtransis Ks 2,483.64 lakhs (1] March 2017: 2= 3 433,52 Lk
Wi k-in-progress

Firs hed poods

Packing maierials

Stores and spars

Carrying amount of invertories piedsed as eeusities for borrowinygs, efer mote 19,

. Ouher current assels

flingernred corgidered good wnivss otkvewive statecl)

‘T'e parties ofher than related parties

Advanees for supplies
Unscouresd, considered good
Unsecured, cansidered doubtful

Lesg: Pravigion for doobsful advaness

Crehers

Balance with gooids and senvice bax outhoribes
Balance with excise autharitics

Saley rax deposiz and VAT recenvahle

Other recervables

To related party
Advance for supplics: AAT (lubal Limited (refer now 40}

31 March Mith

ABG.6%

AB6.6%

31 March 2014

3t March 2017

1,947.13 124 57
Thl.24 e k05

_ 1,601.66 224773
__ 531704 271623

16,327,710 153210t
ABiL51 £.213.90
13,546,580 13467278
23645 a0z
2,297.33 1,745,104
41,519.79 30.207.05

2 Murch 204E

3 March 2017

TATIOE 0033 2
46,76 .96
TE2184 :
46,70
T0T0E
1,544.18 -
- 201152
- 4635 0
434.87 567.53
713,60 288,67
10,226. 76 9,541.04

Advantes [or suppliss fucludes Ws 1,O86.76 akbs (31 March 2017 Ra 833,93 Eikhs) a8 sudvanee [ven in carlier yemrs againgt supply uf ras materiels which 16 currenily under arbitanion, Hused

an the rerits of the case, the manapermene balicyves tat the gatcome wf the said procecdings woald he in fuvowr of the Company.

{hber toceivabled incEm%cs prepaid empenses amd sdvanee for eapemses.

I
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HMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAIL LIMITED

{Famreriy known as
MNoles 1o the Stamdal

arlel Cheicicals & Indestries Limited)
fMnancial sta far the year ended 3] ¥arch 2018 (Conlinoed)

Amuounl in Rupees Lakhs

. Equity shave capltal

See acvoucting policy innate 30p)

Authorised

31 March 2018 3 March 2017

TOO.000,000 (31 March 2017 T0O000,000) eguily shares uf Re 1 cach 200000 7,000.00
Issued, subscribed and Tully paid-up
418,407,867 (3] Mach 2017 4 10407 8078 equicy shanss of Re | euch 4,184.08 4, 184.08
4, 18408 A 08408
Reconciliativn of equity shares {ordinary shares) cutstanding at the beginning and ar e end of the reporting year
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Number Anwunt Murber Ampnd
A the commengenent of the year A18,407.867 4,154.0% 418, AUTEGT 418408
Add: [ssued during the year - - e B
Number of skares ourstading o the end of the year 418407867 4,184.08 41k a07 867 4,784 08

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equily shares

The Campeny bas a single elass of squity shares with par value of Re 1 per share. Accuoedingly

cquity shares rack egually with regard ta dividunds

and skare in the Campany’s residusl assets on windmg up. The equity shareholders are entitled o reccive dividend as eclarsd by the Company from
e 1o tine. The votmg rights of ar equity sharchalder on apall (reton shew of bands) are in proportion Lo its skare of the paid up equity capsial of the

Corpany.

O witdmg up of the Curepany, the holders of cquine shares will be entitled 4 receive the residual assets of the Company. 1emaiting alter distribution

ob al prelerential ameucts, in proportion 1o the cumber of equity skares held.

Employee stock vplion

Ser accaunting paticy in moke 3N

The lenes atlached e stack options prapeed ro eenployees are described in cote 319 regacding share based payment.

Shares held by upstresm associates (shareholders of the Company) baving signilicant influence vver the Company

31 March 2018

41 March 2017

Number Amount
BC nlia investiments 103, 178,860 103174
Flinadri Dyes & [nermediates Limsted 98, 284310 94154

Fariiculars of shareholders holding mere than 8% shares of fully paid up ¢quity shares
31 March 28

Mutniyer Py —
P8, 1T B0 103179
UK, 2% 311 RN

31 Mlarch 2007

%o of tatal shares in

% of total shares in

Number Number
the class o the
Equity shaves of Re cach fully gaid wp icld by:
RBC India lnvestments 103, 178,560 24.668% 103,178 #60 LY
Hirmudri Tryes & Interracdiates Limited 98,284,310 22.449% R 284,310 23.40%,
Hinzaddri Tndustries Limited 46,140,000 o3 A6, 146, 0100 (NGRS
Himadri Coke & etro Limdted 3R,175,297 ¥.124% KE N e 3 ER
Sharey resvived lor issue under eptions
31 vlarch 2018 31 Murch 2017
Number Amount Numibet Amount
Ller Fanploye: Swek Opion Plar, 2016 {ESOP 2016
23100 (30 Marck 2017 13046000 wquity shares af {281,100 1151 30460 1308

Re 1 cach, ol an exvroise price of By 1% per share (sec
nete 34

Apuregate nember of shires issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five vears imniediately preceding the reporting dale

rerang the yem ended 31 March 2006, 22675297 cquity shares of Re 1 cach have been alloned as fully paid up pursuant we conversion af Deep

Duscgant Debeniures (DD wie 32675247 couity shares of Be | cack ara price of 5 17 pes e
share) on 25 March 2006 @ Blimadn Onke & Tetio Limited. o relsted porty, on prelerentiul

, L 3 f\i
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HIMADR] SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Facmeriy kaown as Himadri Chencals & Tndustries Limited)y
Notes to the Standaly Ninancial st for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Cantinued)

Amaonnt in Rupees Lakhs

1%, Other eyuity

Movement Maovernent during
Cumponcnis Mote I April 2017 durlng the vear 31 March 2018 1 Apil 26 - 3 WMieh 2057
(nety the year [rel)

Capital seserve a 1,250.50 - 1,260.50 1.240.50 . 1,280.50
Seeurizy premium reserve h 4516553 - 45,165.51 45,303.53 - $5,363.51
Biebentore redemption reserve © 4.214.27 {1,321.44) 2.892.83 3,335, 71 67850 4,214.27
Lienerad reserve ) 11,668,099 1,750} 15,419,904 13,669, 44 - 13.669.94
Share oplion outstanding rescive ¢ 21540 e 129.1% - 25.40 2540
Retained eartings £ 33,506.06 3MLT3 56,817.79 26,330.71 7533 33.504.06
Lifeeiive porion of cash flow hedge e {15467 134,69 - [2,5.1.28) 2,326.5% [ 18404
Equily instruments throwgh OCT h 5,748.67 L3700 1954269 239.00 5,509,467 5 HELT

103,625.6% ITRILTR 14144847 8791013 15,715.55 03,625.68

The descriptian, nature and purpose vl each reserve within cquity are as follows.

(a) Capita] reserve: Capital rescrve reprosents prodit or loss an purchase, sale, issue or cancellation althe Company's ewn equily instruments.

(1) Becurity preminm reserver Sceurity premiunt reserve is credied when shaces are ssued at premium. 1t s wilised in accondanee with the provistons ! the Aot o issue
Lermeies shares, 1o provide for premiunt on redeniplion of shares or debentres, write-olT equity selaled expenses like uniderwriting coss ele.

(¢} Debenture redemption reserve (BRRY: The Company bas issucd redeermable non-convertible debentures Accordingly, the Companics (Share capital and Debeniures)
Ruiles, 2014 (amemded), regpuives the Company to create [RR out of profits of the Company available for paynent of dividend. DR is required 13 be croated or in amaunl
whick is equal to 25% of the value of debentures issued.

The movement is on account of feliowing:

(1) Oa redemption of Y.6% red e no tible Gebentuzes, Rs 1,750 takhs (31 March 2017: F5 Nilb bving in DRR was ransferred to General reserve. The Company
has complied with requisite provisions of the Act, as applicabic.

(10} Rs 428.56 Jakhs (31 Macch 2017: Rs 678,56 [akhs} was trunsierred frum Retained earnings 10 3R R for the purpose of redemption uf debentures.

(dj General reserve: The general reserve is used from time (o 1ime ta transfer prodits om retained sarnings for approprialion purpusces.
O redemplion of 9.6% red ble ao rtible debertures, Ry 1,751 lakhs (31 March 2017; Rs N} tving in Debenture redemption reserve was transterred o Cenera!

roserveg,

(¢} Share wprivn vutstanding reserve: The Company has a steck optian scheme utder whick oplions tw sebseribe for the Company's share have heen granied 1o cerfain
wnerutives and senfar eonployees. The share aption owstanding reserve is used Lo recoghise the veluz of equity-setiled share based payments provided 4o employees, ineludiy:
certain key management personncl, a3 part of their remuceration. Reder note 39 for fursher detatts of these plans,

{I} Relzined earnings

T comprise of zeownulaled prafitd {loss) of the Company. The mevernenl is an aceount of follawing:
(i} R 24,257.46 lukhy (31 March 2017; Rs 8,117.37 lakhs) wes ar account of peolit niade by the Campary.
(i) R 428,50 Inkhs (3] March 2017: Rs 678.56 hakhs) was transferred 10 debenture redemiption reserve for the purpose of redemplion ol debentures
(i) Rs 13,58 lakhy (3] March 2007 Rz 11.69 lakhs} was an account of rameasurement of defined bunefit Lahility/asset,
{ivy Rs 50059 lakhs (31 March 20017 Hs 251.79% was on account of dividend disieibaton (inclusive of dividend distribution ax).

{2) Effective portion of cash Now hedye: This comprises the effective porticn of the cumalative nel change in the f@ir vakis of cash low hedging instzunienls related to
hedging Lransactions that have nat tatured.

(k) Equity fustruments through OCY: The Company has elected to recwgnise changes in the fair value ol certain investoments in equity seruritics in other comprehens.ve
in¢ome. These changes arc accurmulated withia the equity iastruments through OCT shown unéer the head ather equity. The Company iransfers amounts 1heretza to relainet
carmings when the relevant equity seewritics are derecugnised.
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
iFormerly known as Himadei Chetnicals & Indusiries Linited)
Notes ta the Standulone financial sta for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Amaounl in Rnpees Lakhs

19. Barrowings

See secounting policy in nule 3b) aml (e}i) - (i)

lnterest Maturity M March 201% 3@ March 2017
Non-current Borrowings
SO0 (31 March 20017 500y 12.50% Redevnabie
ron-gonvertible debenruees of R 1,050,000 each 12504 2020 2021 BRI R 3,000.00

{secured)

2,500,080 (31 March 2017 2,500,000 10%
Redeemaile nob-convertible debentures of Ks 400 10.00%. 2020-72021 10,400.00 10,060.00
eack: {sceured)

™Il (31 Masch 217 10000 9.6 Hedeemable

not-converthie Jebenturcs of Re 1,000,800 cach - Y ) 43
[secieed)
15.600.00 24.990.43
Term loans
Rupee term ioen {seeured) refor wote (h) below
From banks 1310670 1201708
Foreign currency loans (secured) refer note (%) below
Fram banks 1.324.37 1,733.04
From athers - 64066
14,43L.13 16,3913
Laan against vehizles and squipment (scourcd) H3%5-1 % 20172070 161.77 100,146
Dreferred payment Habilities
Bales tax deferment {unseercd - 61.41
10,502.90 41.543.32
Less; Current matsrities of long-term debt {refer 47192 280,20
nate 22
2211918 3870312
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current borrowings
Secured
Fron: banks (Repayable on demand)
Rupes louns 3,554,62 138944
Fareipn currerey boans 19,4052.29 17,539,724
22,956.91 2792878
From others
Rupee loan 1.500.60 1,666 88
Unsecured .
From banks (Repayahle an demand)

Ruper Joans 92.587.02 626,55
Foreign cumency Joans 2.ITH.60 -
From others {Hupee lgan repavable an demand) - 1.646.5%

3642253 3380894

Tntermation about the Company's eaposure W inierest rate, eurrency and Lquidisy risits reated o barrowsngs 12 desclosed <n note 43,

o

(118)



HIMADR] SPECTALITY CHEMICAL LIMITEDR
(Farmerly krown as ilimadn Chemicals & Industries Linited)
Notes to the Standalone figaueial stateinents for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continucd)
Amount B Rupees Lakhs

A. Terms of repeyment! cunversion/ redemption
{2} Bands und Dehentures

{f) The Compary, on 29 Ooober 2013, had issued 500 12,50% Redeemuble nun -converible debertores of face value of Rs |LOCH.000 cach
agpregating Rs 5,000 lakhs io be redesmed at par at the end of 7 years from the date of aliotment oo private placerent basiz to Life
Insurznee Corperation of India.

(i} The Company, on 24 August Z0E0, had issued 2 300,000 10% Kedeermable non-sunvertible debentures of face value of Re 400 gach
aggregating Ks 10,000 lakhs to be cedeemed at par at the end of 10 years from the date of alloiment on private placeiment basis w Lifc
Insurance Corpatation of India.

{iii) The Company, on 2% June 2010, had issued £,000 9.60% Rederniable non-convertible debentures of face value of Rs 1,000,000 each
apgregating Rs 10.000 lakhs 1o be redeemed at par at the end of 10 years from the date of aliotment on private piacement basis 1o 1CICH
Bank Limited. These debentures can be redecsoed at par en or after 7 years from the date of alivimenl, @1 the opiion of the sither party,
Praring the current year, the debenture hodder has eacreised its put option of redernption and accordingy these Non-convenible debentures
were redeerced on 28 June 2017,

(b Term Lpans

Name of the lender Interest Repayment 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

schedule
(i) Rupee term loans

. . . . 6 Month L "
Axis Hank Limated [Rg 1,950.00 takhs (31 March MOLR + Rupayaale in Apri: 1.950.0 2 086,00
2017 Rs 7050.00 Lakhs)] R w8 430,00 e
[.70%
& Mani: Repayabile at
Axis Bank Limited [Rs 8,334.00 Lakhs (3] March ;Iu“['{ ; quarserly rest: L1
2047 Re Nily) : 0 33", Bof Rs B33.00 R °
Rt 10 of Rs 16700

Repaya ]
IDFC Buik {Rs 2,850.00 lakhs (31 March 201 7: 12 Month spayable o )
Rs Nil): MCLE + guarterly rest; 2,843.60 -

T 0.15% 19 of Ry 150.00
Statc Bank of lradia [Rs NI {31 March 2017 Rs
- LR

4,467.61]| RUIFEA

Hepayment ™
Name of the lender Interest o 31 Marsh 2018 31 March 20t ¥
(i} Foreign currency 1erm luans
101 Bank Limited [JTPY 2,152,748 tukhs (31 £ Marsh Py IPY 42050 -
March 2017 JPY 3,013 %9 lakhs)] Libor + repayable in 5 halt’ 1,324,852 1,733.04

2.400% yeary resl
International Finance Corporation [USD Nit (31 wr
March 2017: USD 15.00 lakhs)] - 57.0%
[HEG- Deatsche nvestilionsund
Enrwicklungsgescllschatt MBH [LS1 Nil (31
- 1.669.57

March 20017 TS0 26,25 lakhed]
+

(i} The Company had been pranted sales tax deferment By the Covernment of Acdbrs Pradesh under the “Tarpet 2008 - New lndasinal
Policy”. The same &5 repavable fram the eud of the 14h vear without payment of interest during the pered trom Alkgust 2014 1o Dogber
2007, Droring tbe current year, the Coropany kas made repayment of Rs §1.42 lakhs {31 March 2017; Rs 102.46 Jakhs).

[y Loans agarst vehicles and equipments are for a period of theee o five years aod repayabie by way of vzuated monehly instaloments,
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HEMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL EIMITED
(Furmerly kirown as Fimuwiri Cheraicals & ledustries Limited)
MNotes to the Standulens financial stal for the yenr ended 31 March 2018 {Continoed)

Amount in Bupees Lakhs

B. Details of secarity

2¢.

21.

{11 12.50% and 10% Redeemable non-convert:hle debentures wssued o Life Insurance Corporatien of [ndia, appregating to Rs 13,000 lakhs
ape secured by way ot Equitable Morgape oo lang situated at Mouzs Maharaj Pera Dest - Mahsasa [Chuacan), First Fard Passu charge on
i:nmarvabla properties {Leasehoud Land} situated at Malusukry and hypothecat:an of all movabie property, plart and equipment (including
rant and equipment) of ihe Company in faveur of Axis Trustee Scrvices Limited, being she trustes of the debenture holders,

{ii} Rupes ferm louns from Axis Bank Limited & secored by way of morgage of immovable propedies situated at Mahistikey Linit
{Leaschold Land), Lituah Unil, and Vishakhspatnam Unit and hypothecation of all movable property, plant and equipment on parl passu
basis with other lenders,

Rupee termn louns from IDFC Bank Limited in secured by way of meetgage of immoovable properties situated at Mahistikry Uni¢ (Leaschold
Laud). Liluah Uait, and Vishakbapatoam Una and hypothecation of movable property, plant and equipment situated at Mahistikry Linii
{Leaschold Land}, Lituak Unit. and Vishakhapainam Unit on pati passu basis witk: other Tenders,

Furtker rupee term Joar from State Bank of India being persunally guaraniced by the prosnoter direstors of the Conpany,

{1il) Foreign currency borrawings from KCICT Bank Limited i3 secured by way of mortgage of immovable pregenics {Leascheld Land) and
hypothecation of mavable property. plant and equipment situstec at Mahistikry on part passu basis with other secured fenders.

{iv) Loans against vehicles and equipment are securad by way of hypothecation of the underlying ssser Gnanced,

{vh Working capital loans from banks aggregating to Rs 24,456,291 lakhs {31 March 2017: Rs 29,595.64 (akhs) are sesured by hyputhecation
of currents asaets of the Comgany bath present and future on pari passu basis. Funber, working capital loan from bank aggrepating te Rs
12,848.15 lakhs (31 March 2017: Ry 2,655.47 lakks) is alsu secured by subservien! charge ar mnoveasle property, pant and equapment of
the Company. These iaans inciude Ks 1.90 lukhs (30 March 2807 Rs (03819 lakhs), being personally puscanleed by the proracter
directars of the Comparny.

Trade payabies

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Du:s 10 micrd cnierpriscs and small enterprises (1o the extent identified with available 200,58 187,69
infarmation) (refer note 43]
Trutle payables {utker than micro enterprises and small enterprizes) 11,625.64 14,743.6%
11.826.22 14.931.34
Nah-gurrent - -
Current 11.826.22 14,931 38
11.826.22 14.531.348

Infoernaton alout the Company's exposure to currency and liguidaty risks selated to trade payables is disviosed in nole 43

Drerlvatives
See aceeunting pebicy in note 3(civ)
31 March 2018 31 March 2007
Foreign excharge forward! interest rate swap cortracts used for hedging - 184.69
Oshet Foreict: exchange forward’ interest gaie swap’ option contriets 769,56 59203
' 769.56 247672
Non-¢urrent 583.65 kK2 32
Current i85.81 4.594.40
760,56 547692

Infarmation shout the Company's eaposurs 1o interest rate snd cuceency nsks ielaled o detivatives is disclosed in note 43,
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
[Foemedly knowt as Tlimadn Chemicals & Indusuivs Limited)
Mates to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)
Amount in Rupees Lakhs

21, Other financial tiabilities

31 March 2014 31 March 2007
Non-gurrent
Onher prayahles 2577 2577
1597 2597
Current
Current maturities af long-teem debts (refee note 9% 647072 2,840,340
Toterest aecrued 0406 E0R. 7
Unclumed dividend P Moz
Tiahility for capital goods 204).58 139.33
Financia! puarantee liabilicy - 0.7
Cthet payables 1%6.42 358467
7.659.55_ 196678

(2} Tkere is ne amount du s autstanding to be credited 1a Invesior Education and Protectior Fund as at 31 March 2018
(k) Other payairles includes ameunt duw lowards Emploves benefits expense and Sequrity deposits,

{c) Information abeur the Company's expiosure W curmency and liquidity visks related to the above financial liabilitics is d:selosed in note 43

23 Unher curreof liabilities

A1 March 2018 31 March 20t7
Statuloy dues 1,921.5% 2,533.37
Advanee from eustomers A1BI573 634.3]

5,757,231 316768
4. Pravisions

See accounting policivs in aote 37) and (h}

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Provisions for employes benefits
Net defined benetir fialnlay - Gratuily {refer nate 38} 17680 100,44
Lisbility ter compensaled ahsences 40.24 18.1¢
Tarat provisiens for enpleyee beacfils (A) 217.04 11863

Other provistans

Brivvision for litigaton

Balance at the heginning of the year 442 TEa2
Provisiots mads during the year - -
Provision teversed’ utilised -

Bolanee al the end of the year 742 T§A42
Total vther provisions (R) 1842 442
Tutal provisions (A+R) 205.46 197.05
Non-current 255,22 17%.86
Curryot 40.29 18.19

1y3.di 197 03

Maveizent ol provisiags for litigalivn during the year ay requiced by Ind AS 370 “Provisions, Contingent Liabslities and Contingent Assel”
spevificd under Section 133 of the Compances Act, 2013, the Company as a prudent weasue bud made provisions in the earbier year
amaurting @ Rs 74.42 lakhs representing estimates sade mainly for probable claims arising out of cisputes pencling with the sales tax
authgrities, The prebability and fiming ol the cutfiow with regard to these maiters depend upun the ultimate settlement with the relevant
authar:ties, The eamying amount at the Seginning of the year was Rs T8.42 lakhs, provision of Rs Nil made during the year and the clasing
ameunt of Rs 78,42 lakhs s camieil forward at the end of the year and nasther the amimant kas been used nor the wsed Mneant reves sed
durimng the year wnder audit.

215, Current tax liabilltles {net)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Tngeame tax dabilitics TR.50 309.01
[oet of aldvance 1ax s .53 130 Jukly (31 March 20017 Ry 2,335 <4 Jakhs)]

78.5¢ aw




HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
iFormerly kapwn as Himadei Chemicals & Industries Linted)
Notes to the Standalone Anancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018 {Continoed)
Amount i Hupees Balbs

26. Hevenue from vperations

Sez necountng policies in nate 3(7) aod (k)

Year ended Year ended
3 Mareh 218 3] March 2017
Sale of products {includlng cxckse duty)y {4} * ADZ 105,25 146,337.40

Other operating revenne
- Goversment grams (refer neie 44} - 557.06
- Expom incentives 10.96
Total ather operating revenue (B) 503.02

id7,125.432

Total teventie fooin vprretivns {A+B)

* Upto 50 Juce 2017, Revenue fram operations are gross of cacise duty. Efective © July 2017, Revenae fom operations are disclosed net of Goads and
Service Tax. Accordingly. the Fgutes for the previaus year i nat comparable

7. Dther incwme

Year ended Year ended
A1 March % 31 Murch 2017
[nturewt Tacame under the effcetive increst mathod on:
- inlerest on lised deposits with banks 101.82 140 99
- Ingone from a refated party:
- O foan given 10 a whelly owned subsidiany 196,59 497
- Qo FCD ty a whally awned subsidiary - 120,00
+ On guarantee provided W a subsidiary .28 36T
- Unwinding of discount on securty deposits and others 21727 166.63
Trividend income onr cquity sccuritics at FvOC1 n.08 3,22
Giain oo sale of eurrent investmeats at VTP 11.3% 0,57
Insurance claims 11Z.44 27.%4
Net farewgn exchange gain 2179 -
Mel pain on sale of property, plant and equipmeat - 39.2;
Gain on fair valuation of inesiments at FYTPL n&3 6,50
Miscellancous income R LPLL R34
T3 THO.ET
28, Cost of materials consumed
Yaear encted Tear ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Trveatary of raw materiale m the beginning of e year 15,321.010 losaTe
Adi Purchasesy 134,256.09 33009
145%,571.10 103,373.91
Tess: lnventory ol row muerials al the onl of the year et 15321 11

Cost af materings conswned

Rt

it
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAE LIMITED
(Formeriy known as Himadri Chemicals & [ndusirics Limited)
Nofes to the Stapdalone financial statements for 1he vear ended 31 March 2918 (Continued)

Anunt in Rupees Lakhbs

29,

3.

Change in inventeries of Drished goods amd wark-in-progress

Bee accouniing policy nonole 3(i}

Opening inventories
Tiatshed peusds
Witk-ib-progress

Clysing inventories
i 1od goands
Wark-in-progress

Emgluyee benefils expense

e dccaunding podicy duhoele 3(g)

Salarics, weges and bonus

Contritation o provident and other funds

Gratuily {refer aotc 38)

Share based payments- Equity seitled (refer note 34
Stall welfare capenses

Year ended
31 March 2018

Yeur ehded
31 March 2017

Salaries, wages ad boeas includes Bx 267.00 lakhs (31 Muzch 2017 Rs 256.35 lakhs) relabing to oulsosics manpuwer cusl.

Finance ¢osts

See accounting pelicy i e 3o}

Lrtercst expense an financial liabilities eneasared sl amartised cost
Exchange ditference regarded as an adjustment to horowing costs

Utier borrewing custs

(123)

13,672.78 13,805.83
421390 B726.72
21.4%6.65 22,532.55
11,8456.80 1367278
88115
2265531
(77163} RaSET
Yeur ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 Margk 2017
3,502.39 3073R0
1457 LRI
K550 2E RO
10379 2540
375.63 J16.74
4.663.10 3,585.9¢
Year ¢nded Year ciuded
3. March 2018 31 Margk 2017
6,184.78 7,41005
420.20 T5.05
43%.03 36235
704298 8,047 45
/)’
.o
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HEMA DRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Farmecly known as Himado Chemicals & [ndwstries Limited)
Notes ta the Standalene finaoeial statements for the vear ended 35 March 2018 {Continued}
Amount Lo Hupees Lakby

32, Oiher expenses

Yeur ended Year coded
31 March 20EF 31 March 2007
Cansutnption of stares and sgrares 331490 357.31
Power and fuzt * Jrefer note {a) Ireliw] 1.192.42 1125 Rt
Excive duty related to irereased (decrease}) in invenrary of finished poods (1.827.07) (L6699}
Rent 42333 443.44
Rates and taxes 140617 538,78
Roepains to ™
- Bailding 5108 63.25
- Plant and cquipment 1.546.26 145759
- Otkers 46819 EFLA
Payment o auditar's frefer note (b) helow] 69.2% 0.9t
Rebates and discounts 275.41 23880
Insurance 134.99 L73.7a
Pucking cxpenses 1,496.35 1.372.07
Freight and fursarding cxpetscs 6,215.94 50591
Commission on sales 103086 934.55
Netforeign exchanpe lsy - 2002.58
Expenditure on corporate social respansibility [refir note () below 3003 14.70
Miseelfaneoas capenses 3,419.1%5 2.h46.55
14,976,700 L7 43808
* includes stores and spares consumed 1,766.12 L2779
{a) Power and fucl includes experyes ineurred on aperation of the pewer plant
Yeur unded Yensr erided
31 March 201§ 31 Marck 2017
Consamption of stnes and spares 151,52 46.95
Reqrairs 179.68 126.04
Other pperational expenses 15.13 16.15
333 23907
(b3 Paymetd ta aondilor's
Your vnded Yot ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2317
M aaditors:
- Sratutery audic 40.50 M50
- Tax audljt - -
- Limited review of quartetly tesults 4.50 H.00
In other capacity:
- Other services 13.86 10038
Reimbusaeient vl cepenses sS4y 4.03
64920 5093

{e) Details of expenditure an carporate sorial responsibility {CSR)

ast 2% of its average ner profil far the immediate
unel malputrition, promoting cducation, promuiing

Ag pur Section 135 of the Act, & Oompany ing the applicablity toeshokl, is tequined o zpend ot
proeceding thiee financial years on OS8R activities. The ares of SR ac are aradicatng hunger, pove

i heakheare & CSI commitice has beeo Farml by the Company as per the Act.

healtheane weiuding prey

Year voded et endol
11 Mareh 3014 3t March 2017
sap Amount regaired to b spoat by the Campany during the vear 5704
b Amaunt spent durirg the year (in cashy
{1 Canstruciiondc quistion of any asser

i1.70

{u) U purposes otker lkan (3) sbowe
L1470
e [ L N L oo RERR}
):;_,g Y e
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Eormerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industeics Limited)
Netes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20i8 (Continued}

Amount in Rupees Lakhs

33

Incorae tax

See accounting pulicy in nate 3(n}

Amount recognised in profit or loss
31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Current tax

Current period 7,609.88 2,644.45
(a} 7,60M.88 264445

Deferred tax charge

Astribratable to-

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3,725.16 1,578.31
=) 3,725.16 1,578.31

Tax expense reported in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss [{ay+{b)]| - 11,3354 4,222 74

Income tax recognised in OCE

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Deferred tax related to items recognised in GCH during the year

Tax income on net loss on retmeasurements af defined benefit plans {7.20} {6.19)
Tax income on net gain on change in fair value of equity instruments 4.871.63 -
Tax expense reported in the Standalane Statement of Profis and Loss 4,864.43 (6. 19y
Reconciliation of effective tax race for the year ended 31 March 20£8
Percentage Amount
Profit before tax 35,592.50
Tax using the Indian tax rate 34.61% 12,317.85
Effects of the amount which are not deductible in calculating taxable ingome
Non - deductible expenses for lax purposcs ©.29% 10234
Tax cxempt income! additional deductivn e per income tax {3.05%) i{1,085.15)
Effeclive tax rale JL.85% 11,135.04
Reconciliation ol cffcctive tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2017
Peregntage Armount
Profit before tax 12,340.12
Tax using the Indian tax rate 34.61% 427067
Effects of the amount which arc not deductible in caleulating taxable income
Won - Jeductible cxpenses for tax purposes 0.64% 74906
Tax ¢xempt income / additional deduction as per income tax {1.03%) 112697y
Effcctive tax rate * 34.22% 422276

i
A

&
\
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Nates to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued}
Amount in Rupees Lakhs

D, Recogrised deferred tax asscis und Labilities

Balance as on 1 April (Charged) credited Charged ! {credited) Balance as an
2017 ta profit or loss to OCI 31 March 2018
Property, plant and equipment 20,514.43 1,443.39 - 21,957.82
Trade reccivables {144.08) (3.73) - (147.85)
Loans (718.80) 29.29 - (49.51)
Other assets {16.18) - - (16.18)
Borrewings (203,76} 10.67 - (193.09)
Other financial labilities (1,958.99) 1, 41056 - (548.43)
Share based payments- Equity-settled - (37.38) - {37.38)
Provisions {35.31) (61.19) (7.19) (103.69)
MAT credit entitlement {7,853.02) (7.609.88) - (15,462.90)
Fair valuation of Investmcents - - 4.871.62 4,871.62
Tax losses carried forward {9,103.04) §,543.43 - (559.611
Ner detferred tax Habilities 1,121.25 3.725.16 4.864.43 9.710.84
Disclosed as
Deferred tax assets {7,853.02) (15,462.9%)
Deferred tax liabilitics (net) 8.974.27 25,173.74
1,121,25 9,711).84
Balance as on t April  (Charged}/ credited  Charged / {eredited} to Baiance as an
2016 to profit or loss OCH 31 March 2017
Property, plant and equipment 18,736.42 1,778.01 - ,514.43
Trade receivables {147.81) 373 - {144.08)
Loans {49.51) 2620} - {78807
Qther assets {16.18} - - (16.1%)
Borrowings (315,56} 11RO - (203783
Other financial lubilitics (203222} 7323 - {1,958.99%
Share based payments- Equity scttled - - - -
Provisions (29.12) - {6.19) {31531}
MATT credit entitlements (5,208.57) (2,644.45) - (7.853.02}
Fair valuation of Investments - - - -
Tax losses carricd forward (11,488.32} 2,385.28 - (9,103.04)
Net deferred tax liabilities {450.87} 1,578.31 {6.19) 1,i21.258
Biscloscd as
Deferred tax assets (5,208.57) (7,853.02}
Deferred tax liabilities (not) 4,757.70 8.974.27
{450.87) 1,121,235
¥l ¢ Ly or ;
o
j
A
JICEREE y
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Fosmerty known as Himadn Chemicals & Industrics Limited)
Notes to the Standalene financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)
Amount in Rupees Lakhs

34, Earnings per share (EFPS)
See accounting policy in note 3(1}

A. Buasic earnings per share

The valeulutions of profit altributable to equiry sharcholders and weighied average nunbet of wiity shares outstanding for purposes ol busic eamings per
share calcufation are as follows:

{i} Prafit attributabic tn equity sharcholders (basic)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Profit for the year, attgbutasle to the equity helders 24,257.d6 81737
(i} Weighted average number of equity shares (hasic)
At the beginning of the year 418,407,867 418 407 867
Tmpact of new issue of equity shares - -
Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) for the year 418,407 847 413,407,867
Busic carnings per share [(i) (ii)] 5.80 1.94

B. Diluted earnings per share

The caleulation of dituted eamings per share is based on profit autibulable to equity sharcholders and weighted averge number of equity shares
outstanding, after adiustment for the effeets of 211 dilative potential equiny shares as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to cquity shareholders (diluted})

¥ ear ended Year enced
31 March 2018 31 March 2047
Profit for the year, atiributabie (o the equity shareholders (diluted) 24,357.46 RBIL737
(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares {diluted)
Weighted average nuinber of equity shares (basic) 418,407 867 418,407 567
Effect of Potential equity shares to be issued - -
Weighted average number of eyquity shares (diluied} for the vear 418,407 867 418,407,867
Diluied earnings per share |[{i)f (ii}) 5.80 154
1,280,100 (31 Murch 2017: £,304,600) number of emiployes stock options has an anti dilutive effect.
35. Contingent liability and commitments
fler the exient ot provided for)
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
a) Claim against the Company not acknowledped as debt
(i Sales oV AT matters in disputed under appeal 4,230.80 300036
(i1} Excise! Service Tax matlers i dispuleiunder appesl 2.960.91 122800
{11z} Cuslom duty matier in dispuse’ under appes| 491.76 28.83
{ivy Entry tax in dwpute/ under appea; - West Bengal 4,317.8% 342755
iv] Eniry tax in disputes under appeal - Chbattisgarh 465,71 42665
{vi} Income tax in disputed under sppeal 631.81 63381
{vii) Onhers 266.71 -
2
R ey
o h
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CUEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himade Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Notes ta the Standalene financial statermynts for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018 (Continued)

Amuunt in Rupecs Lakhs

(i)

(if)

fiii)

(v}

L
4

LTH

31 March 20018 31 March 2017

b Capital and other commitinenty

{2) Fstimated amount of contracty remaining to be executed an

capita. aceuunt and not provided For (net of advanees) 24.573.37 1.082.40

{ii) Estimated amount of export obl:gations s b fulfilled in

respect of goods imported wlet sdvanee license! Lxpent

Fromation Capital Goods Seheme (EPCG) G, 76862 4,371.37
¢} Guarantee cutsianding
Seandly letter of credit ivsted on behail of the Company to secure
the fmancial assistance to its subsidiary N | 545,16

Note:

Cashy eunlows for the above are dere
pending litigations and proceedings and has adiquarely provided for where pro
epplicatle, ity finencial statements. The Company dues not expect the oitcome of

nable pniy oo receipt of judgmencs penling #t various forurs! autherities. The Company bas reviewed all ity
isions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where
wie procecdings to have o mateially adverse efect on its finencial

pusition.

The Cemmpany had filed Weit petition ot 7 January 23173 Sefore the Hon'ble High Cuunt of Culeutta and challenged the constitutionsd validily of bntry
Tax levivd by the Government of West Ren!, The Hon'ble High Court of Caleotts during the earlier year, passed an order on 24 June 2013 declaring
The West Bangal tax on Cotry of Goods into [ocal Arcs Act, 2012 a5 unconstitutons| against which (he government filed 20 appeal which is still
pending to be disposed off. In the opinion of the managemeant, there is o sirong met of the case; hence the Company has not made provision far entry
tax Lizh:l:ty in the bowks for the current year and during the earlicr years.

The Company had issued corporate guarantcee fo faveur of banker on behall of s one step down sehsidiery - AAT Global Limitad for the purpose of
availing working capital loan. L corpurale guarantee wus issued in USD.

A search w's 132 of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961( the Act”™) was conducted by the Incame Tix Department at all the premisestfactories of the company
during the yrevieus vear ended 31 March 2007 As pas the applicable provisions of the Act, the licone Tax Teparten! will reassess the taxable income
of the Company for the Assessment year 21011 -12 to 201617 2y issuing natice w's 153A of the Act. Notice has hoen recsived by the Company on 20
April 2017 and the Cowpany filed ull retums w's [33A of the Act deelaring the same income and ircome i liubility as was declared 0 :he orgisat
retom filed w's 139(1). The management as per nlema! assessment and based on independent kegal opinion, docs not foresee any material finangial
lisbility @i this account.

. Operating leases

Ser accounting peliey in note 3(m)

(a) Future minimum lease rentals payable wnder non cancetlable operating lease
The Company bas faken cenain commercial premises under nom-coneellable operating leages, the future minimum lease payineals it respect e whush are
as Follews:

31 March 2018 31 March 2617
Mot Jater than onc year 922 1.92
Later that one year and not later than five years 36.46 768
Mure than Fove years | B6.18 L6946

(5} The Company bas taken varivus commercial prentises and vyuipmen! under cancellable operating leases. Thess ieuse agrecments are nermally
Fenewied on expiry. Lease payments recopised 0 Standalone Satenert of Profit and Loss wilh respect to apersting leases Rs 167,50 Takhs {3 March
2017 B V5 34 lakhs) has been inchuded o5 vent i oote 32 "Chher expenses”

Research angd development expenses
e accounting poalicy in note 3(e)

Rzsearch and develupament expenses appregating to Rs 326,22 lakhs (3] March 2007: Bs 25744 lakhs) in the nature of revenue sspenditure and Ry
191.89 lakhs (31 March 2017: B3 94.56 lakhs) in the nature of copital expeodilure heve been inciuded under the relevant account huals.




HIMADPRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Formuriy zown as Himalri Chemicals & Industrizs Limited)
Notes o the Stu finuncial st s for the year ended 31 Murch 2018 {Conlinued)

Antunt in Rupers Lakhs

Asstts and Llabllities retaling (o empleyee benellis

Se¢ aocounting palicy 1w note 3z}

Statement of Assets and Liabilitics for defined benefit obligstion

31 March 2118 31 Mreech 2017
Ml celined benefl asses - Gratuity Plan 159,78 127.02
Net delined beneft abhigation - Gratuily Flan {336.58) {227.46)
I Ty O
Mon-curren: (17680 {100.44;
LCurrent - -

Fus doails about the relaied einployes benchit eapeases, relor note 30,

Defined contribution

The capense for deled confributice plans ameuated 1o Bs 16864 lakhs {3§ March 2017 Rys 133,39 lakhs) Qul ol these, Bs 125,710 lukhs (31 Maich
2017 Bs 103,30 iaxhs) pertains to provident fund plan and Ks 42,93 lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs 30.09 lakhs} pertving 10 supsraanustion fund piar.

Defined beneAts - Gratnlty
“The Company s gratuity berelit seiierne for its eraplvvees in Iedia iz a delingd heacfit plar (fonded)

The Campany provides [or gratuity for copioyees in ladia as per the Payroent of Gratoity Ast, 1972 Employees who are i contiuous scrviee fr a
period of 5 vears are cligible for pratuity. The amount of gratwty payabic o reticoment? iesmination is the employees Iast drawn basic salary per montk
campuied proporlensie.y for 15 davs salary multiphed tor she number of years of service. The gratuicy plan is 2 fiunded plan and the company makes
canttibuiicns to recopnised lunds in Ladia The Company does not [ully fund the liasuity and maintns a target level of funding to be maimained aver a4
period of time bused on estimation of expecicd gralwily payments.

Inherent risk

The plan i3 dedined dencfit ity nature which iz sponsered by the Cesnpary and Leace it underwrites all the risk pertaining <o the plan. lo particular, this
capescs the Cornpany, 1o actuarial nsk suck os adveese siary growthy change n demograph Gapuricnee. inddeguate relum o Laderlylng plaa dssets.
This may resulé 1 an iRczease m cost of providing these bencfins 10 emplaysss n Suture. Since the benefits are lump sum in patare, the plan is not subjec
tn ionpetvity Tisk,

Thewe dedined benelit plans cxpose the Company Lo actuarial rishs, such as Snlerest rale risk, Jemographic zisk, salary infahiod risk aad marke
{:pvesemont) risk.

The lollowing tables analyse presem viwe of dedined bencfil obligacions, capense recognised in Standalone Stalement of Trofil and Loss. adtuarial
agswernples and alker infrmation

Recaneifiation of the nct defined benefit {asset)y’ laliliry:

(i) Reconrillatlon of present vatue of defined benafit ohligation

31 March 2% 31 March 2007
() Bolance ot the bemnmieg of the year 217.46 174.35
{h) Current service ost 31.15 265
i¢) Past service cost - plan amendients 48.21 .
{d) barerest cust 16.43 (AR
12] Actuarial (gains) loescs prised in otker carpret inenme 17.00 L&
([ Berelils pud (d. by (K]
Relonce at the end of the year 1658 EET A

{liy Reconciliation of present value of plan sssets

i Mucch 2018 I March 2017
{a] Bala ¢ the heginrang of the yoar 127.02 auz
(b} Inlelest oo .20 52
(i Actual return an plan asset Less inlerest on plan asset [1.78) 045
() Conlributions by the cmployer 30.00 2167
(o) Benetits paid [4.66) (6.97)
Balance at the end of the year 159,78 1370

i e



tMADRI SFECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Farmerly known as Elmadyi Chenieais & Industrics Limiied)
Notes to the Standal i ial st for the year ended 3 Muarch 2018 (Cantinued)

Amount In Rupees Lakhs

(it} Net asset/ {liahility) recognised jn the Standalone Balance Sheet

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
{u} Ficsent valuc of defined benefit obligation {I136.58) (327.46)
(b Fair value of plan assels 159.78 12742
Net defined benefit obligations in the Standalone Balunee Shest I | ¥ 1 (100.£4)
{iv] Expense reengndsed In Standudooe Profit or Losy
31 March 2018 43 March 2017
() Current service cost LIBE) R}
(b} Past setvive eost - plan amendments 4821 -
() Emicrest cost 16,43 1399
() Expected retutt on plan assers {10,204 (.62
Amounl charged ta Standalone Profit ar Enss #5.59 25 RO
(¥} Remeasurements recognisod in Standalone GCT
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
[y Acluaria Joss! (gaind aisicy vn Jedned benedit obligaiva rem
- linameial assnmplioog {1117 HxE
- experienee adjustinent 19.18 2.03
{h) Actual rotumm on plan asset dess inferest on plan assct .78 [UTH
A t ised in Standal acl 2077 L7.7R
{vi} Sensitivity analysis
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Defined beee (il obligalion an discaunt tue plus § G0 bagis poists {31 March 208 56 basis poinc {2834 (1194
'Dl:.ﬁng:d berelil abligalion gn salary prowth rale pius 100 basis poicts (31 March 2017 50 basis .05 1192
paini} ' .
Delined benciit ohligation an diseount rale minus |06 bagis poinls (51 March 2017 50 basis poin) R 1114
Thehingd benefit obligativn on salary prowtk mic minas |0DG basis poinis 431 March 2017; 5D hass ™.
i {25.71) (Ui
paiat)
(i) Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuacial assuraptions at the reporting dats (expressed a3 weightad averag2s)
31 March 2014 35 March 2017
Disgonm raig T.70%: L
Cxpeeted raty of siary incroays B & 00%
Ratirersent aac {years) By il
Atlriticn rate based oo Jiflerent ape group of cmployees;
ages from 20-25 544 5%
e [rom 25-3) 3% %
ages from 30-35 2% 2%
sges trom 35-50 1% 1%%
ages [fom 50-33 2% 1%
zgres from 35-5#% 3% 1%

Assumplions regarding fstyre morality experienge are set in secardanye with the published fnes ueder indian Asyared Lives Marlalivy (2006-08).

(viii) Muturity Profile of deltned benefit obligation

31 March 2018 37 March 2017

Withia cexr 12 mapoths 0257 3618

1-2 year .64 104t

2-3 ywar 17.14 37

3-d yoar 16.70 1604

A3 vt 14.35 17.2%
Uncreafler 15160 11424

31 Alarch 2018 31 March 2037

{ix] Weiphted sverape duration of defined benefii oblization 12 years 13 years

i3 The Comnpeay cxpecis o pay Bs TR lakhs i contzibution 16 its dafined bene e plans Gueitg the voar 2078210




HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITEL
(Formerly known as Himadel Chemicals 8 Industries Limited)
Notes to the Standalone finaneial statements for the year ended 21 March 2018 {Continued)
Amount in Rupees Lakhs

39. Share based payments

See accounting policy in note 3(g)(ii)

A, Deseription of share-based payment arrangement
Ar 31 March 2018, the Company has the fullowing share based payment armngement:

Himadri Emplayees Stock Option Plap 2016 (cqulty-settled)

‘The Company at its 28th Annual General Mecting held on 24 Scprember 2016, has approved “Himudri Employees Steck Option Plan
2016 (ESOP 2016 or Plan) for granting 4,000,000 Employees Stock Opticas to certain "cligible employees™. The plan iy
administered by the Nomination and Remuneratjon Committee of the Board (“Commiitee™) in complisnce with the provisions of
SCBI (Share Based Emyluyes Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 for the titne
being in force. The Committee has granted 1,304,600 options te its employees on 3 January 2017 under the approved S0P 2016
Plan to be exercised at a price of Rs 19 per share. The options are vested after | year but not later than 5 years from the the date of
grant of options, and the said options can be exereiscd any time within a period of § years from the date of vesting and will be settied
by way of equity shares in accordance with the aforesaid plan. The guantum of aptions to be vested periodicatly are specified in grant
letters issued to cach employees. The key terons and conditions related to the grants under this plan are as foilows; all options arc to
be scitled by the detivery of shares.

N . t i
Grant datef employees entitled umber of Vesting conditions Con ract.u al life
instruments of eptions
Option granted to certain eligible employees including Tirne basis, Compary performance
certain key management personnel on § January 2017 1,304,600 |and individual performance as 5 years

specified in the grant letter

B. Measurement of Tair values
Equity-settled share based payment arrangements

The fair vatuc of employee share options, see (A} above, has been measured using Black Scholes Merton Model.

The fair value of the options and the inputs used 10 the messurement of te grant date fair values of the equity-settied share based
payment plan are as follows:

Farticulars ESOP 116 (see A above}

31 March 2018 3% March 2007

Fair valug at grant date Rs 24.94 Rs 24,94
Sharc price at grant date Rs 36.70 Rs 36,70
Exercise price Rs 19.00 Rs 19.00
Expected volatility™® {weighted average volatility) 57.57% 37.57%
Expected life (expected weighted averape life) 4.39 years 4.39 years
Expected dividends*™ 2T 0.27%
.Risk—frce interest rate (based on government bonds) 6.48% 5.48%

L3
S T U R DAL “:
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED

{Formerly known as Himadsi Chemicals & Industries Limited}
Notes to the Stanclalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2038 (Continued)

Amuounl in Hupees Ealdhs

Expected volatility has been based on an evaluation of the historieal volatility of the Company’s share price, particularly over the
histarical petiod conunensurate with the expected term. The expected term of the instruntents has been baged o historical experience

and general option holder behavior,

Expected Jife of the Omtions has been caleulated on the assumption that options would exercise within one year from the date of

vesting.

The fair value of option en the date of grant have been done by an independent valuer appointed by the managemant using the Black

Scholes Merton Model.

Weighted Average Fair value of the options pranted during the year is Rs Nil (31 March 2017: Rs 325.40 lakhs).
* Lixpected volatility on the Company’s stock price on National $tock Exchanpe based on the data commensurate with the cxpected

life of the options up to the date of grant.

*+ Experted dividend on underlying shares is taken as 16% on matket price 23 on the date of grant,

. Reconeiliztion of gutstanding share opliony

The number and weighted avgrage exercise prices of share option under the share option plan (see A above) are as follows.

Particulars

Weighted
average excreise
price per option

Number of
options

Weighted average
exercise price per
option

Number of
options

31 March 2618

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2017

Outstanding at 1 Apri}
Granted during the peried
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Outstanding at 31 March
Excreisable at 31 March

19.0¢

19.40

19.00

1,304,600
23,500

1,281,100

19.00

15.00

1,304,600
1,304,600

The options outstanding at 31 March 2018 have an exercise price of Rs 19 (31 March 2017; Rs 19) per share and a weighted average
remaining contraciual fife of 3.3% vears (31 March 2017: 4.39 years).

D. Expense recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit nnd Loss

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has charged Rs 103.79 lakhs (31 March 2017 Rs 25.40 lakhs) as share based
payment equity-settied expenses and the first vesting date is 31 August 2018, refer note 30,

E. Details of the Liabilities arising the share based payment were as [ollows:

Particniars

31 Murch 2018

31 March 2117

Total carrying mount

£29.19

2540
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HIMADRISPECTALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Formeriy known as Himadr Chemicals & [ndustries Lonited)
Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continged)

Amount in Rupees Lakhs

4n, Related party disclosure

A

List of related parties where control exists

~Name of the related parey

Principal place
of business

% Sharcholding and voting power

M March 2018

3§ March 2017

Frual Commodea] Private Limited (ECPL), Wholly awned subsidiary

india 106 Lo
AAT CGlokal Limited (AAT), Whally awned subsidiary of ECPL Hongkong 100 100
Shandong Dawn Himadri Chemical [ndustry Limited (SDICIL), Subsidiary of AAT China 94 94
Other related parties wilh whom transactions have taken place during the year
i) Key Mauagement Persennel (KMP) and their relatives
Name of the related parties Relationship

Mr. Dankey Lal Choudhary. Managing Director

M, Shyam Sundar Choudhary, Exccutive Director
Mr. Vijay Kumar Chondhary, Lxecutive Dircclor
Mr, Anurag Choudhary, Chief Executive Officer

Mr, Amit Choudhary, President - Projects

Mr. Tushar Choudhary, President - Operations

Mr, Kwnlesh Kumar Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer
Mz, Bajrang Lal Sharma - Corspany Secrctary

Mr. Damodar Prassd Choudlary, Chairman Emeritas
Mes Sushila Devi Choudbary

Mis.Sheela Duvi Chwudhary

Mrs.Saroj [evi Choudhary

Mrs.Kanta Devi Chowdhary

i) Nyn-Executive Directors

Name of the related partics

Me. Bukts K wmnar Banerjee, Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Hardip Singh Maon, Non-Eaceuwtive Independent [rrector

Mr. Santimoy Dey, hon-Executive Independent Dhrector

Mr. Hunuman Mal Choraria, Mon-Executive Independent Dircetor

Ms Eita Bhattacharya, Nemince Dircetar (Non-Executive) of LIC]

Mr. Santesh Kumar Agrawala, Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Suryakant Halkrishna Mainak. Mon-Exeewtive [ndependent Dircetor

Eaterprises controlled by the Koy Managerial Personnel or their relatives

Himadri Credit & Finance Limired
Himadan Coke & Petro Eimited
Hirmadrl indusicies Limited

Sl Agroe Himghar Limited

Himadr e-Carbon Litnited

Manhey Lal Mohin Brevi Foundetuon
Bharat Sevs Nidhi

Eiities with sipnificant influence vver the Company

BC India investments
Himsdr Dyes & Intenmediates Limited

B TR A A LRI N S

Kuy Munagernent Personngl (KMT)
Key anagernent Personacl (KM
Key Management Persounel (KMP)
Ky Management Personng] (MP)
Key Mamgerent Peosenne] (KMP)
Key Management Persenng] (KMP}
Key Management Personne] (KMP}Y
Key Management Personne] (KMP)
Ralative of KMPs

Relative of KMPs (wife of Mr Dnanodar Prasad Chowlhiany)
Relutive of KMPs (wife of MrShyam Sundar Choudhary)
Relative of KMs {wite of Mr.Bankey La! Choudhary)
Relative of KMPs (wife of MrViay Kemar Chacdhary}




HIMADR] SPECIALITY CHEMLCAL LIMITED
{Farmnerly known as Himadil Chemicals & Industries Lamited)
Motes to the Standzelone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018 (Continued)

Amount in Rupees Lakhs

E. The following transactions were tarried out with yelated parties jn the erdinary course of business

Name of the related party

Equal Commmodeal Private Limited

AAT Global Limited

Shandong Dawn Himads Chemical
Industry Limited

Himadri Dyes & Intermediates Limited
Hirnadri Industries Limited

St Agre Ilinghar Limited

Mr. Bankey La: Choudhary

tlr, Shyam Sundar Choudhary

M. Vijay Kumar Choudbiary

Mr. Anurag Choudhaty

Mr. Amit Choudhury

Mr, Tushar Choudhary

M. Kamlesh Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Bajrang Lz Sharma

bdr. Saktl Kumar Banerjes

Mr. Hard:p Singh Mann

Mr. Bantimuy Dey

Mz, Hanurman Mal Choratia

M Rita Bhattachatrya

Mr, Santosh Kumnar Agrawala

Mr. Suryazant Balkrishna Mainsk
Manhey Lal Mohini Devi Foundation
Bharat Scva Nidhi

BC India Investmenty

Himadri Dyes & Intermediates Limited
Himadri [ndustries Limited
Himadri Credit & Finance Limied
Hirnadr Coke & Petro Limited

Mr. Vijay Kumar Choudhary

Mz, Shyam Sundur Choudhary

Mr., Bankey Lal Choudhary

wr. Damedar Prasad Choudhary
Mrs Sushila Devi Choudhary
Mrs.Sheela Devi Cheuwdhary

Mrs Saroy Devi Choudhary

Mrs Kanla Devi Choudhary

Nature of traasaction

Loan given
Reimburssment
Interest on Joan given
Interest on FCE
Purchases

Payment for supplies
Guarantee fee
Reimbursernent

Rent paid
Rent paid
Fent paid
Remuncratian
Remuneration
Remuneration
Remuneration
Remuneration
Remunetation
Remuneratinn
Remuneration
Sitting fees
Sitting fees
Sitting fees
Sitting foes
Siting fees
Silting fees
Satting fees
PomationCSR
Denation/CSR
Ihviclend paid
Ividend paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid
T¥vidend paid
Dhvidend paid
Dividend paid
Dividend paid
Drividend paid
Trvidend paid
[Chvidend paid

(134)

Year ended Year ended
31 Mavrch 2018 31 March 2017
2,421,41 134,45
a2z -
196.89 4370
- L 20.00
35,470.19 2057741
35.854.62 20,018.02
1.8 36.76
- 1.68
067 0.07
T 0407
.04 .04
94,48 6068
90.68 6068
90,68 40.00
109.13 7380
4,13 73.80
94,13 7380
45,52 35.16
16.08 14.94
148 1.56
1.00 [.on
1.44 .36
£.24 1.32
1.00 0.50
Log 0.40
0.60 B
TiLIH 1000
1.00 -
10318 51.39
95.29 49,14
46.14 2307
948 4.74
38.18 19.09
.27 1.63
323 l.62
148 74
LA8 .74
.85 043
076 0.3e
.52 [t
0.82 VD)
- = e i -,
kS
o
R ‘.__\‘
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1NDMADRI SPECIALITY CIIEMICAL LIMITED
(Fonmerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)

Notes to the Standalone inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Amountin Rupces Lakhs

F. Outstanding balances

Name of 1l related parly Nature of fransaction 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Equal Commodeal Private Limited Loan given 3.,041.25 625.84
Interest receivable vn FCD - 5400
Interest reveivable on loan o35 2529

AAT Global Limited Stand by letter of vredit - 1,915.16
Advance L supplics {nel) 773,63 28R.67
Guatantes fees receivable - 1181

G. Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Key management personnels remuneration comprised of the foliowing:

. Year ended Year ended
Nature of transaction 31 March 2018 3] March 2017
Short-term employee benetits e 44904
Other long-term bene!its 381 352
Tota: remnuneration paid to Key management personnel 635.03% 452,86

As the future liability for pratuity is provided on an sutuzrial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the key management
personnel i not ascedainable and, therefore, not incheded above,

Based on the recoromendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, all decisions relating W the remuneration of the KMP's are laken by
the Board of Directors of the Company, in accordance with shareholders' approval, wherever NECEsSary.

1, Details of loans. investments and guarantee covered under Section 186(4) of the Companics Act, 2013
2. Details of Inan: Loan given to Equal Commodeal Private Limited for busivess purpuse, bears imterest rate of 9% pa. compounded quarterly and is
repayable an or bufore 28 September 2023 (refer oote | 1),
b Detanls of investments: Particulars of investments as required under Section 1 86{4) of the Cempanies Act, 2013 have been disclosed in nate 7.
<. Details of Corporate Guatantee! stand by letter of credit given by the Compuny is a3 below:
f
Name of the Company Date o , Purpose 31 March 2018 3 March 2017
N undertaking
AMAT Global Limdted 8 February 2012 Short-term loan fucility - LYs B
B Terms and conditions of transactivns with related parties
The purchase from a related partics is made in the ordinacy course of business znd on terny equivalent o those that prevail in aon's inpa
transactions with other vendors, Cutstanding bulances at the year-end is unsecared and seftlement occurs in cash.
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has not recorded any inpaiment of receivables relating to smounts owed by a related narties. This
assessinenl is undestaken in euch financial year through exarining the financial position of the related pactics and the market in which the related
paTly operates,
4. Information pursuant to Regulation 34 (33 of SEW (Listing Obligations ang Disclosure Requirements} Repulalions, 2015

31 March 2018 31 Maech 2017

Loans and advances in the nature of loan tu a subsidiary company
Eyual Commaodeal Private Limited

Aaquount putstanding a8 at year ended 3,047.2% 62584
Maximum balunce of Toan outstanding during the year 304725 b5 84
4 '.fIJ LA BV sy T00E ‘; > i _ o - e
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BIMADRI SPECIATITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Furmurly kaown as Himadei Chemicals & Indastrizy Limited}
Moles to the Stundual 1 jal for the vear erded 31 March 2HS {Continued)

Amuunt in Rupees Lakhs

42, Fuair value pteasurement

Soe accounting policy in aoic 3(v)

T'he Eair values of the dinancial wgsels anl Hablivies ane ynebuded ol the amogat af waich tha nstrumaent could be wachanged in 2 carrenl tanszct jon bolweehn willing Tractics, othor than in
fereed ar fuidalion .

A, Accnuntlng classification and lair value

Tae lollowing 1eble shows the cormying amounts and fair vaues of Gnancial assels and Beaacad Lebilines, weluding theis level in the fair value hicrarchy,

) IC'a.rlying value Fair value measarement uslag
Financlal Financial
31 Mareh 2HE i i
Asan 31 Mare A""m"m' assetsAllubilities ut | assets/Tiabilities at T"‘::’:ﬁ'“g Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
o RvTEL FYOcl “
Finuncial sssets: - :
Ievasiment wmequity mstruments {Ungaoted : - - 21.531.27 11,531.27 - - 115527
Tevesinent in cquity instruments {Qualed} : - - 579264 5,792.69 2.60 - 5,790.09
Tuvestmenl i tnutual funds - - . - - - -
Tuweatrkaett i foVEITINenr seouriticy 507 - - 0,07 - - “
Trade recewvables 27.787.47 - - 27 TRTAT - - -
Cash and cash equivalens 1.718.04 - - LR - - -
Bank balances ather than cash ang cash equivatenls 14357 - - 143507 - - -
Loans 4,986.52 - - 4.986.52 - - -
Other fnancial assels A15.44 - - K544 - - -
Financial liabilithes: :
MNan wenvertible debenioos 15,0068.00 - - 15.000.00 - - -
Term loans R i4,592.90 - - 14,502.90 ERE - -
Sale rax deferment - - - - - - -
Cument Bomrowings 6,422 53 - - ELE PR3 - - -
Trade payakles 11,826.22 - - 1182622 . - -
Derivatives - 769.56 - 769,56 ; . T69.56 -
hes fenacial Lalilws UL - - CLrnse | - - -
. Carrving valuc . ' X Fair villg measursacnt usiag 1
A - Flnaneial Financial
sAson 31 Marck 2017 | e
Amml:hl'd asselstiabulitics at | oassets/liabilivies at Tuld‘l ‘“?n?“"& Lavet luvel 3 fovel 2
cOs FVIEL VOO RN
Finuncial assels:
[nvesiment jn equty ansttatncats {Cayusied) - - 0,500 dd f,560.9d - - w860 44
Invesiment in cquidy shstrumests (Ouodedh - . 1,797 57 179787 | 80 . LRG0T
IS e el it Gy - 2508 - PRI 25 08 -
Lavzsionen! i gavernmen! securilics 007 - - 047 - - -
Trade rergivables 2235085 - - 2235985 - - -
Cush and gash equivalonts [ - - 113202 - -
Bank bakcces viher than cash and cask couivalents. 246606 - - 2,466.06 - - -
'
Ly 291851 . - 2,518.51 - . -
Other financiai assets 106597 - - [RilG N - -
Financial Babilities:
Ao comverthle debertures 24,500.13 - - 2499943 ° - S -
Terrn .oans h,ag1 47 - . 16,491 47 - -
Sate Tax Delernen 1.2 - - Gl .42 - - -
Curreat Borrowings 13 5Ny - - 33,868 Da
Trade payeboy 14.931.34 -t - 14,%31.38 - -
Derivitives : - 520208 184,64 | 5,476.72 - 547002
Uther financial iiabilitizs 115143 .70 - 1,152.3% _ [
sl 2 Thoe b O b - . B
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FIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Formerly bnown as Himado Chepicads & lodustoes Linited)
Notes to the Standal Mzumeial fur the year ended 3 March 2018 {Conttnucd)

Amount in Kupees Lakhs

43

The K 1 that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalenl, bank balances other (han cash and cash cquivalent, rade payahle and vl finaneia) ssse:s snd
liahilities appreximate their camying amounts Jargety due 1o ihe short teom malyrities of these instruments. The Crompany’s borrowings hive been comsacled at murket rates
afiterest. Aceardingly, the armying value of suck bormowings approximate Eir valhue.

B. Meusuremcnt of [uir values

The Company has establishied the fllowing fair vaue hisrarchy that vateguries the value mio 3 levels. The inputs o vabuation fechi used o sure luir value of
finaneial insiruments ate:

Level 1: The hisrarchy uses queted [adjusted ) prices u active nuackels Tur idemtien; assets or liahilities. The fue value ol all bords which are aded in he slock exchunges is
valued using the clasitg price ar dealer quatations as at the teporting date.

Level 2 The faur value of financial instraments thatare net traded in an active markzt (o cxmnple trades] boncs, over the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
technigues which maxunise te use of observanle market dats and rely as nlle as possible on company spetific estmates. The mursal fund units st valued using Lk clasing
et wyset value. L al) syzoblicant inputs required 1o fair value en instrumens ate shservable, 1he mstiunient 5 ioeluded in leval 2.

Levet 32 1f one or more of the significunt inpes is not based on observable market data, the instrument s inciuded in levet 3.

huods and wetre wsad to esli thee e values;

The Lellowing

() The Tair value of the quated investnemisfunits of muolual G schemes are based on mark et price/net assel valuz al the eespective Teportimy date.

{h) The fair value of the quated Munguoted investments inchsded in level 3 arc hased on the vost approavh to anive o Wiz faic valwe, The cost of unguoted mvesmeTs
appraximate 1he Bair value becawse there is & range af possibhe [ir value mewsscoments and the cos? represents estimale of L that ripge.

watlug wil

{c) The Lair value of interest cate swaps is calenlated a3 the present value of the extimated Foluce cask Naws hased on observable yield surves
(d} The fwir value of forward fareipn exchange contracts iv caloulated as the presend value determined using forward eschinge rutes and interest rate curve of the resaective
CUTEREIES.

{e} The fair vaine al carrency swap is culoaluled as the prosen value determined using forwand sxvhanpe rates, eurmeney basis spreads between the respective cumencies and
iMCTEST [AlS Culves.

(F) The {arr valee al the remmning dinancial insloements is determined using discounted cash Low analysis. The discount rate used is based on managemen) sslimales

The sigmficant observable inputs used wn the Lnir value mewsurement of the Taie value histarchy of level 3 inputs like disceunied casht llews, rmarket muhiple meted, option
pricing mode] ot

There wete no transfer of financial asse1s oe labilites measured at fuir value between levet 1 and evel 2, oriransfer imo o oul of level 3 during the y2ar eaded 11 March
218 and 31 Muarch 2017,

Reconciliation of level 3 fair volue measurements

The fillowing table shows 2 reconcilaition fram opening balances to closimg balances fir beved Y for Fair values on a recurring basis
31 Muarch 2018 21 March 2.7

Baiance as at begianing of the year $,656.51 niaTan
Change in value o0 mveslmen: in equity instrumeacs measyred at FYTOCT (unrealised) 18,664.85 5509008
Balanee as i end af the ysar 27,0010 8,634.3]

Financial ¥isk management

The Campany has cxposute 0 the fallowang risks ansing o Bnancial instrumests.
(i) Credit rsk
(iy Liguidity eisk,
(k) Market risk

Rlsk munayement framework
.

The Companys prineuysal fmanciad liabilities, other an d
tnanee ihe Company vpemations. The Compuny's princigal
sauivalents that derive direstly from its opecations

ves, camprises of barrowings, trade and other payables. The muin purpose of these Snancial Kabikties 5 10
inanctal assets, clher than derivatives include rade and other recsivabios investments and cash and cash
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HIMADRY SPECIALITY CIHEMICAL LIMITED
{Fommerly kuown as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Nodes to the Standalone Mnznclal statements far the year ended 31 March 2008 (Continued)
Amgant In itupees Lukhs

The Company's activities expose il lo & variuty of fancial risks, icluding market tisk, eredit risk and liguidity nsk. The Company”s peimary risk mamagemen feus is 1o
minimige potential adverse efipcis of macket risk on ity Erancial performange, The Company wies dervitiee faarcial instrements to mitigale favign exchange related risk
eaposures, Foreipn cummency options contract are entered to hedge certain [eign enrtrey Nsk expogures and inferest Tate sweps 1o hedpe varable interast rats exposures.

The Company's exposure to credit risk 1 indl d mainly by the indiwidual ch istic of cagh and e conventration ol Tisk frere the top fow custoters. The
Company’s Tisk managerwst assessment and policies and processes are established 1o identily ik asalyse ihe risky faced by the Company, 1o set approptiate tisk limits and
contrals, urd to omitar such risks and compliance with the same, Risk amit 2 polwes acd processes are reviewed regularly to reflect charges in

moacket conditions and the Company™s aclivitias,

This e presents infbrmation about the Company's expesure te sach of the above risks, the Company's ojectives, paleics and processes for measunng and managing risk,
and e Cumnpany’s managemen? of capttal.

The sources ol risks which the Compuny 5 expased o and their management s given Selow:

"Risk Exposure Arising trom Messurement Manup.
"Credir risk Trale  rectivables,  Investments, | Ageing analysis, Credit ating Eversification of mumal fund imeesiments,
(rerpeutoe firancal  bsluments, Credit limt and  credin werthiness
‘Lo manloring, credil based approvil process
Liguidity risk Horrowings and Other liskilities Kalling cash how focecasts Adequale unused eredit lines and horrewing
Marked ri: -
Fureien exchanee risk Commited sommemial imnsaction. | Cash fow forecasting Forward foceiga exclunge conlacly
. Finpnciai assel and hok| Seasitivigy analysis Foreign  cumeney  oplions  principal
denairinated i INR vnlyTurrency swaps
Interest rate Lurg wam bamowings a  virkable|Sensitivity anadyswy IMErsst rake swaps
rates , Invesiment i debt scheme ol lmiest rate mavements
muraal fund and otber debl securitics
Commiodity Price risk Movemeet in prices of raw malerials | Comanodity price tracking LER inveniory &t of v
Security prces o Investment in equity insttumeats Sensitivity analysis . Purtfoli diversifiestion
The Company has standard operaling 1 d and investment poiiey for deplovmaest of surpius liguidity, which shews invesiment in debt sequrites and mutial Eand
schemes ol debt categorics nndy and restrts the exposure n equity markets,
(it Credit risk
Credit tisk is the risk of financial logs of the Cotipatly if 3 cuslomier or ¢ounteimnty b a financial instrament $3ils w mest s vontraciual obigations, and & prinzipally

form the Company feceivadles from cusiomers and loans. Credit arises when 4 cuslame) of counlernarty does nob meet it Shlipations under a financial instrument or
customer eumiract, lesding to & Hnancial loss. The Company s exposed wo coedit risk from its opevatap aviivities (primasdly trade recetvables) and Son s financmgliivesting
aptivities, including depasits with bank, mutual fund investments, investments in ekl secorities, [reizn exciengs trisactivns and }euaraslers. Ui Crmpany has ai

significant concentration of ceedie risk with sny coutlerpatty. The carmying amount of findhcial assets represent 1he maximuem coedit Tisk exposiic

Trade reevivable

The menugernent has estsblished a credit policy under which each new is walysed 3 far ereditwnthiness befors the Company's stonnkand payment amd
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s exporl sales are hacked bv letters of credit . The Company bifurcates the Domestic Customers s Large
Comorates, Dislributors and othas for Credit menizoring. The Cotbpany nuiniing adeguaie securily diposits for sales made to its distributors The Company's review
inziudes external ratings, if they are available, fnancial stalements, credil Lgeacy information, industry informalion and in same eases ani releeaces.

Exposurs 10 credit risks

The Company's expeslre 10 credit ik iz wdlueneed ity by e individui! characweristios of pach cuslumer, However massgement atsa corsiders the factors that may

influetice the credit risk ot als customer hase, inchodieg the defaull vivk essociaued with the Sadusiry ams couniry iz which custormer operates. The Company limis s exposute

1o ceedit risk fom trade refeivables by eslabashing & i paymaeil peciod of three months for custemers.

Dztuls of ey ration percerdage uf Teveue d Gom top and lop tive . are slated Delow:

Particulars Year ended Y ar trdel
31 March 2008 3t Masch 2047

Heverue fiom s op customer 25%% 4%

Revenye from top five cuslnmers TI% 44

. £l et m O "“':r
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THMADRI SPECIALITY CUEMICAL LINVIETED

(Fermerly Ky as iimadr £
Nt 1o the Standalane financlsl statemeats for the year coded 31 Mapeel 2004 (Cont

n & fedustrics Dimiled)

Al

Amaoat in Rupaes Eakhs

iy

Taade teceivahles are primarily wsesuzed and are derived rom eevenae cumed fGom customers Credit 1isk is managed tkrocgh sredi approval ranhshing credit honiss ime by
wonlinugusly meniwering the meditworthiness of customees te which the Compacy grants credil temms in the sormal coutse ol business. As per siplilies] gpmoach, the Company
ks provision of expreted credit lossed on rade reecivebles using 2 provision i o mdligale the risk of defzull puyments aend makes appovnriate provisions sl cach avaurting
date whenever is 3t Jonger e nd invalegs higher risk. On aconunl gf aduption of Ind AS 109, e Cowspany sses expected ciedit s moded 10 nssess Iy impaimmert loss ot
i, Tae Company uses @ provgion mox o compute te credil bess allow ines for rade roecivables

Movemnenl  impairment e as sint i & o
Yoeur ended Year ended
31 ¥uech 2018 31 Mlarch 2017
Falaace it the begining atn 417401
Balanee at the end _ 41701 Lano

Ligubdity risk

Liguidiy risk is defned as e sk il the Compoany wili not by eble 20 setde vr meotils ablipations on titee of #l ressonadle prog frudvot lguidily tisk management implies
g seldizient cish aid menketable sevuriics and the avaclbility of funcingg theougls an adeguate amesnt of credit fcilities Le mect chligations wien due. The Company's
fianee (eam is respositle (o liquidity, (ndicg as well as setlement managament. Tn addition, Frocesses wnd pulicies cedaed o suck risks aee wverseen by senior mamagesment.
Mianapenent sonitors e Cunpanys Tguidity position deeugh rolling Tureeists on the bisis ol vxpesied cash flows.

Cumzany's appecach te macaging lowdity is W ensere, 35 fa s passible, that it wel ive so al liguidily Lo et it ! jus when they are due, undes bl norr
stressed conditens. wathond ssuning umacceplable losses or risking demage wthe Conpany's reputaion.
Exposira to liquidity risk
T tabe Delew pravides deeaily regarding the remiining I maturitics of fnaneaz? Liahilities at the reparting dile busedl on centraclust undi ip
'3) Mureh 208 o Loss than | yest 1-2 yeurs 23 yeurs 3-5 years 5 yrars T Toral
Bomewings [iwleding estimated inberest) 42,896.79 4,531.62 ; 16,5412 206060 ; . aa,0d513
Traele and giher payables 11.826.22 - - - - 1142622
[rorivinives. 1E5.491 I¥5.74 39T HG - . 6.5
Dt Enancial lubiliies 486,77 - - .11 L 1284
BINNT oo Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yars 3.5 yairs Y Frals Tatal 1
Bompwngs (including essisnated mleceslh 172502 0,357 92 +271.15 3LEERA3 4, 390204 hIHES (2
nd clher payables t4.931.3% - - - 1393138
4304 40 TS - 5476.72
al Dt . 52782 - ; - L

D) Market risk

[}

Franciul instzureent. The velue of 2 Soaneial

resuit al changes i the ialerest rates, foreign comency exchanpe rates, commodily prices, eguity prives and wher merket changes that eMect nouke
k & attriluntahle toall makel risk sensithve fnaegid i includieg imvesiments and deposits, neign currsney recevabics, poyailos

st end ey chus:

rizk sersilive ingtimienls Meanke
and kot

Croms

artied aul wilhin e guidelines sef by dhe management. Generally, 1 v sevks W apply

Toe Company uses derivabives 1o manage markes risks. A% such tar
a i velatlily i gther gomprehensive inceme,

Falge aceounl:

Currency risk

Forwtgn currency eisk i e ok impact el w Bir valoe or faeire cash fows of en expusury oo foreign ezrensy, wiveh fluctuale due ta changes in fereige: crchange rales. The
Company's exposure L the csk of shunges in fecien exchange Tales solates primtarily o Wb foreign currency bumowings, nport of raw maletials and spare pars, capital
eEa pe, exports of finhed poods, The curmeney e which these 1ransactions ate rimarily denarsinated as USLY and SPY. The Corapany mansges cumency expusines wil
preserined limits, thaeugh nse of frward echinge vontiacts. Forelgn exelonge transscicns are covered with siret lnsits placed on the arcunt of unevered expasurs, i any,
aey paint ol k.

eid Tk oo

e, The o | waminrnd operiicy

The Cempingy 2val "€ eXPICEUIC ATising Tram Toreipn curengy rus ay Inllows cstabls

procedunes J1uses derivative inshenents like lersign currency $wops dhd Jaswards %o hedze exposure 1o Jorcign sutrency risk. When a dervaiie s enlesed ms e the o

i ol

gemy i edpe, b Commiay b ates T wormns Gl Case dervalivay 2o imolily the wring of Gse hedped exposore
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IHMADR] SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITEDR
(Formerly known as imadr Chemicals & [ndustries Limited)
Nates to the Stundal ial st

Jur thy year ended 31 March 201 % (Continucd)

Amount in Rupoes Lukhs

Expasure ta cavrency rlsk

The Company's c¥PasUre 1 foreign cumency are #f 1he end uf the repecting petiad are as fallows:
ALY 1 ¥ £}

31 varch 2018

In original currency

In local eurrency

Tn ariginal currency

in local currency

(LSD) 4Py)
Finunclul Assets
Trade receivables 16.37 : 1,865.15 - -
Cash and cash cquivalents 129 TROZ
Onhes financial assets 18K 187481 -
46,40 3,0017.%% - -

Financlal Liabillties
Barmwings (including currem nwaturities of long-téctn debl) NETT 2190551 2.157.31 1,327.61
Trade payables 74.94 5,137.05% A R
[Fermvatives 553 359,54 66627 410,02
Other finangial il 0z 13.62 - -
Less:Forward cantracts (1.07) (69.60) - -

. 420.43 17346.72 2,023.58 1.737.63
Net exposure it respeet ol recognised fi ia] ussets and lialyillbies (374,03} [24,928.743 (2,822.58) (L,737.658)

31 March 2017

In criginal cutreacy

In original cusreney

It loeu] eurrency

o (USD) In lozal curreney OPY)

Fingnrir] Asscts .

Trade receivables 16.73 1,084.45

Cast und cash eguivalenss BoE 542,52 -

Ciher financiak assets ML | 335.n8 -

47 6 1093 05 -

Finzncial Llabliities

Borrowings {includitg current nutunties of long-term debt) 3278 0,274 B0 3anze 1,7501.34

Trade payables 16 45 6,903.42 - -

Derivatives 7394 4,794 34 1.177.29 %226

Oiher Boancial labiites 0 | 82 -

T.zss Forward condracty (275.34) PITRST 63 - :
21TR7 i4,126.15 4,147.35 2,432 Ht

Nel cxposure in respeet of recognised i ial assets and liahiit {i70.19) (11,033 50} (4,197.55) (2,431 90)

Sensitivity analysis

A reasorably possible strengthening (weakenizg) of the USE sl JPY agains: Indian rupee at 31 Meanch would fave alTestel the measurement of narcial instrumenls
i 1in & foreign curreney and allected esuily and a10ht ar loss by the amaunt shawn below. This analysis assuries that all pthee variables, in particulae eryst cates
 letnain vonstant and ighores any impact of forceast sales and purchases.

Prafit or loss Equity, net af tua J
Sireagthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening .
I March 2018 i
UST (3% Wovemert) {1,216.44) 121644 (T95.43) 79545
IPY ( b0% Movement) (173,76} 17078 (L1.67) 113.63
31 Barck 2007
USIH{ 5% Movement) (351 .68) 55168 [ELTINSY] 6078
JBY {10% Movemert) 243.29) 24329 [159.09 15408

ib

Interest rate risk

Interest rate cisk #5 the risk thal the fiir valug of [ulure cash Pows of a financial instument will Dudtuie because of changes in markel mierest rares. The Cpmpuny expusure:
1o the tisk of ehunges fn market inerest ates related primanily 4o the Company's eurtent burrawisg (esvluding commercial panet and oliers will Matisg nlerest sales. Fur
all ran-curient horrow mes with Tuating rates, te tish of varation i (e inleres! Tates e mitigeied through inlerest mte swaps. The Company constantby munilors the creds

rnarkets and rebal itg i ing st

gies to achicve an gptinial malurity profile and Gnancing cost.
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BIMADRI SPECIALTITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Fumerly knewa as 1iadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Moty Lo the Standalone {i isl stat ts for the year ended 31 Murch 2018 (Continoed)

Amount In Rupees Lakhs

Ezposure [o interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company 's interest beaning financial instrumeats 81 the end of the reporting period are as [ollpws:

31 March 201% 31 March 2017
Fined rate fnstruments )
Financial issets 4. 89155 37558
Financial lisklitics {15,000.00) (24,990 44y
(10, T0E.45) (2181455
Effect of interest rate swaps - (1,674 59)
(10, 108,45 (2348844
Variuble rate instrumeniy
Financial ussets - .
 Financiat lisbilities (51015.43) {50,360 45}
¢51,015.43) £30,360.41)
Ellect ol interest rale swaps - . 267450
(51,015.43}: (47,645 42)

Sensitivity apalysis
Fixed rate instruments that are carricd At amartised cast are it subject 1o nlerest caie Misk for the purpase al sensitivity aniysts,

A eeasonably possitile change of 10U baxis paints in variahle rate instrurests at the reporting detes would kave increased ar decreased pralit or loss sy the wnsums shaws

below:
Profit or loss ity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weskening |
31 Murch 2018
Variable rate instruments (510,15 510.15 [REXE Y 360
[nteres) Tate 5w ap - - - -
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 510.15% 550,15 1312.60) 33360
3] Marn 2017
Warishle rate insteaments (5360 503.60 {32931y 32931
Interest rate swap 26.75 [26.75) 17.4% (F7.49)
Cash Row sensilivity {net} [477.85] 47645 (31142} rl.g2
interest rute ¥ his been calvulated ing ihe botrewings outstanding at the reporting date have been vulslanding for the entire seporting perind and all slher

varjables, in pariicuiars foreign currency exchange tates, Temain constarl. Furtaer., the calculalon for the unbedged Moating rale borrowing have been dene on the nuLionad
valug ol the foreign currency.

e

Equity price risks

The Company’s queted and unguoted equity instrumenis are susceptible to murket prive risk acising fram uncertainties avo.i futuse valaes of the mvestmens securties. The
reports on the equity porilolic are suamitted to the Company®s serior on a regalar basis. Tre senior manageroent revicws and approves all egisy thvestaent
decisions.

Sensitivity analysis

investmeid i wUily instruments of the Company ase isted e the Doty Stock Txchasge (B5 L, Nalonal Stock Bxchmge (%55 and Caleuta Stock Exchange (C3L)m
Indiz. The table below sumemaries the impact of increasefdecrease of the Malty 51 andex on the Compaly's equily and profit for the pericd. The analysis is bused on the
assumprion thal the MEE nifty 30 equity index had increasedsdecreased by 10% with all ather varighles held vonstant, and that all the Companys eousty instrumeats meved in
lime with b fadex.

Profit or loss Equlty, net of tax !
31 Murch 2018 31 Murch 2017 31 March 2018 3 March 2017
i
NEE Nifly 5O - ingrease by 10% (31 Mael 2017 10%) ni? 027 .18 1%
WNEE Nifly 50 - d by 10% ¢3t Marck 2017: 10%) (0.7 (0.27) (8.18) {048)
T o
; TR
b N - :
o
)
s
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CIEEMICAL LIMITED
[Frinserly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Moo 1o the tzlone fi ul stub 1 [or the vear ended 31 March 2008 (O nntinued)

Amount in Rupees Lakhs

{d) Hrdyge aceounting
Crerercy risk-Transactiang in_foreign cureency
The Cneapiny is eaposed tn transactional foceign cumency 7isk w e cxtend that there 35 a misoratch between the curmenzies in which sales ard ibterest rile exposuies are
denominated. Tae currencics in which dese transicticns ae mirmarily denoménated are 18 dollars and TPY Yens The Company ovws and sells derivatives, und also tnewss
fumtneial liabsilities, ineides 60 manage tzacked risks. Adl such transactions are earried out as per the fisk Managemnet policy af the Company,

“The Cempany holds deavalve trancial instroments such s freige curtency forward, cross Gwmengy SWwaps, INLCICS! rate swaps and oplion Cohlradts o mitigate (e sk of
changes in exchange rates an fareygn cotency exposures. The Company’s tisk managemen p
and highly probasle forecasted lranscaticns and interest tate tisks, The eoumierparty [r theve conlracts e penezally a baek ora Gnancial ins

5 b0 tlge s Toreien curmenuy exposure in respect of firm commiments
tion

The Comnpacy delermines the eaistence of an econamic relsuonship Beiween the hedging insttument anl hedged item based or the currency, amoun? and Lming of tacir
respective cash lows. The Company assesses whether the derivatve designated in ¢ack hedaing relalivoehip s expected 0 e and has peen elZzative in oilsetting changss in
cash flaws of the hedged iter. In order o designiue o desivilive contraet as an effective hedge, the eapectively evaluates and evid with appropriae
tnderiving documens of each conttael whether the vontracl is clfeetive in offssttng cash flow attribuianle iothe hedged risk. The Compary applics o hedge racoof -1,

In these hedging relatianships, the main sourees of inelfectiveness ue
= the effect of the counterparty atd fhe Compuny's own credil risk on the fair value of the forward eachange vontenew, which i it reNested i ihe clnge i the Gir value of
0 Tedped Cash fews allributable o the change in exchanpe rates; and
- changes in the liming ol the hedged frans

Inttrest rate rick

The Company adopts & peiicy of hedging i1s coram tenest rale vk expossee is ob a lised rate, This is achicved parliy by enbering el ficed-rade instnusnents @nd parly by
kacrowing st a floating tarc sl using interes) rale swaps as hedges of the vazability in cash flows attribuiihle o movements in mtersst retes, The Carpany wpplivs o hedpe
alio uf 1:1.

The Company determines tie existence of an evoromiv 1elalionstip between the hedging instruesent and hedged stemn hased on the reference interest tates, [enars, repricirg
dates and amatutilies and the nutioral of hedying instruments or par snsouals of hedged stems.

Enthese edging retalicnsheps, the main sources af inelecliveness are;

- the effect of tw counterparty and the Company™s own credit 2isk 0a e faw value of e swaps, which 35 et seflecled ia the chanpe iathe far value of the hedped cash
Flows anribucaic to e change in islecest 1utes; sl

» tiferences in ve-pricing dates hetween Lhe swaps and the bomrow:nps.

The fellowing Lable gives details in respect of owlstand g fortign custency fward, cooss currency swaps, inlerest Tate swaps and opting contracts

o 3 March 201% 4 March 2007
Particutars Currency palr Position Amounl in forvign  Amountin Rsin Amount in forzign Amagnl o Rs in
rurrency in lakhs lakhs cumency in Takhs Takbs

Forward contracts [1, (proviogs yesr 4] USTDVINE Buy 1.07 BY.64 27514 19,R52.64
Currency swaps [N, (previous year 43] USDINR Seli - - 21854 15,844,635
Currenuy swap |1, fprevious year 1) Usnpy Seil 1,150.7% 132442 J.012Ee 14683
Chplion contracts il {nrevioys year 511 USRININR Qpriars - - 2300 1a 9125k
Ierest rate swaps 13, (pravinous yeat 3] USIVMNR :‘"n:;j 146.12 16,008 65 244,12 15,955 1K
[nierest rute sweaps [Nil, [previous year 21] UsD E‘I::_;mg @ :‘:I:IEJI::I - - 41,25

. . . . Miignal . N -
Tnterest rule swap [1, (previons year 1} IPY o iR Princival 4,733.69 an 473509 LR

gl
The table bedow analyses he dervative Ninanctal instruments :nia relevant mataety groug based ar the i period as ol the badaree sheet Jake.
31 ¥larch 2018 31 ilasge 2013

Mo later thian oue monlh - 167
Later than uie rounth and ot later than tree manths 1.12 230547
Later thun threg maenths and not later than cne year 14579 728
ater than onc vear ‘ 5B1.65 HRZ 32

TH9.56 547673

slivative contracts eelstanding ax al vear end are marked 1w marzet. The Company has applied hedge wecousiing princaples Tedge elfecliveness is deweemired el e
incemion: of the hedpe relanensinp. and rough periedic prospective effectiveness assessmrents La ensure thal an evunumic telatineshen exists brtween the hedged 1em and
hedging instrument. including whether the kedping instrument is expected 1o olfet changes in cash Eows ol bedeed lems 11 e hedge salio far rish nenagel purposes
is e lesnger epditnal bul the risk Tnansgemert eojeetive remisns unchanged aml the edpe contieues Wogualily for hedge aceounting, the hedge relationship will be rehalanced
by adjusting either the vulueee ol e hedging instramient o the volame of the hedged item so that ke hedge ratio aliges with the raio wed for risk saragement purmoses
iy hedye inellecliveness &5 caleulaled and d fior ins S1a efPrafil and Lags s ose time of fie hedpe seiionzhio rebaluncing.

Accordingly, net exchange luctuatian [0ssd (gain] rppregating 190 s (106.05) lukhs 3§ March 2007, Rs (16836 laxhs}], beiag the clive purtiae of the contrazt

dessgnased as eifoctive hedpe for fab: |

wil Nlows ki heen ised in the ather soesp ive iRCnme
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HIMADRRE SPECIALITY CEEMICAL LTMITED
{Formerly kncwn as Hirnadri Chemivals & Industrics Limited)
Notes to the Sia Fimancia] st: for the yeur ended 31 March 2018

{Contlaned)

Amaount In Rupees Lakhs

‘The following table provides quantilative informition ubam offsetting of decivative inzociad assets and decivative finaneiad lizailities:

31 March 208

31 March 2007

Durfvitive finuncial Derivatlve

Theevative Jinancial

Derivarive Brancial

Ryset Minanclal llabllity assel liabitiny
Grass amount of recognised fmancis) asset’ Sahilin - 54,46 $24.02 Ta.40 IETIRE]
Anount set-all (54.96) (54.46) [114.40) (112,50}
Nt amount presented in balunee sheet - 169.56 - 547672
Liisclosure of effects of hedge wecounting on Anancial performanee
For the year ended 31 March 2071%
Ty v of hedge ]
w ® : Hedge Amount reclassified | Line ltem sffected
Chunge in the valuy effectiveness from cash Now in the Standalyne
of the hedyi recopnised in hedging rescrve Lo | St 1 of Profit
imstrunest Sianduk Stand and Loss because
recognised in GCT Sial of | § of Profit af the
Profit and Loss snd Losg re¢lassilication
Cash flew hedge sForeign exchange
(1) Farcign exchasge risk 112113 - [T6.6d)| Muctuution
it} Interest rale rish 1313 - -

Fuor lhe yeur ended 3 March 2017

Type of hedpe
-l .
c’rfl-:i»:::% Amount reclassified | Line item affected in
Chirge in the value of ﬂ;‘:':' i -H\is Fram ¢ash low the Starndaione
the hedging instreaent NS n hedging reserve to | Siatement of Prodit
N - Statdalong PR K .
Tecognised it (01 o of and Loss beesuse of
Tt
5 r ; o h ssificati
Peoit and Lass of Profit and Loss the reclassification
Cash fluw hedge Foreign exchange
2 exchange risk (124.65) - 205823 flwciuation
i) Eaterest rate rsk (4171 - -
Mo in ¢ash flow hedging reserve
Elsk category Fareign cutreacy Inkerest rate
rlsks risk
Parclgn Tetal
Derlvative insiruments exchunge Inicrost Tate swaps
forward contragl
Cash Miw hedging reserve
Agat | Aprii 2016 24R0.7L 3057 15]1.2%
Add: Changes in discounted spat etemen of foreign exchange forward contracis (124.65) - [124.65)
Add: Changes in Fair value of intetest rale swaps - 14371} 4371}y
Less: Anount reclassified 1o prodit o loss 215823 - 2E5R 23
As gt 31 Mareh 2017 197.42 {1301 il .69
Adid- Changes in discounted spot ciement ol fureipn exchange forward copliacts {121.1%) - (121.38)
Add: Chinges i f3ir vatue of interest rale swaps - 13.13 : 1311
Less: Amipunt reclassified Iy pralit or logs £T6.64) - [76.84)
Asat 31 March 201% - - -
Mol P mh , )
R Ry
/
.//
:'I -d»._’f e E e A
' Y,
e
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HIMADRI SPECIALLTY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Formerly known as Himadd Chemdeals & Industeics Limited)
Motes to the Standal financial st for the year ended 31 Magpeh 2018 (Cootidned)

Anount in Kupees Lakhs

44.

45,

46.

47

Capital management

The Corapany’s policy is 10 mantam a stronyy capital hise 5o s to maintain investor, ereditar and marke confidence and Lo sustain [urture development
of the business. The mamgement moritnrs the teturt ot capoeal, as well as the of tividends 1o cquity sharehotders. The Crmpary's vajective when
5 1w piber stakeholders and (b maintain an optimal capite] stracture 1o

MADAEING capital are lu; {a] to roasiouse sharebiodlers value and provide bene
reduce the eost of sapital.

The Campuny monitars capital using debt-eguity ratio, which is tatal debt less investments divided by 1otal equity.

Particulars 31 March 201% 31 March 2017

Dbt M 66,0154 Ti4lile

Liguid investments including hank deposits B 1,718.04

TOTAL 64,287,309

Equily 145,632.55 167 80% 70

Delit to Equity .45 0,10
.44 £49

Bebt te Equity (net)

Far the purpose of the Company's capitul managemett

{) Debt is defincd #s non-curtent borrowings, current romowings ard carment maduritics of jong-term debts a5 described in note 19 and 22,

() Equity ineludes Issucd, subseribed and fully paid-up equity shane capital and other equiry aturfauasble to die eguity Twlders of the Company as
deseribed innote 17 and 18,

Sepments information

See accounting policy in nowe 3{u)

In aecardinee with Ind A3 108 “Operating Segments’, sepment infarmalion has been given in the Comsolidated Moznciad statements of the Company,
] therefare, no separate disclosure oo segment minrmation is piven in these standalone Snanciz] statements.

Giovernnent grant (nl AR 200 Chher operating revenues ineludes Incunlives againgt capital imasteents, under State Investrent Fromution Scheme ol
Rs Mil {3 March 20107 Rs 527006 lakhs).

The Company has established o comprehensive system of maintensnce of wformatinn aul docuraents a5 aegquired by the ransfer pricng regulations
under Sections 92-92F af the Income-Tax Acl, 1961, Since the Liw requires existence of such infurmation and docurmentation to be contemparancous in
mulure, the Company cantirunusly updetes 5 docimenls for the intematienal transsctions ettened into with the associated enterprises during the
finaneiu] year. The tmanagernent is ol the opinien that its internatiotal ransactivny sre st armm's length so that the aforeseid legislation will 1wt have any
impact an the Znancial statemends, particclarly on the amaune of tax expense For the vear and that of provision for taxative.

Dur te Micro enterprises and small enterprises

31 March 2018 31 Muarch 20,7
(a) The amuynts remaining unpeid to Micrn and Sroall sepplicrs as at the
enel nf ench aveounting year:
- rincipul 10058 18768

- Intcrest - -
{b) The amount of im‘emst panl by the buyer in terms of Sactien 16 of the
Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act, 2006} along with the amoutdt of the payinent made tn the suppier
Beyond the appointed day dunng each aceounting wen,

(e} The amount of intevest due and payable for the pedvd of delay in
meking payment (which have heen pail but bevond the wppainted day
during the year] but without adding the interest specilied under MSMED
Act, 2006, _ .
(d) The armount of Derest seemicd and cemaining unpaid o the end of
each accauntng yew. R R

[€) The ampunt of further intecest rermening due und paysaie vven i the
succeeding yess, unti]l such dule when the interest dues as abave ave
aetwaliy paid 1o the smadl eaterprise, Jor the pamose of disellowance as 2
deduciiale expendisure wadler Section 23 of the MSMET Act, 2000,




HIMADRL SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
{Formerly koown as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited}
Motes 1o the Standalone finzncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 (Continued)
Atmuunt in Rupees Lakhs

44, Distribution inade and propased dividend

Year ended ¥ear ended

31 March 2018 31 Macch 2017
Cash dividend on enuity shares declared and paid
Final dividend lur the year ended on 31 March 2017:
Re 0,10 per share (31 March 2016: Re 0.05} 418.41 209.20
Dividend distribution tax on final dividend 8518 47 54
Total dividend paid 503,55 25179
Propased dividend on Equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended on 31 Muarch 2018§;
Re 0,10 per share {31 March 201 7: Re 0010} 418.41 4183
Bividend distribution tax on final dividend £6.00 Bi.18
Total dividend pruposed 504.41 503.59

Proposed dividends on equity shares ace subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and are not recognised as a liability (including dividend
distribution tax thereon) as at 31 March 2018,

50, Disclosure an specificd bank notes (SBNs)
The disclosures regarding details of specificd bank notes held and wransacted during 8 November 2044 to 30 Decenber 2016 has not heen mads since

the requiremant does not pertain 4o financial year ended 31 March 2018, Cormesponding amounts as appezring in the audized standalone financiat
statements for the pedod ended 31 March 2017 have been disclosed,

Other
Spetified Bank Notes denominatian Ttal

notes
Closing cash in hand as on 8 Novernber 2016 2530 7.59 32.99
Add: Permilted receipty - 50 38 5830
Less: Permitted payments - 5518 55011
Less: Amount deposited in banks 25.30 - 2530
- 11,94 1194

Closing cash in hand a5 on 30 Decentber 2016

51 The Sharcholders by way of special resubution dated 24 September 2016, at Aonual General Meeting, have suthodsed the Neminatin and
Remuneration Committee (“the Commiltes™) to grant options to the employees under the Himadn Employee Stock Giption Plan 2006 {“ESQP 2667,
Accordingly, the Committee has further pranted 26,95,000 (Twenty s:x lakhs ninely five thousand only} options as Grant 11 on § May 2018, o ifs
ehygihie employees (with cach such option conferting a right upon the employes to apply fur one equity share of the Company) under the ESOP 20146
The face value of cach equity share is Re. 14~ and cxcreise price per option‘equity share is Rs. 140 per share, and the options shail vest after 1 year it
within 5 years from the date of such grant,

Ay per our repart of even daig atteched

A
. ""-'*EQLB_\S R & Co, LLY e andd ar bekelf of the Board of Drreciors of
€ harierid Accountauts Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
Firm's Repistration Number. 101248W/W-100022 CIN: L27 106 W3 I 937PLCO42T 56
Do e e e "*:;1
o . —_—
Jayanta Mukhopadhy B Bankey Lal Choudhary Shyam Sundar Choudhary
Pariner - Muowaging Director Fexecutrve firectoy
/ Membershi DIN: 00 73792 TN 0173732,
! S
! . [
Virie . \
L . .
“Kambesh Kumar Agarwal Bn]?ang Lul Sharma
Cheef Fanane il ¢ icer Compuray Secrctity
Place; Keolkata Flace: Kolkata
Mg 29 May 2018 Drate: 29 Muy 2018
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BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Godrej Waterside, Unit No. 603 Telephone: + 91 33 4035 4200
6th Floor, Tower 1, Plot No. 5, Block - DP Fax: + 91 33 4035 4295
Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700091

Limited Review Report on Quarterly Unaudited Standalone Financial Results of Himadri Speciality
Chemical Limited (formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited) pursuant to the
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To The Board of Directors of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results (“the Statement™)
of Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
(“the Company”) for the quarter ended 30 June 2018 attached herewith, being submitted by the Company
pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). Attention is drawn to the fact that the figures for
the three months ended 31 March 2018 as reported in these financial results are the balancing figures
between audited figures in respect of the full previous financial year and the published year to date figures
up to the third quarter of the previous financial year. The figures up to the end of the third quarter of previous
financial year had only been reviewed and not subjected to audit.

This statement is the responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of
Directors. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these financial results based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410, Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain
moderate assurance as to whether the financial results are free of material misstatement. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus
provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express
an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards i.e. Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other recognised accounting
practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33
of the Listing Regulations including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material

misstatement,
%B SR & Co. LLP
tered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022
Place: Kolkata

Date: 13 August 2018

Registered Dffice:

B 5 R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration Sth Figor, Lodha Excelus

No. BAB1223) converted into B S R & Co. LLFP Apolio Mills Compound

[a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration M.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi
No. AAB-8181) with affect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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Himadri

HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)

Registered Office: 23A Netaji Subhas Road

8th Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata - 700 001
Corporate Identity Number: L27106WB1987PLC042756

Phone: (033)2230-9953, Fax: (033)2230-9051

Email: info@himadri.com, Website: www.himadri.com

* (Rs, in Crores)
Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the Quarter Ended 30 June 2018
Three months | Previous Three | Corresponding | Previous year
ended 30.06.2018 | months ended Three months ended
.03. ded 30.06. 03.
Sr. No. [Particulars 31.03.2018 eljl OGIZUI? 31.03.2018
in the previous
year
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) {Audited)
1.  |Income
(a) Revenue from Operations 604.73 550.75 502.67 2,021.52
(b) Other Income 273 2.71 1.18 777
Total Income 607.46 553.46 503.85 2,029.29
2, |Expenses
{a) Cost of materials consumed 423.75 352.12 308.27 1,332.49
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (16.54) 9.85 12.53 (7.72)
(c) Excise duty - - 50.35 50.35
(d) Employee benefits expense 13.63 13.75 9.84 46,63
(e) Finance costs 18.74 18.92 18.59 70.43
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 7.9 7.72 7.89 31.41
(g) Other expenses 48.13 50.66 21.85 149.77
Total Expenses 495.61 453.02 429.32 1,673.36
3.  |Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 111.85 100.44 74.53 355.93
4,  |Exceptional Items - - - -
5.  |Profit before tax (3+4) 111.85 100.44 74.53 355.93
6. |Tax expense
{a) Current tax 24.06 21.58 15.87 76.10
(b) Deferred tax 11.13 7.61 8.63 37.25
‘Total tax expense 35.19 29.19 24.50 113.35
7. |Net Profit after tax (5-6) 76.66 71.25 50.03 242.58
8. |Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)'
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (32.02) (11.02) 3577 137.80
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - - 0.90 1.08
Total Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (32.02) (11.02) 36.67 138.88
9. |Total Comprehensive Income for the period (comprising Net|
Profit after tax and other comprehensive income for the period) 44.64 60.23 86.70 381.46
(7+8)
10, |Paid-up equity share capital 41.84 41.84 41.84 41.84
(Face Value Re. 1 each)
11. |Other Equity 1,414.48
12. |Earnings per equity share (of Re. 1 each) (refer note 7)
(a) Basic (Rs.) 1.83 1.70 1.20 5.80
(b) Diluted (Rs.) 1.83 1.70 1.20 5.80
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Himadri
HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Registered Office: 23A Netaji Subhas Road
8th Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata - 700 001
Corporate Identity Number: L27106WB1987PLC042756
Phone: (033)2230-9953, Fax: (033)2230-9051
Email: info@himadri.com, Website: www.himadri.com

(Rs. in Crores
Segment wise Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities
Standalone
Three months | Previous Three | Corresponding Pr
ended 30.06.2018 | months ended Three months ended
. 31.03.2018 | ended 30.06.2017 | 31.03.2018
Sr. No. |Particulars in the previous
year
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

1. |Segment Revenue

(a) Carbon materials and chemicals 599.83 546.36 497.78 2,002.42

(b) Power 15.60 9.19 9.90 38.54

Total segment revenue (a + b) 61543 555.55 507.68 2,040.96

Less: Inter revenue 10.70 4.80 5.01 19.44

Total Revenue from Operations 604.73 550.75 502.67 2,021.52
2. |Segment Results

(a) Carbon materials and chemicals 118.44 111.69 8393 386.01

(b) Power 14.10 7.06 8.56 31.68

Total segment profit before interest, tax and unallocable

items (a + b) 132.54 118.75 92.49 418.59

Less:

(a) Finance costs 18.74 18.92 18.59 70.43

(b) Other unallocable expenses net of unallocable income * 1.95 (0.61) (0.63) (1.7

Total Profit before tax 111.85 100.44 74.53 355.93
3. |Segment Assets

(a) Carbon materials and chemicals 1,968.60 1,922.56 1,866.65 1,922.56

(b) Power 57.87 56.86 56.67 56.86

(c) Unallocated 445.60 433.55 260.00 433.55

Total segment assets 2,472.13 2,412.97 2,183.32 2,412.97
4.  |Segment Liabilities

(a) Carbon materials and chemicals 156,42 183.35 134.77 183.35

(b) Power 0.33 0.27 0.20 0.27

(c) Unallocated 813.91 773.03 883.98 773.03

Total segment liabilities 970,66 956.65 1,018.95 956.65

* includes other income and foreign exchange loss/ (gain) (net) fully unallocable
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Himadri
HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Registered Office: 23A Netaji Subhas Road
8th Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata - 700 001
Corporate ldentity Number: L27106WB1987PLC042756
Phone: (033)2230-9953, Fax: (033)2230-9051
Email: info@himadri.com, Website: www.himadri.com

NOTES:-

1) The above unaudited standalone financial results Have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their respective
meetings held on 13 August 2018. A Limited Review of these results for the quarter ended 30 June 2018 has been carried out by the Statutory Auditors, as
quired under Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

2) Other expenses includes foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net) of Rs 4.68 crores for the quarter ended 30 June 2018, Rs 2.10 crores for the quarter ended
31 March 2018, Rs 0.55 crore for the quarter ended 30 June 2017 and other income includes foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) of Rs 0.28 crore for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

3) Post the applicability of Goods and Service Tax (GST) with effect from 1 July 2017, revenue from operations are disclosed net of GST, whereas excise
duty formed part of expenses in corresponding previous period/year. Accordingly, the revenue from operations and expenses for the quarter ended 30 June
2018 are not comparable with the previous period/year presented in the results.

4) Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Seg !, the Company's busi activity falls within two operating segments,
{namely:

(a) Carbon materials and chemicals, and

(b) Power

5) The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 13 August 2018, has idered and approved a draft Sch of Amalgamation|
(*Scheme’) between Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (‘the Company’ or the Transferee Company’) and Equal Commodeal Private Limited ('ECPL’ or|
the Transferor Company’), a wholly owned subs;dlary of the Company, to merge the entire business and the whole of the undertaking(s), properties and
hab;llues of the Transferor Company in terms of Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’} and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act,

to y approvals from concerned authorities, with effect from 1 April 2018 (*Appointed Date"). The Company is in the process to initiate filing
of the Scheme with the Goncemed authorities. Pending necessary regulatory approvals and other li no adj have been made in the books
of and ac panying results,

6) The figures for quarter ended 31 March 2018 are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended 31 March 2018
and the published year to date reviewed figure upto the end of the third quarter ended 31 December 2017.

7) Eamnings per share is not annualised for the quarter ended 30 June 2018, 31 March 2018 and 30 June 2017.

8) The figures of the previous periods/year have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the classification for the quarter ended 30
June 2018.

+
/_\ : On behalf of the Board of Directors
=l kokaTA 13 R A a— o h— ONj/
2 ) Bankey Lal Choudhary|
Place: Kolkata °.s'~“ Managing Director|
Date: 13 August 2018 ecialiy S DIN: oon:smk
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HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
Registered Office: 23A Netaji Subhas Road
8th Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata - 700 001
Phone: (033)2230-9953, Fax: (033)2230-9051
Email: info@himadri.com, Website: www.himadri.com, CIN: L27106WB 1987PLC042756

(Rs. in Crores)
Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the Quarter Ended 30 June 2018
Three months | Previous Three | Corresponding Previous year
ended 30.06.2018| months ended Three months | ended 31.03.2018
: 31.03.2018 |ended 30.06.2017
Sr. No.|Particulars in the previous
year
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
1. |Total income 607.46 553.46 503.85 2,029.29
2, Net Pmﬁ.t for l.lhe period (before tax, Exceptional and/or 111.85 100.44 74.53 355.03
Extraordinary items)
3. Net Proﬁ‘t for t?)e period before tax (after Excc?lional and/or 11185 100.44 74.53 355.03
Extraordinary items)
4 Net Proﬁ.l for t.hc period after tax (after Exceptional and/or 76.66 71.25 50,03 242.58
Extraordinary items)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period {comprising Profit
5, |for the period (after tax) and other comprehensive income (after 44.64 60.23 86.70 381.46
tax)}
6. |Paid up Equity Share Capital 41.84 41.84 41.84 41,84
7. |Other Equity 1,414.48
8. |Earnings Per Equity Share (before and after extraordinary items)
(of Re. 1 each) (refer note 4)
Basic (Re.) 1.83 1.70 1.20 5.80
Diluted (Re.) 1.83 1.70 1.20 5.80
NOTES:-

1) The above unaudited standalone financial results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their
respective meetings held on 13 August 2018. A Limited Review of these results for the quarter ended 30 June 2018 has been carried out by the
Statutory Auditors, as required under Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

2) Post the applicability of Goods and Service Tax (GST) with effect from 1 July 2017, revenue from operations are disclosed net of GST, whereas
excise duty formed part of expenses in corresponding previous period/year. Accordingly, the revenue from operations and expenses for the quarter
ended 30 June 2018 are not comparable with the previous period/year presented in the results.

3) The figures for quarter ended 31 March 2018 are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended 31 March
2018 and the published year to date reviewed figure upto the end of the third quarter ended 31 December 2017.

4) Eamnings per share is not annualised for the quarter ended 30 June 2018, 31 March 2018 and 30 June 2017.

5) The figures of the previous periods/year have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the classification for the quarter ended
30 June 2018.

6) The above is an extract of the detailed format of Unaudited Standalone Finantial Results filed with the Stock Exchanges under Regulation 33 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The full formal of the Unaudited Standalone Financial Results are
available on the websites of Stock Exchanges at Mmmﬂmm and www bseindia.com and on the Company's website at www.himadri.com,

On behalf of the Board of Directors
D o —

*

KOLKATA

T Bankey Lal Choudhary

Place: Kolkata 3..9_ j Managing Director

Date: 13 August 2018 DIN: 00173792
’f-'auw h=
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Himadri
Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd
(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)
CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756
Regd. Office: 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8" Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata — 700 001
Corp. Office: 8, India Exchange Place, Ruby House, 2™ Floor, Kolkata - 700 001

Ph: 033 22309953, e-mail: investors@himadri.com
Website: www.himadri.com

Before the National Company Law Tribunal
Kolkata Bench

CA (CAA) No. 1008/KB/2018
In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 read with other

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of: Equal Commodeal Private Limited (CIN:
U51909WB2011PTC160507) a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, having
its registered office at 72/4, Shambunath Pandit Street,
Kolkata — 700025 (“Transferor Company”)

AND

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

(CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756) under the provisions
of the Companies Act 1956, and having its registered
office at 23A, Netaji Subhas Road 8™ Floor, Suite No.
15, Kolkata-700001 (“Transferee Company”) and their

respective shareholders.

....Applicants



MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL
LIMITED ON 13 FEBRUARY, 2019 AT 10:30 A.M.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the meeting of the unsecured creditors of Himadri
Speciality Chemical Limited, convened pursuant to the Order dated 1st January, 2019 of the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench in C.A.(CAA) NO. 1008/KB/2018, at
Kala-Kunj, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata700017, on Wednesday, 13th February, 2019 at
10:30 A.M.

Serial No.

Name
Address
Signature of Unsecured Creditor(s)/Proxy Present
Name of Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS)
Note:

Please cut here and bring the Attendance Slip duly signed, to the meeting and hand it over at the

entrance. Duplicate slips will not be issued at the venue of the Meeting.

Route-Map to AGM Venue
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Himadri

Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd

(Formerly known as Himadri Chemicals & Industries Limited)

CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756

Regd. Office: 23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8% Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata — 700 001
Corp. Office: 8, India Exchange Place, Ruby House, 2™ Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
Ph: 033 22309953, e-mail: investors@himadri.com

Website: www.himadri.com

Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench

Name of the Unsecured Creditor:

Address:

CA (CAA) No. 1008/KB/2018

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Section 230 to 232 read with other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of:

Equal Commodeal Private Limited
(CIN:U51909WB2011PTC160507)

a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, having its registered office at 72/4, Shambunath
Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700025 (“Transferor Company”)

AND

Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited

(CIN: L27106WB1987PLC042756) under the provisions of the
Companies Act 1956, and having its registered office at 23A,
Netaji Subhas Road 8% Floor, Suite No. 15, Kolkata-700001
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders.

....Applicants

MGT 11
PROXY FORM

I/ We

being the unsecured creditor of Himadri Speciality

Chemical Limited, being the Transferee Company above named, do hereby appoint



1. Name:

Address:

Email Id:

Signature Or failing him

2. Name:

Address:

Email Id:

Signature Or failing him

as my/our proxy, to act for me/us at the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors Himadri Speciality Chemical
Limited to be held at “Kala-Kunj” 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata - 700017 on Wednesday the 13
February, 2019 at 10.30 A.M. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving, with or
without modification, the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation between Equal Commodeal Private Limited
(“Transferor Company”) and Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their
respective shareholders and at such meeting, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof, to vote, for
me/us and in my/our name(s) (here, if ‘for’, insert FOR’, if ‘against’,
insert ‘AGAINST’, and in the latter case, strike out the words below after ‘the Scheme’) the said Scheme of

Amalgamation, either with or without modification*, as my/our proxy may approve.

(*Strike out whatever is not applicable) Please

affix

Signed this day of 2019 Revenue

Stamp of
Re 1/-

Signature of Unsecured Creditor(s) Signature of Proxy Holder(s)

Notes:

1. The form of Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd, 23A
Netaji Subhas road, 8" Floor, Suite No 15, Kolkata — 700 001, not later than 48 (Forty Eight) hours

before the scheduled time of the commencement of the said Meeting.

2. Ifyou are a body corporate, as the Unsecured creditor, a copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors
or the Governing Body authorizing such a person to act as its representative /proxy at the Meeting and
certified to be a true copy by a director, the manager, the secretary or any other authorised officer of
such Body Corporate should be lodged with the Applicant Company at its registered office not later the
48 (Forty Eight) hours before the Meeting.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialled.
Please affix appropriate revenue stamp before putting signatures.
In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

Proxy need not be Unsecured Creditor of Himadri Speciality Chemical Ltd.

N o g A e

No person shall be appointed as Proxy who is a minor.



UNDER SECTION 230 -232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

BETWEEN

EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED

(TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL LIMITED\# J
(TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

L)
Leciatiny &




1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

PART I: PREAMBLE

This Scheme of Merger (hereinafter referred to as the "Scheme") is presented under sections
230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet™) and such other provisions of law as may
be applicable and provides for the merger of Equal Commodeal Private Limited (“ECPL”)
hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company”with Himadri Speciality Chemical
Limited (“HSCL” or the “Transferee Company™).

ECPL (“Transferor Company™) is an unlisted Private Company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on March 09, 2011 having
CIN:US1909WB2011PTC160507in the State of West Bengal having its Registered Office at
72/4, Shambhunath Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700026, West Bengal.

ECPL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) of HSCL. The main objects as its stated in its
memorandum are as follows:

a.To carry onm, “*whether directly or through its subsidiary or joint venture
companies, the business of trader, buyers, sellers retails, suppliers, commission
agents, broker merchants, sub-agents, wholesaler’s retailer’s, indenting agents,
stockists, distributors, dealers, buying, selling, marketing net marketing, whole selling
consignor, supplying distributor, dealer of all types of readymade garments, lifestyle
products, furnishings and to operate retail stores and also act as C&F agents, broker,
Jranchisee for all types of business including readymade garments, forum and lifestyle
products, homecare products and dealing in herbs, herbal products and natural
derivates’ for a enhancing mental power and physical strength, Preferable electronics
& electrical goods, consumer goods, household goods Industrial Goods, Engineering
goods, Electrical and Electronics products, Food articles, Sugar, Spices, Pulses,
Agricultural  products and its by products, non-conventional energy products.
Hardware and siores, Piont and machinery, stores, spare parls and accessories
commercials, natural and man-made fibre, clothes and fabrics, garments, synthetic and
polythene products, laminated cloth jute and jute goods, packing materials, paper and
paper products, plastics and plastic products, polythene and polythene products,
Granuldes, Petro-Chemicals and petroleum products, *Coke tar, tar by-products, any
kind of by-products based on Coal Tar distillation including Naphthalene, SNF,
battery Cell, Carbon Black and all types of advanced carbon materials, leather and
leather products, Footwear rubber and rubber products, Carpets, plantation crops i.e.
tea, cotton coffee, tobacco, vegetables and other eatables, milk and milk products,
confectionaries, Ice-cream, duiry products, spices, pickles, kirana food products,
marine  products, sea foods, paper, sugar & molasses, medicines, drugs,
pharmaceuticals, cosmetics goods, all kinds of cements, steels, zinc &alloys, scraps,
minerals & materials, ore, petroleum products, industrial and other gases, alcohol,
edible and non-edible oils & oil seeds, fats, soap, detergents, adhesive, Paint &
varnishes, dyes &chemical fertilizers, manures, drugs & pesticides, acids, wood &
wood Products, furnishing materials, building automobile parts & devices, electronic
goods, Computers, Computer software & hardware, watches, novelties, bullion,
precious stones, work of art, antiques, curious, jewelry.

b. To carry on the business or businesses of a holding and investment company, and to buy,
underwrite and to invest in and acquire and hold shaves, stocks, debentures, debenture
stock, bonds, obligation or securities of companies or partnership firms or body corporates
or any other entities whether in India or elsewhere either singly or jointly with any other
person(s), body corporate or parmmership firm or awny other enmtity carrying out or
proposing to carry out any activity whether in India or elsewhere in any manner.

¢. To lend and advance money and assets of all kinds or give credit on any terms or
mode and with or without security to any individual, firm, body corporate or any other
entity (including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing any holding
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1.4.

L.5.

company, subsidiary or associate company of, or any other company whether or not
associated in any way with, the company ), to enter into guaraniees, coniracts of
indemnity and suretyship of all kinds, to receive money on deposits or loan upon any
terms, and to secure or guarantee in any manner and upon any terms the payment of
any sum of money or the performance of any obligation by any person, firm or company
(including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing any holding company,
subsidiary or associate company of, or any other company associated in any way with,
the company).

HSCL is a public limited company listed with the stock exchanges, incorporated on July 28,
1987 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having CIN:
L27106WB1987PLC042756 and having its registered office at 23A, Netaji Subhas Road,
Kolkata — 700001, West Bengal.

HSCL is a manufacturer of carbon chemical and its by-products since its inception. HSCL is
engaged in the distillation of Coal tar to manufacture Naphthalene, battery cell, carbon black
and all types of advanced carbon materials etc. The main objects to be pursued by the
Company on its incorporation as stated in the memorandum infer-alia are as follows:

a. To carry on the business of Manufacturers and processors of dealers in, exporters and
importers of all grades, types, qualities, shapes, categories and description of alloy, tool
and special steels, Including alloy constructional steel In carbon, manganese, nickel,
chromium, nickel-chromium (NiCr), nickel-chromium molybdenum (Nicrmb), chromium
molybdenum corrosion resisting steels, stainless and heat resisting steels, free cutting
steels, silicon manganese steels, spring steels, carbon and alloy tool and die steels, high
speed steels, cold and hot working steels, amour steels, magnet steels, electrical steels,
hot rolled and cold rolled grunion oriented electrical steels, all types of alloying
materials required for manufacture of alloy, tool and special steels such as Ferro-silicon,
Ferro-manganese, Ferro-vanadium, Ferro molybdenum, Ferro-tungsten, Ferrochrome,
silicon-manganese, Ferro-vanadium, Ferromolybdenum, Ferro-tungsten, ferrochrome,
silicon-manganese, silicon-calcium, nickel, copper, cobalt aluminum, baronationium
niobium, pig Iron, cast iron, scrap Iron, wrought Iron, mild steel castings and steel
Jorgings in all the categories of steel described herein above, all types of refectory bricks
and materials coke tar, and tar byproducts, ferrous and non-ferrous metals and products
thereof, Ingots, Slabs, billets, sheets, sections angles, wires strips flais, rounds and as
processor of metal, ferrous and non-fervous, Into castings, forgings, vrolling, re-roiling,
galvanizing, drawing, extruding Including of finished or semi-finished goods.
Agricultural equipment’s, Automobile parts, Machine tools, other hand tools, jigs,
Jixtures, tine blades, tubes, pipes and to act as metal workers machines, iron & steel
worker, smiths, metallurgists & buyers and sellers of all Items mentioned above and Hard
wares and allied products.

b. To carry on the business of iron founders, Civil and mechanical engineers, consulting

engineers, profect engineers, technical consultants, and manufacturers of agricultural,
industrial, and other machinery, and fool bits, machine tool-makers, brass founders metal
workers, boiler-maker, makers of locomotive and engines of every description, mill-
Wright, machinists, iron and steel converters, smiths, woodworkers, builders, painters,
chemists, metallurgists, electrical engineers, water supply engineers, gas makers,
Jarmers, printers carriers and to buy, sale, design, specify, manufacture, fabricate, expel,
repair convert, alter, let on hire and deal in machinery, implements, plants tool, tackles,
instruments, rolling stock and hardware of all kinds, general fittings, accessories and
appliances of all descriptions made from metal, alloy, glass or any other materials and
any parts of such accessories or fittings and generally to carry on business as merchants,
importers and exporters and to transact and carry on all kinds of agency business of the
aforesaid products.
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1.6.

C.

To carry on the business as dealers, owner's promoters, underwriters, developers,
consultants, advisers, brokers, agents, lessors’ contractors, investors, financiers,
guarantors and nominators in any real or personal state including lands, mines, business,
building, factories, mill, houses, cottages, shops, depots, warehouses, nudiistoried
complexes, flats, roof rvights, nomination rights, machinery, plant, stock-in-trade, mineral
rights, concessions. Privileges, licenses, easement or interest in or with respect to any
property for which purpose to acquire and purchase, take on lease tenancy or in
exchange, hire or by other means obtained ownership and/or options over any freehold or
other property for the said estate or Interest thereof any rights, privileges or easements
over or in respect of any property, land or any building and to turn Into account, develop
the same and dispose of or maintain the same and to build township, markets or other
buildings or convenience thereon and to equip and maintain the same or any part thereof
with all or any amenities or conveniences, drainage facility, electric, air-conditioning
telegraphic, telephonic, relevision installations and to provide for the conveniences
commonly provided in flats, suites and residential and business quarters, and to deal
with the same in any manner whatsoever, and to build, take on lease and/or rent,
purchase or acquire in any manner whatsoever and departments houses, flats, room,
Jloors, huts, shops, roof rights or other accommodasion and to let, lease out, assign
nominate or dispose of the same on installment basis, hire purchase basis or by outright
safe whether by private treaty or by auction in or any other mode of disposition all or any
integral part thereof and for the purpose to lend or advance money with or without
security and to arrange, negotiate or guarantee loan and to lend money to and guarantee
the performance of contracts and obligations by any person or company and to the
payment of interest thereon.

To carry on the business of rendering services arid development of software packages for
Industrial, Commercial, Public Utility, Entertainment, Personal, Domestic, Training,
Educaiion, Medical, Defense and all other purpose and 1o estabiish and run Data
Processing Centers, Computers, Hardware and Software Centre, Multimedia, Computer-
graphic, Architectural designs, CAD/CAM and Geographical information System Centre,
E-commerce centers, website design, cyber network and all such activities relating to
Information Technology (IT) that are normally offered by such center to commercial,
industrial, business, public utilities, advertisements, artistic, cultural, medical and other
types to end users In India or any part of the world and to act as producers, assemblers,
repairs, maintenance agents, Importers, Exporters, Trades, Buyers, Sellers, Commission
Agents, Stockiest, Hirers, Designers, Royalty holders, Contractors for design, services,
Public Distribution and dealers in all types of software, Hardware, Computer Producis
and allied accessories and services connected therewith including websile designing
Information technology having development of Software packages and programs.

To promote, generate acquire by purchase in bulk, develop distribute and accumulate
Power by wind, solar, hydro, thermal atomic, gas, ocean energy geo thermal or any other
Jorm of energy both conventional and non-comventional, and to produce transmir,
distribute, sell and supply power for captive consumption and / or for other uses and to
own, acquire and operate coal mines in India or abroad and to construct, establish and
setting of power stations and power projects.

To start forward and backward integration projects for manufacturing any kind of by-
Products based on Coal tar and distillation including Naphthalene, battery cell, carbon
black and dll types of advanced carbon materials.

This Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company and the consequent treatment of assets and liabilities of respective companies in the
mannet provided for in the Scheme.
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1.7.  As on 31 March 2018, the entire issved, subscribed and paid up capital of the Transferor
Company is held by the Transferee Company,

1.8.  The Transferee Company as the parent would like to integrate and consolidate its subsidiary.
The circumstances that justify the proposed scheme and its main benefits are infer-alia,
summarised as under:

1.8.1.

1.8.2.

1.8.3.

1.8.4.

1.8.5.

1.8.6.

1.8.7.

1.8.8.

The Transferee Company would be able to operate more effectively with a larger
asset base available resulting into better turnover and profits which if not merged,
would remain idle with the Transferor Company which is not able to carry on any
business effectively.

To achieve greater integration and greater financial strength and flexibility, to
maximise overall shareholder value.

To achieve cost savings from more focused operational efforts, rationalization,
standardization and simplification of business processes, productivity improvements
and rationalization of administrative expenses.

Some facilities such as manpower, office space and other infrastructure could be
better utilized by the Transferee Company and duplication of facilities could be
avoided resulting in economic, efficient and optimum use of facilities to the
advantage of the Transferee Company and achieve cost savings from more focussed
operational efforts, rationalisation, standardisation and simplification of business
processes.

The merger will result in significant reduction in the multiplicity of Iegal and
regulatory compliances required at present to be carried on by the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

The merger will result in economies of scale, reduction in overheads including
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, organisational efficiency and
optimal utilisation of resources,

AAT Global Limited, currently a step-down subsidiary of HSCL, will become direct
subsidiary, leading to improvement in corporate governance and control over the
said Company.

The banks, creditors and financial institutions, if any, are in no manner affected
adversely by the proposed merger as their security and asset cover will be
maintained,

1.9. The merger of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, pursuant to and in
accordance with this Scheme, shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date (as
defined herein below),

1.10. The Scheme is divided into the following parts:
(a) PartI is the Preamble;
{b) Part II, which contains the definitions;
(c) Part III, which deals with the share capital of the Transferee Company and the

Transferor Company;

(d) Part IV, which deals with the transfer and vesting of the undertakings of the

Transferor Company with the Transferee Company;
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(e) Part V, which deals with accounting treatment of merger in the books of the
Transferee Company; :

(f) Part VI, which deals with the dissolution of the Transferor Companyand general
terms and conditions that would be applicable to the Scheme.

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally
connected herewith.

PART I: DEFINITIONS
Definitions

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions

shall have the following meaning:

(a) “Act” - shall mean (a) the Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time, for
the time being in force; and/ or (b) the Companies Act, 2013, as the case may be
including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force; the terms “Act™ and “Section” shall be construed accordingly.

(b) “Applicable Law” means the Act, and as appropriate, includes any statute, law,
listing agreement, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree, bye-law,
clearance, directive, guideline, policy, requirement, notifications and clarifications or
other Governmental instruction or any similar form of decision of, or determination
by, or any interpretation or administration having the force of law of any of the
foregoing, by any Governmental authority having jurisdiction over the matter in
question, or mandatory standards as may be applicable from time to time.

(c) “Appointed Date” means the date from which this Scheme becomes operative, viz.,
April 1, 2018or such other date as the NCLT or such other authority having powers to
sanciion the Scheme under the Applicable law, may direct.

(d) “Board of Directors “in relation to the Transferor Companyand/or the Transferee
Company, as the case may be, shall, unless it is repugnant to the context or otherwise,
include a Committee of Directors or any person authorized by the Board of Directors
or such Committee of Directors.

(e) “Clause” means a clause in this Scheme.

) “Closing Date/Effective Date” means the date or the dates on which the certified
copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of
Companies by the Transferor and the Transferee Company, as may be applicable.

() Reference in this Scheme of the date of ‘coming into effect of this Scheme’ or “this
Scheme becoming effective’ or ‘upon this Scheme becoming effective’ or
‘effectiveness of this Scheme’ shall mean the Closing/Effective Date.

(h) “Governmental Authority” means any applicable Central, State or local
Government, legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or
commission or any court, tribunal, board, bureaw or instrumentality thereof or
arbitration or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

) “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal under
the Companies Act, 2013

G) “Part” means a part of this Scheme,
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(m)

(n)

(0)

“Party” means a party to this Schemeand “Parties” shall be construed accordingly.

“Scheme of Merger” or “This Scheme” or “The Scheme” or “Scheme”means this
scheme of merger, in its present form or with any modification(s) as approved or
imposed by the NCLT or any other authority as may be authorized for approval of the
Scheme.

“Transferee Company” means Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited, a company
incorporated on 28" day of July 1987 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 having CIN: L27106WB1987PLC(042756 and having its registered office at
23 A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8" Floor, Kolkata- 700 001, West Bengal.

“Transferor Company” meansEqual Commodeal Private Limited,a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956on March 9, 2011
having CIN: U51909WB2011PTC160507 in the State of West Bengal having its
Registered Office at 72/4, Shambhunath Pandit Street, Kolkata — 700026, West
Bengal.

“Undertaking of Transferor Company”or “Undertaking “shall include (without
limitation) their entire business and:

(i) any and all their assets, whether movable or immovable, whether present or
future, whether tangible or intangible, all rights, title, interests, covenants,
undertakings, including continuing rights, title and interests in connection with
the land and the buildings thereon, whether leasehold or otherwise, plant and
machinery, whether leased or otherwise, together with all present and future
liabilities including contingent liabilities and debts appertaining thereto;

(ii)) any and all investments (including shares and other securities), income by
whatever name called, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon;

(iif) any and all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, industrial and other licenses,
approvals, consents, exemptions, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits,
quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses, certificates, tenancies, trade names,
trademarks, service marks, copyrights, domain names, sales tax credits, income
tax credits, applications for trade names, trademarks, service marks, copyrights,
privileges and benefits of all contracts, agreements, applications and all other
rights including lease rights, licenses and registrations, powers and facilities of
every kind and deseription whatsoever, pertaining to the Transferor Company;

(iv) any and all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations, present
or future, whether secured or unsecured, of the Transferor Company;

(v) all contracts including but not restricted to leave & licence agreements, term
sheets, lease deeds, memorandum of understandings, business/asset purchase
agreements, memoranda of agreement, memoranda of agreed points, lstters of
agreed points, arrangements, undertakings whether written or otherwise, lease
rights, deeds, bonds, other agreements, applications and instruments of
whatsoever nature to which any of the Transferor Company is a party and
having effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall remain in fuli force
and effect in favour of and/ or against the Transferee Company and may be
enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the
Transferee Company had been a party thereto;
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(vi) any and all employees, who are on the pay roll of the Transferor Company,
including those engaged at their respective offices and branches, if any, at their
current terms and conditions;

(vii) any pending suit/appeal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature relating to the
Transferor Company, whether by or against any of the Transferor Company,
shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way prejudicially affected by reason of
the amalgamation of the Transferor Company or because of the provisions
contained in this Scheme, but the proceedings shall continue and any
prosecution shall be enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as they would or might have been continued,
prosecuted and/or enforced by or against the Transferor Company, if this
Scheme had not been made;

(vii)all the tax liabilities under the applicable laws/ regulations dealing with
taxes/duties /levies (“Tax Laws™) allocable or related to the business of the
Transferor Company shall be transferred to the Transferee Company; and

(ix) any refunds/ credits/ claims under the Tax Laws due to the Transferor Company
(including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular
assessment tax and service tax credits) shall also belong to and be availed of or
received by the Transferee Company.

(x) since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special
reservations, holidays, incentives, concessions and other authorizations, shall
stand vested by the order of sanction of the NCL'T or any other authority as may
be authorized for approval of the Scheme in the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the record of the
statutory authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders
of the sanctioning courts.

(xi) all necessary records, files, papers, computer programmes, websites, domain
names, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials,
lists of present and former customers, customer credit information, customer
pricing information, and other records, whether in physical form or electronic
form in connection with or relating to the Transferor Company;

(xii) any and all advance monies, earnest monies and/or security deposits, payment
against warrants or other entitlements, in connection with or relating to the

Transteror Company;

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing mentioned hereinabove, the term
“Undertaking of Transferor Company™ shail include the entire business which is
being carried out under the name and style of the Transferor Company as the case
may be, and shall include the advantages of whatsoever nature, agreements,
allotments, approvals, arrangements, authorizations, benefits, capital work-in-
progress, concessions, rights and assets, industrial and intellectval property rights of
any nature whatsoever and licenses in respect thereof, intangibles, investments,
leasehold rights, liberties, patents, permits, powers of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever, privileges, provision funds, quota rights, registration,
reserves, and all properties, movable and immovable, real, corporeal or incorporeal,
wheresoever situated, right to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile,
connections, installations and other communication facilities and equipment’s,
tenancy rights, titles, trademarks, trade names, all other utilities held by Transferor
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2.3.
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3.1.

3.2.

Company or to which Transferor Company is entitled to on the Appointed Date and
cash and bank balances, all eamest moneys and/or deposits including security
deposits paid by Transferor Company and all other interest wheresoever situated,
belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession of or in the control of or vested
in or granted in favor of or enjoyed by or arising to Transferor Company.

The expressions, which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning as prescribed
to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, by-laws, as the case may
be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, from time to time.

Any statutory modification or amendment to the Act or Applicable Law to the Scheme shall
not have any effect unless retroactive application of such modification or amendment can be
established or is explicit in the Act itself.

For the purpose, of representing and sanctioning of the Scheme the applicable authority shall
be the NCLT, or such other authority as may have powers to sanction the Scheme under the
Applicable Law.

PART III: SHARE CAPITAL
The Share Capital of the Transferee Companyas on March 31, 2018, is as under:

Authorized Share Capital 700,000,000
700,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.] /- each 700,000,000
Issued, Subseribed and Paid-up Share Capital 418,407,867
418,407,867Equity Shares of Re.1 /- each 418,407,867

Authorised Share Capital
110,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 /- each 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital, in eash 1,00,000
| 10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 /- each 1,00,000

Since Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company, the
entire issued share capital of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company and/or
its nominees shall stand cancelled on the Scheme being effective on the Closing Date,
however, with effect from the Appointed date.

PART IV: AMALGAMATION, TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING OF THE

4.1.

TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY
With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire
business and the whole of the undertaking(s), properties and liabilities of the Transferor
Company, in terms of Section 230-232 and applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act 2013, and pursuant to the orders of the NCLT, Kolkata or other appropriate authority or
forum, if any, sanctioning the Scheme, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or
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4.2.

4.3 -

thing, stand transferred and vested in and/ or deemed to be transferred to and vested in
Transferee Company as a going concern so as to become the undertaking(s), properties and
liabilities of Transferee Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire
business and undertaking of Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and be vested in
Transferee Company without any further deed or act, together with all their properties, assets,
rights, benefits and interest therein, subject to existing charges thereon in favour of banks and
financial institutions, as the case may be, in the following manner:

Transfer of Assets

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

With effect from the Appointed Date upon the Scheme becoming effective all
memberships, licenses, franchises, rights, privileges, permits, quotas, rights,
entitlements, allotments, approvals, consents, concessions, trade mark licenses
including application for registration of trade mark, patents, copyrights and their right
to use available to Transferor Company as on appointed date or any which may be
taken after the appointed date but till the effective date, shall get transferred to
Transferee Company without any further instrument, deed or act or payment of any
further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the Appointed Date upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
Certificate of Registrations as available with Transferor Company as on Appointed
Date or any which may be taken by Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but
till the Effective Date, shall get transferred to Transferee Company without any further
instrument, deed or act or payment of any further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the appointed date and upon the scheme becoming effective all the
assets of the Transferor Company as are movable in nature including, but not limited
to, stock of goods, raw materials available in the market/ depots/ Godowns/ factories,
sundry debtors investments, plants and equipments, outstanding loans and advances,
insurance claims, advance tax, Minimum Alernate Tax (MAT) set-off rights, pre-paid
taxes, levies/ liabilities, CEBVAT/ VAT credits/ GST credits, if any, recoverable in
cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, with
Government, Semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers and
other persons or any other assets otherwise capable of transfer by physical delivery
would get transferred by physical delivery only and all other assets would get
transferred by endorsement and delivery by vesting and recordable pursuant to this
Scheme, shall stand vested in Transferee Company, and shall become the property and
an integral part of Transferee Company without any further instrument, deed or act or
payment of any further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, ali
incorporeal properties of Transferor Company as on Appointed Date or any which may
be taken after the Appointed Date but till the Effective Date, shall get transferred to
Transferee Company without any further instrument, deed or act or payment of any
further fee, charge or securities.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
immovable properties including but not limited to land and buildings or any other
immaovable properties of Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold, and any
documents of title, rights and easements in relation thereto shall stand transferred to

 and be vested in Transferee Company, without any further instrument, deed or act or
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(vi)

(vid)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

payment of any further fee, charge or securities either by the Transferor Company or
Transferee Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date, Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise
all rights and privileges and be liable to pay ground rent, taxes and fulfill obligations,
in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation/substitution of
the title to the immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of
Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of the
Scheme by the NCLT and the Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the
terms thereof,

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of
whatsoever nature in relation to Transferor Company to which the Transferor
Company is the party or to the benefit of which Transferor Company may be eligible,
and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall
be in full force and effect against or in favor of Transferee Company and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor Company, Transferee
Company has been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses, including those relating to trademarks,
tenancies, patents, copyrights, privileges software, power, facilities of every kind and
description of whatsoever nature in relation to Transferor Company to which the
Transferor Company is are the party or to the benefit of which Transferor Company
may be eligible, and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the
Effective Date, shall be enforceable as fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor
Company, Transferee Company has been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, any
statutory licenses, no-objection certificates, permissions or approvals or consents
required to carry on operations of Transferor Company or granted to Transferor
Company shall stand vested in or transferred to Transferee Company without further
act or deed, and shall be appropriately transferred or assigned by the statutory
authorities concerned therewith in favour of Transferee Company upon the vesting of
Transferor Company business and undertakings pursuant to this scheme. The benefit
of all statutory and regulatory permissions, licenses, approvals, and consents, including
the statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents required to carry on the
operationts of Transferor Company shall vest in and become available to Transferee
Company pursuant to this scheme.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
motor vehicles of any description whatsoever of Transferor Company shall stand
transferred to and be vested in the Transferee Company, and the appropriate
Governmental and Registration Authorities shall substitute the name of Transferee
Company in place of Transferor Company, without any further instrument, deed or act
or any further payment of fee, charge or securities.

4.4, Transfer of Liabilities

@

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations, secured or unsecured,
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance sheet
of Transferor Company, shall be deemed to be the debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations of Transferee Company.
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4.5,

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions contained herein, all loans raised
after the Appointed Date but till the Effective Date and labilities incurred by
Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but till the Effective Date for their
operations shall be deemed to be of Transferee Company.

The transfer and vesting of the entire business and undertaking of Transferor Company
as aforesaid, shall be subject to the existing securities, charges and mortgages, if any,
subsisting, over or in respect of the property and assets or nay part thereof of
Transferor Company as the case may be.

Provided that the securities, charges and mortgages (if any subsisting) over and in
respect of the part thereof, of Transferee Company shall continue with respect to such
assets or part thereof and this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge such securities,
charges or mortgages fo the end and intent that such securities, charge and mortgage
shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the other assets of Transferor
Company vested in Transferee Company pursuant to the scheme. Provided always that
this scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility
created by Transferor Company which shall vest in Transferee Company by virtue of
the amalgamation of Transferor Company with Transferee Company and Transferee
Company shall not be obliged to create any further or additional security there for after
the amalgamation has become operative.

Transferee Company will, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise,
execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any party to any
contract or arrangements in relation to Transferor Company to which Transferor
Company is parties, in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. Transferee
Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be deomed o 5o authoiized o
execute any such writings on behalf of Transferor Company and to carry out or
perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on part of Transferor

Company.

Loans or other obligations, if any, due either between Transferee Company and
Transferor Company shall stand discharged and there shall be no lability in that
behalf. In so far as any securities, debentures or notes issued by the Transferor
Company and held by the Transferee Company and vice versa are concerned, the same
shall, unless sold or transferred by holder of such securities, at any time prior to the
Effective Date, stand cancelled and shall have no further effect.

Legal Proceedings

(1)

With effect from the Appointed Date, Transferee Company shall bear the burden and
the benefits of any legal or other proceedings initiated by or against Transferor
Company. Provided however, all legal, administrative and other proceedings of
whatsoever nature by or against Transferor Company pending in any court or before
any authority, judicial, quasi-judicial or administrative, any adjudicating authority
and/or arising after the Appointed date and relating to Transferor Company or its
respective propetty, assets, liabilities, duties and obligations shall be continued and/or
enforced until the Effective Date by or against Transferor Company; and from the
Effective Date, shall be continued and enforced by or against Transferee Company in
the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and
enforced by or against Transferor Company.
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4.6.

4.7.

(i) If any suit, appeal or other proceedings of whatever nature by or against Transferor
Company be pending, the same shall not abate, be discontinued or in any way be
prejudicially affected by reason of the transfer of the Transferor Company’s business
and undertakings or of anything contained in this scheme but the proceedings may be
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted
and enforced by or against Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

Employee Matters

On occurrence of the Effective Date, all persons that were employed by Transferor Company
immediately before such date shall become employees of Transferee Company with the
benefit of continuity of service on same terms and conditions as were applicable to such
employees of Transferor Company immediately prior to such transfer and without any break
or interruption of service. Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by
agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by Transferor Company with any union/employee
thereof. With regard to Provident fund, Gratuity fund, Superannuation fund or any other fund
or obligation created or existing for the benefit of such employees of Transferor Company
upon occurrence of the Effective Date, Transferee Company shall stand substituted for
Transferor Company shall stand substituted for Transferor Company, for all purposes
whatsoever relating to the obligation to make contributions to the said funds in accordance
with the provisions of such schemes or funds in the respective trust deeds or other documents.
The existing Provident fund, Gratuity fund, Superannuation fund or obligations, if any,
created by Transferor Company for their employees shall be continued for the benefit of such
employees on the same terms and conditions. With effect from the effective date, Transferee
Company will make the necessary contributions for such transferred employees of Transferor
Company and deposit the same in Provident fund, Gratuity fund, Superannuation fund or
obligations, where applicable. It is the aim and intent of the scheme that all rights, duties,
powers and obligations of Transferor Company in relation 1o such schicines or funds shall

become those of Transferee Company.
Taxation and Other Matters

(i) With effect from the Appointed Date, all the profits or income accruing or arising to
Transferor Company, and all expenditure or losses arising or incurred by Transferor
Company shall, for all purposes, be treated (including all taxes, if any, paid or accruing
in respect of any profits and income) and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits or
income or as the case may be, expenditure or losses (including taxes) of Transferee
Company. Moreover, Transferee Company shall be entitled to revise its statutory
returns relating to indirect taxes like sales tax/ service tax/ excise, etc. and to claim
refund/ credits/ and/ or set off all amounts under the relevant laws towards the
transactions entered into by Transferee Company and Transferor Company which may
occur between the Appointed Date and the Effective Date. The rights to make such
revisions in the sales tax returns and to claim refunds/ credits are expressly reserved in
favor of Transferee Company.

(iiy  Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company shall be entitled, wherever necessary and pursuant to the provisions of this
Scheme, to file or revise their financial statements, tax returns, tax deduction at source
certificates, tax deduction at source returns, and other statutory returns, and shall have
the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits, tax credits, credit for Minimum
Alternate Tax, carry forward of losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deductions, tax
holiday benefits, deductions or any other credits and/ or set off of all amounts paid by
the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company under the relevant laws relating
to Income Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Central Sales Tax, Goods and Service
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(iii)

(iv)

49

{vi)

Tax or any other tax, as may be required consequent to the implementation of the
Scheme.

Transteree Company shall be entitled to revise its all Statutory returns relating to
Direct taxes like Income Tax and Wealth Tax and to claim refunds/ advance tax credits
and/ or set off the tax liabilities of Transferor Company under the relevant laws and its
rights to make such revisions in the statutory returns and to claim refunds, advances
tax credits and/ or set off the tax liabilities is expressly granted.

It is expressly clarified that with effect from the Appointed Date, all taxes payable by
Transferor Company inciuding all or any refunds of the claims/ TDS Certificates shall
be treated as the tax liability or refunds, advance tax credits and/ or set off the tax
liabilities is expressly granted.

From the Effective Date and till such time as the name of the Transferee Company
would get enfered as the account holder in respect of all the bank accounts and demat
accounts of Transferor Company in the relevant bank’s/ DP’s books and records, the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the bank/ demat accounts of
Transferor Company in their existing names.

Since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special
reservations, incentives, concessions and other authorizations of Transferor Company
shall stand transferred by the order of the NCLT to Transferee Company, Transferee
Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory authorities
who shall take them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders of the sanctioning NCLT.

Conduct of Business:
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(a) Transferor Company shall be deemed to carry on all their businesses and
activities and stand possessed of their properties and assets for and on account of
and in trust for Transferee Company; and all the profits accruing to Transferor
Company and all taxes thereon or gains or losses arising or incurred by them
shall, for all purposes, be treated as and deemed to be the profits or losses, as the
case may be, of Transferee Company.

{b) Transferor Company shall carry on their businesses with reasonable diligence

and in the same manner as they had been doing hitherto, and Transferor
Company shall not alter or substantially expand their businesses except with the
occurrence of Transferee Company.

(c) Transferor Company shall not, without the written occurrence of Transferee
Company, alienate charge or encumber any of their properties except in the
ordinary course of business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligations
undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the scheme by the Board of
Directors of Transferee Company, as the case may be.

(d) Transferor Company shall not vary or later, except in the ordinary course of
business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligations undertaken prior to the date
of acceptance of the scheme by the Board of Directors of Transferee Company
the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, nor shall it
conclude settlement with any union or its employees except with the written
occurrence of Transferee Company.



(i)

(ii1)

(e} With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations
of Transferor Company as on the close of business on the ate preceding the
Appointed Date, whether or not provided in their books and all liabilities which
arise or accrue on or after the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be the debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of Transferee Company.

Upon the scheme coming into effect, Transferee Company shall commence and carry
on and shall be authorized to carry on the businesses carried on by the Transferor
Company.

For ali purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Section 2320f the
Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules thereunder in respect of this Scheme by
the NCLT, Transferee Company shall, at any time pursuant to the orders on this
Scheme be entitled to get the record of the change in the legal rights upon the vesting
of the Transferor Company’s businesses and undertakings in accordance with the
provisions of Section 230-2320f the Companies Act, 2013. Transferee Company shall
be authorized to execute any pleading; applications, forms, etc. as are required to
remove any difficulties and carry out any formalities or compliance as are necessary
for the implementation of this scheme.

4.9, Creditors

(1

(i)

The Scheme does not involve any compromise or composition with the creditors of
the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company and the rights of the creditors of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are not be affected in any
manner.

The charge and/or security of the secured creditors of the Transferor Company and
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PART V: CONSIDERATION & ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

5.1. Consideration

()

(i)

Upon the scheme coming into effect, all equity shares of the Transferor Company held
by the Transferee Company (either directly or through nominees) shall stand cancelled
without any further application, act or deed. It is ¢larified that no new shares shall be
issued, or payment made in cash whatsoever by the Transferee Company in lieu of
shares of the Transferor Company.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the shares or the share -certificates of the
Transferor Company in relation to the shares held by the Transferee Company, as the
case may be shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, be deemed
to have been antomatically cancelled and be of no effect without any necessity of them

being surrendered.

5.2. Increase in Authorized Share Capital and Amendment to the Memorandum of the
Transferee Company

()

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the Authorized share capital of the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to be added to the Authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company without any further act, deed or procedure, formalities or
payment of any stamp duty and registration fees. The face value of equity shares shall
remain same as of the Transferee Company after increase of the Authorized Capital.
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(i)

iil)

Upen coming into effect of the scheme, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association
of the Transferee Company shall without any further act, deed or instrument shall
stand amended to give effect to the relevant provisions of this Scheme and no further
resolution(s) under sections 13, 14, 61, 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other
applicable provisions of the Act, would be required to be separately passed and
accordingly Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company
be substituted as:

“The Authorized Share capital of the company is Rs.70,01,00,000/-(Rupees Seventy
Crores One lakh ) divided into 70,01,00,000 (Seventy Crorves One lakh ) Equity
shares of Re 1/- each with the right, privileges and attaching thereto as ave provided
by the Articles of the Company for the time being with power to increase or reduce
the Capital in accordance with Company's regulation and the legislative provisions
Jor the time being in force in this behalf and with power to divide the shares in the
capital for the time being into equity shares capital and preference share capital, and
fo altach thereto respectively, and preferential, qualified or special right, privileges
or condjtions as may be determined by, or in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the regulations of the company and to vary or modify or
abrogate and such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may for the time
being be provided by the regulations of the company.”

On approval of the Scheme by the members of Transferee Company, it shall be
deemed that the said members have also accorded all relevant consents under
Sections 13, 14, 61 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as may
be applicable for the purpose of amendment of the Memorandum of Association of
the Transferee Company as above. It is clarified that there will be no need to pass a
separate shareholders’ resolution as required under Sec 13, 14 and 61 of the Act for
amendment of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company.

5.3. Accounting Treatment

M

(i1)

(i)

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any other clause in the
Scheme, the Transferee Company shall give effect to the amalgamation in its books
of accounts in accordance with Ind AS 103 Business Combinations and other
accounting principles prescribed under the accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) and on the date determined in accordance with Ind AS.

Upen the Scheme coming into effect, afl the assets and liabilities of the Transferor
Company shall be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and shall be
recorded at their respective book values. No adjustment shall be made to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities as reflected in the books of Transferor Company on
the Appointed Date, to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilities
including any new deferred tax assets or liabilities. All reserves of the Transferor
Company are deemed to be carried forward and shall be recorded in the books of the
Transferor Company as on the appointed Date. The carrying amount of the Transferee
Company of its investment in its shares of the Transferor Company, which shall stand
cancelled in terms of this scheme, and the aggregate face value of such shares shall,
subject to other provisions contained herein, be adjusted and reflected in the Capital
Reserves of Transferee Company.

To the extent there are inter-corporate loans or balances between the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come
to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the books of accounts and




records of the Transferee Company for the reduction of any assets or liabilities, as the
case may be,

(iv) In so far as any securities, debentures or notes issved by the Transferor Company, and
held by the Transferee Company and vice versa are concerned the same shall, unless
sold or transferred by the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as the
case may be, at any time prior to the effective date, stand cancelled as on the effective
date, and shall have no effect and the Transferor Company or the Transferee
Company, as the case may be, shall have no further obligation outstanding in that
behalf. '

v) In case of any differences in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company, the accounting policies, as the case may be, directed by the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company will prevail and the difference till the
Appointed Date will be quantified and adjusted in the Reserves to ensure that the
financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the financial position on the
basis of consistent accounting policy.

{vi) Upon the scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the Transferee Company, as on
the Appointed Date shall be reconstructed with the terms of the Scheme.

5.4. Saving of Concluded Transactions

The transfer of properties and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or against
Transferor Company as envisaged in above shall not affect any transactions or proceedings
already concluded by Transferee Company on or before the Appointed Date and after the
Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferor Company accept
and adopts all acts, deeds and thongs done and executed by Transferee Company in respect
iiereio as done and execuied by Transferee Company in respect thereio as done and executed on
behalf of itself. The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of share capital of
the Transferor Company shall be adjusted in reserves.
5.5. Dissolution of Transferor Company

On occurrence of the Effective Date, Transferor Company shall without any further act or deed,
shall stand dissolved without winding up.

PART VI: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

6.1. Application to NCLT

i) Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall jointly, with all reasonable
dispatch, make application to the NCLT, Kolkata, under Section 230-232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act read with the applicable provisions of the Companies
{Compromise, Arrangement and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016, for sanctioning the
Scheme with such modifications as may be approved by the NCLT.

(ii) It is hereby clarified that submissions of the Scheme to the Tribunal and fo any
authorities for their respective approvals is without prejudice to all rights, interest,
titles and defenses that Transferor Company and Transferee Company has or may
have under or pursvant to all applicable laws.
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6.2. Listing Agreement and SEBI Compliances

(D)

(i)

Since the Transferee Company is a listed company, this Scheme is subject to the
compliances of all the requirements under the Listing Regulations and all statutory
directives of the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in so far as they relate to
sanction and implementation of the scheme.

SEBI vide Notification No. SEBVLAD/NRO/GN/2016-17/029 dated 15™ February
2017 has amended the Listing Regulations and relaxed the requirement of obtaining
prior approval or no objection/ observation letter of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI in
case of merger of wholly owned subsidiary with its holding company. The draft
schemes shall be filed with the Stock Exchange for disclosure purpose in compliance
with the above notification.

6.3. Conditionality of Scheme
The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

(i)

(i)

iii)

(iv)

)

The approval and agreement of the Scheme by the requisite majorities of Equity
Shareholders and the Creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, as may be directed by the NCLT, Kolkata Bench on the applications made
for directions under Section 230 of the said Act for calling meeting and necessary
resolutions being passed under the said Act;

The sanction of the NCLT under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicabie provisions
of the said Act in favour of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

In view of the SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD/NRO/GN/2016-17/029 dated
15.02.2017 and in terms of Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10.03.2017,
drafts scheme of Amalgamation of Wholly owned subsidiaries with their parent
company shall be filled with the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of disclosures and
Stock Exchanges shall disseminate the scheme documents on their website. No
forther compliance shall be required for Scheme of Amalgamation of a Wholly
owned subsidiary with its parent company. The Transferee Company shall comply
with the requirement of the above mentioned SEBI Notification/Circular.

The confirmation order sanctioning this Scheme being filed with the Registrar of
Companies having jurisdiction;

All other sanctions and approvals, as may be required by law, in respect of this
Scheme being obtained.

6.4. Modification or Amendment of the Scheme and Revocation of the Scheme

(M

(ii)

The Scheme shall be subject to such modifications as the NCLT while sanctioning the
same may direct and which the Board of Transferor Company and Transferee
Company may consent and agree to; .

The Transferor Company (by its Board of Directors) and the Transferee Company (by

its Board of Directors) either by themselves or through a Committee appointed by
them in this behalf, may in their full and absolute discretion, make and/or assent to




any alteration, or modification to this Scheme, including but not limited to those
which the NCLT and/or any other authority may deem fit approve or propose;

(i)  Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall be at liberty to withdraw from
this Scheme in case any condition or alteration imposed by the NCLT or any other

authority is not on terms acceptable to them.

(iv)  In the event of any of the said sanctions/ approvals/ conditions referred herein above
not being obtained and/ or complied with and/ or satisfied and/ or this Scheme not
being sanctioned by the NCLT and/ or order or orders not being passed as aforesaid
and/ or the Scheme failing to be made effective, this Scheme shal stand revoked,
cancelled and be of no effect and in that event, no rights and liabilities whatsoever
shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company or their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other
person save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto and
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or
accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out
in accordance with the applicable law and in such case, each company shall bear its
own costs unless otherwise mutually agreed. Further, the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to revoke, cancel
and declare the scheme to be of no effect if such boards are of the view that the
coming into effect of the Scheme in terms of the provisions of this Scheme or filing
of the drawn-up orders with any authority could have adverse implication on alV any

of the companies.

6.5. Residual Provision

() Without prejudice to the provisions contained in this Scheme, with effect from the
Appointed Date, alt inter-party transactions between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company shall be considered as intra-party transactions for all purposes

(ii} On the approval of the Scheme by the members of Transferee and Transferor
Company pursuant to Section 230. of the Act, it shall be deemed that the said
members have also accorded all relevant consents under various provisions of the Act
to the extent the same may be considered applicable in respect of various actions
required to be undertaken by the Transferee Company for implementation of this

Scheme.

6.6. Costs

All costs, charges, fees, taxes, including duties (including the stamp duty), if any applicable in
relation to this Scheme, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise
agreed) arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing the terms and conditions or
provisions of this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be borne and paid by the
Transferee Company. All such costs, charges, fees, taxes, stamp duties including duties
(excluding the stamp duty, if any, paid on this scheme which shall be pro rata added to the value

of the immovable properties), levies and all o

Loss Account of the Transferee Company.
E
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NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL

KOLKATA BENCH

KOLKATA

CA(CAA) No. 1008/KB/ 2018

IN THE MATTER OF
The Companies Act, 2013;

And
IN THE MATTER OF
Section 230 read with Sections 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013;

And
IN THE MATTER OF
EQUAL COMMODEAL PRIVATE LIMITED,
having its registered office at 72/4
Shambhunath Pandit Street, Kolkata 700025
within the aforesaid jurisdiction

..... Transferor Company

And
IN THE MATTER OF
HIMADRI SPECIALITY CHEMICAL
LIMITED, having its registered office at
23A, Netaji Subhas Road, 8" Floor Suite No.
15, Kolkata 700001 within the aforesaid
jurisdiction.

...Transferee Company

And
IN THE MATTER OF
1. Equal Commodeal Private Limited.

And
2. Himadri Speciality Chemical Limited
..... Applicants

Coram Shri Madan B Gosavi, Member (Judicial)

For the Applicants :

1.Mr.Ratnanko Banerji, Senior Advocate

2.Mr.Arkodeb Sinha, Advocate

3.Mr. Sitikantha Mitra, Advocate

4.Ms. Aditi Jhunjhunwala, Authorised Representative, S Jaykishan
5. Ms. Khusboo Jain, C.S, S.Jaykishan

Sa
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Date of Pronouncement of the Order: 15t January, 2019

ORDER
Shri Madan B Gosavi, Member(Judicial)

1. This is an application filed by the Applicants, namely, Equal
Commodeal Pvt. Ltd., the “Transferor Company” and Himadri Speciality
Chemical Limited, the “Transferee Company” under Section 230 and
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in relation to the Scheme
of Amalgamation proposed between the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company. A copy of the Scheme has been annexed as

Annexure “G" to the application.

2. The Transferor Company is a 100% wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company.

3, The ultimate objective of the Scheme is to amalgamate the
Transferor Company into the Transferee Company.

4, The Transferor Company is in the business of a holding and
investments company. The authorised share capital of the Transferor
Company is Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh only) divided into 10,000
equity shares of Rs.10/- each. The issued, subscribed and paid up Share
Capital is Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh only) divided into 10,000 equity
shares of Rs10/- each fully paid up in cash.
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5 The Transferee Company is a listed company with its shares being
traded in the BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange. The Transferee
Company is in the business of exporters and importers of alloys, nickel,
chromium. The authorised share capital of the Transferee Company is Rs.
700,000,000 (Rupees Seventy Crores only) divided into 700,000,000
equity shares of Re.1/- each. The issued, subscribed and paid up Share
Capital is Rs. 418,407,867 (Rupees Forty one crore eighty four lakhs
seven thousand eight hundred and sixty seven only) divided into
418,407,867 equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid up in cash.

6. It has been stated in the Application that the instant amalgamation
of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company will allow the
optimum growth, development and diversification of the businesses with
the combined resources of the said companies and for centralizing the
asset base and resources to result in better management and effective
utilization of resources thereby resulting in lowering of overall costs and
increase in overall productivity, efficiency and profitability, it is considered
expedient and desirable to amalgamate the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company in the manner and on the terms and conditions
stated in the Scheme of Amalgamation.

p It is further stated that the Scheme of Amalgamation will result in
economies of scale, reduction in overhead and other expenses, reduction
in administrative and procedural work, elimination of duplication of work,
better and more productive and effective utilization of the resources of
the applicant companies to enable the applicant companies to effect
internal economies and optimize productivity.

8. The instant Scheme of Amalgamation will have beneficial results for
all the Applicant Companies concerned, their shareholders, employees,

fi/

creditors and all concerned.




9. The Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies have approved
the Scheme of Amalgamation in its board respective meetings held on
13t August, 2018 and Board Resolution is annexed and marked with
letter “H-1" and “H-2"respectively.

10. The Transferee Company has also informed the relevant Stock
Exchanges BSE Ltd. and NSE of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation
between the Applicant Companies and such intimation is annexed and
marked with letter “"H-3".

11. No Valuation Report and Share Exchange Ratio is required since the
Amalgamation is between a holding and wholly owned subsidiary
company and upon amalgamation the shares of the subsidiary company
shall stand cancelled.

12. It is stated in the Application that the Shareholders of the
Transferor Company have given their consent to the Scheme and their
consent Affidavits are annexed with the Application and marked with
letter “M” and list of shareholders of the Transferor Company is annexed
and marked as “L-1" respectively.

13. All the creditors of the Transferor Company have consented to the
Scheme and also signed consent Affidavits annexed and marked as “0".

14, The Applicants have stated that meetings of the shareholders and
creditors of the Transferor Company be dispensed with in view of the
written consents, by way of affidavits, given by all the shareholders and
creditors of Transferor Company, as aforesaid.

15. It is stated that since the Transferee Company Is a listed Company,
meeting of the shareholders and creditors of the Transferee Company
would be required to be held and as such necessary directions be given by
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this Tribunal for holding the meetings of the shareholders and creditors
(secured and unsecured) of the Transferee Company. The list of
Shareholders is annexed hereto and marked with letter “L-2".

16. It is also submitted in the Application that the aggregate assets of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are sufficient to
meet all their liabilities and the Scheme of Amalgamation will not
adversely affect the rights of any of the creditors of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company in any manner whatsoever and
due provisions have been made in the Scheme of Amalgamation for
payment of all the liabilities of the concerned entities. The list of creditors
of the Transferee Company is annexed hereto and marked with letter

\\Qf!’

17. There are no proceedings pending under Sections 235 to 251 of the
Companies Act, 1956 or Sections 217, 219, 221, 224 and 225 of the
Companies Act, 2013 against any of the Applicant Companies.

18. Heard the Ld. Senior Counsel for the Applicants, perused the
records, documents annexed to the application and affidavits filed in the
instant proceedings and after hearing the submissions made on behalf of
the applicants the following orders are passed :

a) In view of the consents given in affidavit form by all the
shareholders of the Transferor Company, the requirement of
convening and holding of separate meeting of the shareholders of
the Transferor Company is dispensed with.

b) In view of the consents given in affidavit form by all the Creditors of
the Transferor Company, the requirement of convening and holding
of separate meeting of the Creditors of the Transferor Company is
dispensed with.




¢)

Meeting of equity shareholders of the Transferee Company shall be
convened and held at “Kalakunj”, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-
700017 on 13t" February, 2019 at 12:30 A.M for the purposes of
considering and if thought fit approving with or without
modifications the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation with the
Transferor Company.

Meeting of secured creditors of the Transferee Company shall be
convened and held at “Kalakunj”, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-
700017 on 13t February, 2019 at 11:30 A.M. for the purposes of
considering and if thought fit approving with or without
modifications the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation with the
Transferor Company.

Meeting of unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company shall be
convened and held at “Kalakunj”, 48, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata-
700017 on 13t February, 2019 at 10:30 A.M for the purposes of
considering and if thought fit approving with or without
modifications the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation with the
Transferor Company.

That at least one month before the meeting to be held as aforesaid,
an advertisement convening the same indicating the day, date, time
and the venue of the said meeting and stating that copies of the
said Scheme of Arrangement along with the statement required to
be furnished pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
disclosing necessary details and a prescribed form of proxy can be
obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Transferee
Company be inserted once each in the "Financial Express” in English
and "Aajkal" in Bengali as per the requirements of Section 230 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in Form No.CAA2 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangement and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016.
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g)

h)

That at least one month before the date of the meeting of the
Shareholders to be held as aforesaid, a notice convening the said
meeting together with a copy of the said Scheme, a copy of the
statement required to be sent under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 disclosing necessary details and the
prescribed form of proxy shall be sent to each of the said
Shareholders of the Transferee Company, by post or air mail or
courier or email or through personal messenger at their respective
or last known addresses. The said notices along with accompanying
documents shall also be placed on the website of the Transferee
Company.

That notice along with all accompanying documents, including a
copy of the Scheme, Statement under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 disclosing necessary details shall also be
served on the Central Government, through the Regional Director,
Eastern Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Kolkata, the Registrar
of Companies, West Bengal, and the concerned Income Tax
assessing Officer along with the Chief Commissioner of Income Tax
with PAN No. of the Applicant Companies as also on the Official
Liquidator attached to the Hon'ble High Court, Calcutta, BSE, NSE
having jurisdiction over the Applicant Companies and such other
relevant sectoral regulators/ authorities, if applicable, which are
likely to be affected by the proposed scheme, in terms of the
provisions of Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 by sending
the same by hand delivery through special messenger or by post or
by email within 7 days from the date of this order for filing their
representation, if any, within 30 days from the date of the notice.
The notice shall specify that representation, if any, should be filed
before this Tribunal within 30 days from the date of receipt of the
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j)

k)

notice with a copy of such representation being simultaneously sent
to the authorised representative of the said Applicants. If no such
representation is received by the Tribunal within such period, it shall
be presumed that such authorities have no representation to make
on the said Scheme of Amalgamation. Such notice shall be sent
pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form
No.CAA 3 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangement and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 with necessary variations, incorporating
the directions herein.

That the quorum for the meeting of the Shareholders of the
Transferee Company shall be fixed in accordance with Section 103
of the Companies Act, 2013.

That the quorum for the meeting of the Creditors of the Transferee
Company shall be 2 persons personally present.

It is however provided that in case the quorum of any meeting is
not available on the scheduled time and date, the Chairperson may
adjourn such meeting by 30 minutes and thereafter, the members
or creditors, as the case may be, present in person or through
proxy would be treated as proper quorum.

Shri M. R. Goenka, (Mobile No. 9831074332) is appointed as the
Chairperson of the said meeting of the Shareholders and Creditors
of the Transferee Company to be held as aforesaid in terms of this
order. The Chairperson shall be paid a consolidated sum of Rs.
1,00,000/- (Rupees One lac only) for conducting the aforesaid
meetings as Chairperson.
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Shri N Gurumurthy (Mobile No. 9831038621) is appointed as the
Scrutiniser of the said meeting of the Shareholders and Creditors of
the Transferee Company to be held as aforesaid in terms of this
order. The Scrutiniser shall be paid a consolidated sum of Rs.
60,000/- (Rupees Sixty thousand only) for conducting the aforesaid
meetings as Scrutiniser.

That the Chairperson appointed for the said meeting or any person
authorised by him do issue and send out the notices of the said
meeting referred to above.

The Applicants to file an affidavit proving service of notice of
meeting and publication of advertisement and compliance of all
directions contained herein at least a week before the meeting to be
held.

The equity shareholders of the Transferee Company shall be given
the option of voting on the resolution for approval of the Scheme by
casting their votes personally or by proxy at the venue of the
meeting on 13t February 2019 or by postal ballot / remote e-
voting, as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules thereunder.

The Creditors of the Transferee Company shall be given the option
of voting on the resolution for approval of the Scheme by casting
their votes personally or by proxy by ballot paper/polling paper at
the venue of the meeting on 13 February 2019.

Subject to the directions and matters dealt with herein, the
procedure for postal ballot/ e-voting and conduct of voting at the
venue of the meeting be as prescribed by the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 and the forms
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thereunder shall be followed with such variations as required in the
circumstances and in relation to the resolution for approval of the

Scheme.

It is clarified that Shareholders and Creditors of the Transferee
Company choosing to cast their votes by postal ballot/ remote e-
voting/polling paper, as the case may be, shall nevertheless be
entitled to attend and participate in the discussions in the meeting
but shall not be entitled to vote again at the meeting. At the venue
of the meeting the votes shall be taken by ballot papers.

Voting shall be allowed on the proposed Scheme by proxy at the
venue of the meeting of the Shareholders and Creditors of the
Transferee Company provided that the proxies in the prescribed
form duly signed by the person(s) entitled to attend and vote at the
respective meeting, is filed with the Transferee Company at the
registered office not later than forty eight hours before the meeting.
In case of a Body Corporate, being a Shareholder and/or Creditor of
the Transferee Company, opting to attend and vote at the venue of
the meeting, as aforesaid, through its authorised representative,
such Body Corporate may do sO provided a certified copy of the
resolution of its Board of Directors or other governing body
authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the meeting
on its behalf is deposited at the registered office of the Transferee
Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the time for
holding the meeting.

The votes cast at the meeting shall be scrutinised by the Scrutiniser
in accordance with the said Rules. The Scrutiniser shall prepare and
submit the report on the meeting along with all papers relating to
the voting to the Chairperson of the meeting within 48 hours of the
conclusion of the meeting. The Chairperson shall declare the results
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of the meeting after submission of the report of the Scrutiniser to
him. The votes cast by e-voting, postal ballot and polling paper, as
aforesaid, shall be consolidated. The declaration of results by the
Chairperson shall also be published in the same newspapers in
which notice of the meeting is advertised.

The value of each shareholder and creditor shall be in accordance
with the Register of Members and financial records and books of
Creditors of the Transferee Company as per the applicable laws and,
where entries in the books are disputed, the Chairperson shall
determine the number and value, as the case may be, for purposes
of the said meetings.

That the Chairperson do report to this Tribunal the results of the
said meeting within four weeks from the date of the conclusion of
the said meeting and his report on the said meeting shall be in
Form No. CAA4 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangement and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016, verified by affidavit.

The authorised representative of the Applicant Companies shall
furnish an affidavit of service of notice of meetings and publication
of advertisement and compliance of all directors contained herein at

least a week before the proposed meetings.

All the aforesaid directions are to be complied with in accordance
with the applicable laws including forms and formats contained in
the Companies (CAA) Rules, 2016 as well as the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Parties and the Chairperson shall act on the Order.
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19. Accordingly, the Company Application No.1008/KB/2018 is disposed

of.

20. Urgent photostat certified copies of this order if applied for be
supplied to the parties upon compliance of all requisite formalities.
5 oﬁﬂ
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